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ARER

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. YU Bangping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. SUN Dawei
Mr. WANG Shize

Mr. LI Xuezhong (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. LAM Chik Shun, Marcus
(resigned on 1 June 2022)

Mr. LAU Kai Ming (Chief Financial Officer)

(appointed on 1 June 2022)
Mr. YU Zhilong
Mr. YU Xiao

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. FONG Wai Ho

Mr. Punnya Niraan DE SILVA

Ms. CHEUNG Suet Ting, Samantha
Mr. WANG Xiufeng

Audit Committee

Mr. FONG Wai Ho (Chairman)

Mr. Punnya Niraan DE SILVA

Ms. CHEUNG Suet Ting, Samantha

Nomination Committee
Mr. YU Bangping (Chairman)

Mr. FONG Wai Ho

Ms. CHEUNG Suet Ting, Samantha

Remuneration Committee
Mr. FONG Wai Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Punnya Niraan DE SILVA
Mr. LAM Chik Shun, Marcus
(resigned on 1 June 2022)
Mr. LAU Kai Ming
(appointed on 1 June 2022)

Company Secretary
Mr. CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

* Asat 2wlarch 2023

>
y

-

o

BITES

RIF I E(F/EHFITEAEE)

BAERE

TR E

FEBEE(EREER)

MIEEEE
(R20224F6 H1HET)

RIRSE (BRI HE)
(R2022%F6 510 Z L)

RYBESRAE

RBRLE

BYFHTES
FRREE

Punnya Niraan DE SILVA% 4
REFL L

FHERE

EREES
FRREEFE)

Punnya Niraan DE SILVAZE 4
RESL L

RERES
RAFHLE(ER)
Vol £ T3
RTBLt

FEES
FRREEFE)

Punnya Niraan DE SILVAZE 4
MIEERE

(R202246 1 HEHT)
2Rk E

(202246 H1HZE)
NEVWE
PRI R S

* RZEZ=F=A=+—H



Annual Report 2022 £ 3

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
NRIER ()

Principal Place of Business

Head Office in China

Office building next to E’Lang Pu Leisure Square
Hongguo Economic Development Area
Liupanshui City, Guizhou Province, China

Hong Kong Office
Unit 10083, 10th Floor
Tower 2, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Principal Share
Registrar and Transfer Office
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square, Grand Cayman

KY1-1102, Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Bank of China Limited

(Panzhou County Branch, Liupanshui City, China)
Bank of Communications Co., Limited, Hong Kong

Place of Listing and Stock Code
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited/2798

Company’s Website

www.perennialenergy.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B ST

For the year ended 31 December
HZE12B318LLEE

2020 2021 2022
20204 20214 20224
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(ARETT) (ARETT) (AR%F7T)
Revenue & 1,402,604 1,541,399 1,784,033
Gross profit EAH 716,004 918,483 1,117,635
Gross profit margin EVAES 51.0% 59.6% 62.6%
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNREARALRE
income for the year 345,480 301,770 743,955
Adjusted profit and total FREFHE G R2EBEABRERY
comprehensive income
for the year® 361,552 610,288 764,364
Basic earnings per Share (HK cents) SH&EARZAFIGEN) 21.59 18.86 46.50
Dividend per Share (HK cents) SRR B (B 3.75 3.75 12.50
Return on equity® e EIR B 22.7% 17.1% 30.2%
Return on total assets® EEEDREO 12.9% 9.3% 18.2%
Net cash from operation KSR EFE 492,267 553,428 180,742

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2021 2022
20204 20214 2022%F
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR#FT) (AR®BFIT) (AR®T )
Total assets BEE 2,675,408 3,237,621 4,080,004

of which: Hep e

Bank balances and cash IRITHESBNIR S 139,603 180,854 202,057
Total liabilities me s 1,156,280 1,469,877 1,617,361

of which: Hr -

Bank and other borrowings RITRHE MK 376,864 522,015 785,972
Total equity R 1,519,128 1,767,744 2,462,643
Number of shares in issue BEETRMHEE (BER)

(million shares) 1,600 1,600 1,600
Net assets per Share (RMB) BEREEFEARE) 0.949 1.105 1.539
Gearing ratio® BEEAMFAELERO 24.8% 29.5% 31.9%
Notes: BsE
1) Adjusted profit and total comprehensive income for the year is calculated by (1) FREHE BN RE2EBEALEIIZFA

profit and total comprehensive income for the year less fair value change on AR EERABRERENIARERT
contingent consideration payables. BEEBTESL -
@ Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit and total comprehensive @) W B HRE T F AR R 2R ALLRE
income for the year by total equity. MRIAMERERFTES T - 4
©)] Return on assets is calculated by dividing profit and total comprehensive €)) BEEDREDBFRNN RE2EBALR
income for the year by total assets. HBRALEETESE -
4) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing bank and other borrowings by total (4 BEBRBRLETIHRITREAGERERALL
equity. EEETEST - 4
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)
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Dear Shareholders,

I would like to express my gratitude for your interest in and support for
Perennial Energy Holdings Limited (“Perennial Energy” or the “Company”).

Over the past year, the Company has sought opportunities in a changing
market environment to drive steady business growth amidst macroeconomic
pressures and recurring pandemic. On behalf of the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to our shareholders the
annual results and operation position of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “year under
review”).

Industry Review

Energy supply is critical to national economy, people’s livelihood and
national security. The coal industry remains the anchor of China’s energy
supply over the year. China’s raw coal production throughout the year
amounted to 4.45 billion tonnes, representing a growth of 8% over last year.

With the support of national policies, Guizhou Province successfully
stabilised its economic fundamentals and achieved an annual economic
growth of 2.0%. Of which, the primary, secondary and tertiary industries
grew by approximately 4%, 2% and 1.5% respectively, demonstrating
the importance of the primary and secondary industries (including energy,
mining, steel making and manufacturing industries) in the region. The energy
supply in Guizhou Province was strong, with annual raw coal production
reaching 128,136,000 tonnes.

In 2022, coal prices continued to run high due to various factors such as
market supply and demand. The demand for coking coal in the Southwest
region is driven by the continued robust development of infrastructure and
industrial activities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
TRWEERE)

Business Review

The Group mainly owns and operates three underground coal mines,
namely Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine, and Xiejiahegou Coal
Mine, in Panzhou City, Guizhou Province, of which the permitted annual
production capacity of each of Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal
Mine is 600,000 tonnes respectively, while the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine is a
relatively new asset, with a permitted annual production capacity of 450,000
tonnes.

During the year under review, raw coal production of the Group was
1,382,519 tonnes, representing an increase of approximately 0.9% over
1,369,544 tonnes last year. Total sales volume of coal products from the
Group’s three self-operated underground coal mines was approximately
1,066,877 tonnes, which remained relatively stable as compared to
approximately 1,065,233 tonnes last year.

The annual average selling price of clean coal of the Group was
approximately RMB2,347.09 per tonne, representing an increase of
approximately 21.8% over approximately RMB1,926.85 last year. Stable
production volume and higher sales prices drove the growth of the Group’s
revenue. As a result, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB1,784.0 million during the year under review, representing an
increase of approximately 15.7% over RMB1,541.4 million last year.
Gross profit and gross profit margin was approximately RMB1,117.6
million and approximately 62.6% respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 21.7% and 3.0 percentage points respectively over last year.

E e

RN EBHA RCEMIREINE BN =
B TBEE - BIAT RBEHE - BL A LBEeE - R
FOMBERE - EPARERREALERS
B 89T A] 4F EE AE 2600,00008 1M & 5081
BIEREBINEE - ERTAIFFERE/R450,000
Mg o

REEEFE @ NEEREE=Z41,382,519
W - EXEF 2 491,369,544 ER490.9% © A&
SEBEHM =@ T B R B IR EMRBHE
B E23£491,066,877HF + & EF 2 491,065,233
MEAR AR S T A% -

REBEFREFTHEBEEBEHARYE
2,347.097C * W EF 2 AR#91,926.857T15
n#21.8% - BEMES MR MHESERS
HEBREMNIER - Bl - NEBREEFE
BERFZHAREA,784.08 8 REFZ
WARBA5414ABE T ERH15.7% © £F|
MEFNEDFNAHARE1,1176EETREY
62.6% * WMEAF 5 Al EHRA21.7%M3.08 5D
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Prospects

With the adjustment of the pandemic control policies and the
implementation of policies to support the real estate industry, it is conducive
to improving the production capacity and profitability of the steel industry
and the operation of coking coal enterprises.

According to the “Opinions of the State Council on Supporting Guizhou to
Break New Paths in the Development of Western in the New Era”, Guizhou
will continue to maintain the development path set by the 14th Five-
Year Plan, build a solid foundation for the long-term development of the
region, and further deepen the strategic restructuring of the coal industry.
The acceleration of infrastructure investment and industrial investment
in southwest China after the pandemic has driven the increase in energy
demand and demand for coking coal for steel making.

Following a prudent and optimistic development approach, the Company
will adhere to our business motto of “safety first, customers first”, pay close
attention to market conditions and adjust our operating strategies in a timely
manner. We will strengthen our production safety management, organise
production carefully, and strive to seize more development opportunities for
the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

EEWREE(E)

Acknowledgement ESE )

With generous support from government departments at all levels, long- BB REBBESRBUTEPIOARDZFH
term trust from business partners, and the concerted efforts of our entire EHEBHORBAET BE2BEINELE

employees, | firmly believe that we will be able to achieve better business 71 BRI AR R —FES MG a %
results in the coming year. | would like to express my utmost appreciation ol RGBT ASES HNENHNER

for the support and assistance from across various sectors that the Group ATBUASHZENHE |
enjoyed.

Yu Bangping RIPF

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer EEEFEHRTHAAH
Hong Kong, 21 March 2023 A% - 20237F3H21H
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The Company’s directors (the “Directors”) and senior management of the
Group as at 21 March 2023 are as follows:

Directors

Mr. Yu Bangping, aged 54, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
executive Director of the Company, joined the Group in 1990 and is a
founder of the Group. Mr. Yu is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). He is also
a director of & M A 2= F E 82 )R # % B R 2 A (Jiutai Bangda Energy
Development Co., Ltd*) (“Jiutai Bangda”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. He is responsible for the overall management and strategic
planning and development of the Group, including day-to-day business
management, overseeing sales and marketing matters as well as managing
external relationships with business partners.

Mr. Yu has more than 31 years of experience in the coal mining industry.
He has acted as the legal representative of both Hongguo Coal Mine and
Baogushan Coal Mine since the acquisition of such mines.

Apart from Mr. Yu's contributions to the Group, he was appointed as the
vice president of the township enterprises association in Liupanshui in 2004,
appointed as a deputy of the National People’s Congress of Pan county in
March 2005, recognised as a “Model Labourer” by the Liupanshui township
in April 2005, recognised as the 2008 outstanding private entrepreneur in
Guizhou Province, recognised as one of the top 10 influential entrepreneurs
in 2009, recognised as the “Guizhou Star of Entrepreneurship” in 2010
and recognised as a “Model Labourer” in Guizhou in April 2010. Mr. Yu
has also been recognised for his social contributions to his community. He
was recognised for his individual support of social welfare in April 2007,
recognised for his outstanding contributions for disaster relief in April 2008
and recognised as the “Moral Model” for helping others in Liupanshui in
November 2010.

Mr. Yu graduated from & /I & ¥ @ 5 H ¥ 2 & (Guizhou Province

Professional Secondary School*) majoring in underground mining. He is the
father of Mr. Yu Zhilong, an executive Director.

*  For identification purpose only

EENEREEEBEREFE

R-ZE-=F=ZA=-+—8 ARQREE(E
EDRAEESHEEBNT

=2

RIBFELE - 5458 0 RARFEF ~ 1THA
HRNITESE - M1990F IMAREKE - I 5
REBRBA - REETRAERRFIREEES
(REBREE])IF - RAREMARHERE
RABERAR([ARBE] ARF—HE
EMfBRR) 2EE - REEREENEBEE
BERRBEREEER  BREATEKER &
BHERTSEHEEAREREEKAER
FEEYINERRAR

RAERRBIXEEENFLER - KAK
AT SRR S B L R DA SR ik 5 IR R )
ERE -

BRARSEEHRNERENERSN - 1020045 %
ZERSNEKBECEHBEREIER - 72005
FIARZERBHEARRE - R20055F4 A
BNERKET A S B)ES | - H2008FHE
METREFRELER - R2009FET A
TAREEFENNBERZ— - K20105F
FAAEIEMNEIEY 2 I RN2010F4 AT AE
MIBENEE | - REETEREEMRAOHET
BAMERE - HH2007F4 A REBEAL TS
BMMZ FFMERE - 720084 A HUHERUL
FELREERMERY - WHR20106F11 A
B RNBKPARL EEIES ] -

RELBERENEEBTEEEDR  HE
R TRE - WRARITEFRIERENR
e

v EHES

<
<
b S

11



12

Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A & BERIZERER QA

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

EXkeREREREHE(B)

Mr. Sun Dawei, aged 50, joined the Group in 2008 and was appointed as
executive Director in March 2018. He is also a director of Jiutai Bangda. Mr.
Sun is responsible for the daily business operations of the Group. He has
over 13 years of experience in coal mining industry. Mr. Sun graduated from
Dafang County Vocational High School.

Mr. Wang Shize, aged 54, joined the Group in 2003 and was appointed as
executive Director in March 2018. He is also a director of Jiutai Bangda.
Mr. Wang is responsible for the daily business operations of the Group. He
is also responsible for administration and human resources management
of the Group. Mr. Wang has over 18 years of experience in the coal mining
industry. From June 2011 to November 2017, he was the supervisor of &
M FBEEERFEE AR A F) (Guizhou Bangda Energy Development Co., Ltd.*)
(“Guizhou Bangda”). Mr. Wang holds a diploma in economic management
awarded by Guizhou Provincial Party School.

Mr. Li Xuezhong, aged 54, joined the Group in 2018 and was appointed
as executive Director and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in
March 2018 and April 2019 respectively. Mr. Li assists the Chief Executive
Officer in handling PRC legal matters of the Group. He has taken senior
management roles in different enterprises in China and possesses years
of experience in corporate management. Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree
in economics awarded by Shaanxi Institute of Finance and Economics.
He obtained his accountant qualification from Ministry of Personnel of the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Lau Kai Ming, aged 39, joined the Group in March 2021 as the Chief
Financial Officer and was appointed as executive Director in June 2022.
Mr. Lau is also a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”). He also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor’s degree in Commerce
awarded by Curtin University of Technology and Master’s degree in science
awarded by City University of Hong Kong and Manchester Metropolitan
University respectively. He is a member of each of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the CPA Australia, the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute, the Chartered Governance Institute and
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountant. Mr. Lau has extensive
experience in financial management, auditing and company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining the Group, he served as the Financial Controller of
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

*

For idehtification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)
)

Mr. Yu Zhilong, aged 35, was appointed as executive Director in September
2019. He was appointed as the manager of &/ AT ZEERFALEGRA A
% 53 /2 &) (Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy Development Co., Ltd. Electricity
and Machinery Branch*), the branch office of an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, in July 2016. He is also a director and the
legal representative of & /N & HiE & AR % AR A 7 (Guizhou Fu Bangda
Consultancy Services Co., Ltd.”) (“Guizhou Fu Bangda”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from Guizhou University
and holds a bachelor’s degree in business management. He also obtained
a bachelor’s degree in mining engineering awarded by R E#Z3 K2 (China
University of Mining and Technology*). Mr. Yu Zhilong is the son of Mr. Yu
Bangping, the Chairman of the Company.

Mr. Yu Xiao, aged 40, was appointed as executive Director in September
2019. Mr. Yu Xiao acted as the deputy general manager of Guizhou Bangda
from March 2017 to February 2019. He was appointed as the chief executive
officer of Jiutai Bangda in March 2019. Mr. Yu Xiao was appointed to certain
posts including accounting clerk, account manager and chief accountant
in finance department of &M iEReEFEILEREF A E (Guizhou Qiangui
Tianneng Coking Co., Ltd.*) from September 2006 to February 2017. Mr. Yu
Xiao currently acts as a committee member of #&% 2 #J{= A {EBi4L (Pan
County Rural Credit Union*). He graduated from Guizhou University and
holds a bachelor degree in management.

Mr. Fong Wai Ho, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2018. Mr. Fong is also the chairman of each
of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee. He
has 18 years of experience in auditing and business advisory services, he
is the founder and practitioner of UBC & Co., Certified Public Accountants
from March 2013 to present. Mr. Fong was the practicing director of
Andes Glacier CPA Limited from March 2017 to March 2020. He holds a
bachelor’s degree in business administration (Honours) in accountancy
and management information systems awarded by City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Fong is a practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong,
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as well as
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a
member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia and
the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada, respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

EXkeREREREHE(B)

Mr. Fong is currently an independent non-executive director of Global
Sweeteners Holdings Limited (stock code: 3889) and Great Wall Terroir
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Great Wall Belt & Road Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 524), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of CT
Environmental Group Limited from August 2020 to September 2021, the
shares of which were delisted on the Stock Exchange with effect from 10
September 2021.

Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva, aged 38, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2018. Mr. De Silva is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He
has over 15 years of experience in the financial industry. From November
2017 to present, Mr. De Silva worked as a consultant for Ho Chi Minh City
Development Joint Stock Commercial Bank. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in commerce and economics awarded by Monash University Australia.

Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha, aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in November 2018. Ms. Cheung is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.
She has over 10 years of experience in private equity investments and
mergers and acquisitions. From November 2017 to May 2019, Ms. Cheung
worked as finance executive at Breakthrough Innovation Lab, a venture
builder of many promising and innovative tech startups. She currently acts as
investment manager of Animoca Brands Corporation Limited (ASX: AB1). Ms.
Cheung holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics and Mathematics awarded
by Brandeis University.

Mr. Wang Xiufeng, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in September 2019. Mr. Wang has over 33 years’
experience in coal mining industry. He had worked in & M & % & 5% 5+ 51
%% Bt (Guizhou Coal Mine Design and Research Institute*) (“Guizhou Coal
Mine Institute”) and has been the mine design project leader in various
coal mines. Mr. Wang was the chairman of the board of directors and
legal representative of & /I H&ihE T2 FR & E2 7 (Guizhou Coal Mine
Geological Engineering Co., Ltd.*) from December 2012 to April 2018. He
was also the vice president of Guizhou Coal Mine Institute from March
2003 to April 2018. Mr. Wang was the senior engineer of Guizhou Coal
Mine Institute from March 1997 to April 2018. He obtained a certificate of
Registered Mining Mineral Exploration & Design Engineer from the Ministry
of Construction of the People’s Republic of China.

*  For idehtification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

He is currently an independent non-executive director of Feishang
Anthracite Resources Limited (stock code: 1738) which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He graduated from Chongging University and
holds a bachelor’s degree in underground coal mining.

Senior Management

Mr. Liu Yongfu, aged 51, joined the Group in 2017 and has been the
Financial Director since April 2017. Mr. Liu is responsible for the financial
management of the Group. From April 2017 to present, he has acted as
financial controller at Jiutai Bangda. Mr. Liu obtained the qualification as
certified public accountant in China. He obtained the qualification as an
intermediate accountant in China. Mr. Liu obtained a diploma in material
management from & M & ¥ & £ X (Guizhou Materials School*). He
graduated from R EH (Central Party School*) with diploma in economic
management.

Mr. Yu Honggang, aged 49, joined the Group in 2008 and has been the
General Manager of the Group since September 2016. Mr. Yu is responsible
for the Group’s production and safety management. From 2015 to
present, He has been the general manager of the Hongguo Coal Mine and
Baogushan Coal Mine. From 2008 to 2015, Mr. Yu worked at Hongguo Coal
Mine during which he acted as chief of Hongguo Coal Mine from 2013 to
2015. Mr. Yu holds a bachelor’s degree in coal mining technology awarded
by Hunan University of Science and Technology. He also graduated from &
MA LB S EE 2R (Guizhou Province Professional Secondary School*)

majoring in mining technology.

Mr. Tong Yu, aged 49, joined the Group in 2017 and has been the Deputy
General Manager since June 2017. Mr. Tong is responsible for the sales and
business development of the Group. He has over 17 years of experience in
the coal mining industry. From June 2017 to present, Mr. Tong has acted
as deputy general manager of Jiutai Bangda. He graduated from Guizhou
University with a diploma in business management. Mr. Tong also obtained
a bachelor’s degree in marketing at Xinan University. He received his
qualification certificate of specialty and technology specializing in business

economics.

*

For identification purpose only
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Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A & BERIZERER QA

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS (Continued)

EXkeREREREHE(B)

Mr. Wan Weiping, aged 60, joined the Group in 2009 and has been the
Chief Engineer and Technical Manager since September 2016. Mr. Wan is
responsible for the technical supervision of the Group. He graduated from jif
EIEEEMT (Xiangtan Mining Institute®) (now known as the Hunan University
of Science and Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr.
Wan was qualified the professional technical position as senior engineer by
the personnel department of Guizhou Province.

Mr. Wang Long, aged 48, joined the Group in 2011 and has been the Chief
Accountant since September 2016. Mr. Wang is responsible for accounting
supervision of the Group. From September 2016 to present, he has worked
in the financial affairs department of Jiutai Bangda as Chief Accountant.
Mr. Wang holds a diploma in economics and bank management. He was
qualified as registered accountant.

* For ideyication purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Review

As geopolitical conflicts and inflation overshadow global recovery, 2022 also
presented significant challenges to China. Amid an unstable international
environment, China had to deal with its own weakened demand, disrupted
supply chains, as well as the most broad-spread waves of novel coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) outbreaks since the country brought the virus under control
years ago. Overcoming the unprecedented pressure, China still concluded
2022 with a 3.0% YoY GDP growth, a sharp slowdown compared to the
impressive growth rate a year ago, but still outstanding among peers.
In contrast with the dampened retail consumption, the value added of
China’s industrial enterprises above the designated size (enterprises with
revenue from the principal business over RMB20 million) increased by
3.6% compared to the year before, providing strong support for the overall
economy. The country’s crude steel output also reached 1,013 million
tonnes during the year, showing a solid demand in the coking coal market.

Guizhou’s economic development entered a new phase where the quality
of the economic structure outweighs the mere growth rate, as the province
exhibited resilience against extreme weather conditions and its biggest
COVID-19 disruptions, and grew its GDP by 2.0%. Among all sectors, its
industrial investment in 2022 grew by 9.1% compared to a year ago. As the
region’s industry grows and the need for infrastructure and steel persists,
the demand for coking coal remained strong for the year. On the other
hand, the international energy shortages also coincided with the domestic
demand-supply unbalance, pushing the coal price to new highs. Though
the price was eventually brought under control by sufficient government
policies, the coal market indeed benefitted the upstream miners and
manufacturers during the year.
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Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A & BERIZERER QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BB RN (E)

Business Review

The Group mainly owns and operates three underground coal mines in
Panzhou City, Guizhou Province, including #2441 R $EAT R/ H& (Pan County
Hongguo Town Hongguo Coal Mine*) (‘Hongguo Coal Mine”), S8 8441 SRIEE)
AL (Pan County Hongguo Town Baogushan Coal Mine*) (“Baogushan
Coal Mine”) and #2835 803 SOM B K& (Pan County Yangchang Village
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine*) (“Xiejiahegou Coal Mine”).

Acquisition of Xiejiahegou Coal Mine

Xiejiahegou Coal Mine was acquired by Jiutai Bangda, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, on 1 January 2020. As stated in the
Company’s announcements dated 5 November 2019, 22 November
2019, 26 November 2019 and 2 January 2020 and the Company’s circular
dated 19 December 2019, the vendors of the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine (the
“Vendors”) guarantee to Jiutai Bangda that each of audited net profit for
the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 generated by the
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine shall not be less than RMB150.0 million (the “Profit
Guarantee”). In the event of breach of the Profit Guarantee, the Vendors
shall pay the compensation(s) to Jiutai Bangda, subject to an overall cap of
RMB300.0 million. On the other hand, in the event where any of the audited
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2022 generated by the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine is greater than
RMB150.0 million, Jiutai Bangda shall pay bonus(es) to the Vendors, subject
to an overall cap of RMB300.0 million.

The audited net profit of the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “year under review”) exceeded RMB150 million,
meeting the Profit Guarantee for the year ended 31 December 2022.

For the year under review, a fair value loss of contingent consideration
payable of approximately RMB20.4 million (2021: RMB308.5 million) is
incurred. Since there is no significant change in the financial forecast and
the actual financial performance for the year under review, the amount was
adjusted only according to the discounting of the expected cash settlement
over the contractual term of the consideration payables at a discount rate,
which represented additional payment pertaining to the Group’s overall cap
amount of consideration payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
SEEERE NG

BRRHE
TRET-ERENERERFERRE :

Resource and Reserve
The following table indicates the resource and reserve data of the three

mines:

Hongguo Baogushan Xiejiahegou
Coal Mine Coal Mine Coal Mine
ALRENE BAWLEE HSOBETE
Resource data under the JORC Code RIFJORCREIBENERE
Summary (as at 31 December 2022)' 5 (FA2022F12H831 1)1
Measured resources (kt) HEERE(THE) 17,076 10,198 -
Indicated resources (kt) ZHlERE(TRE) 7,800 24,700 15,470
Inferred resources (kt) & R=(Fm) 13,000 7,000 10,360
Reserve data under the JORC Code RIEJORCHREIBIEMHEH
Summary (as at 31 December 2022) 1% (R2022%12A831H)"
Proved reserves (kt) FHEMFE(TH) 12,606 7,368 -
Probable reserves (kt) BERE A= (FE) 5,910 18,790 9,590
Marketable reserves? A EREE?
— Clean coal (kt)® —fE R (g )° 9,757 13,733 5,526
— Middling coal (kt) —HRE(FmE) 3,425 4,865 1,070
- Sludge coal (kt) — et (FmE) 1,061 1,569 1,271
Notes: PIE
(1) The resource and reserve data of the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan (1) AL REE B AL EE 22021412 A31
Coal Mine are based on the resource and reserve review report provided by AMEIRE &2 SR RR B I LR IKET
Dr. C.S. Kong of Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited (“Ravia”) as of 31 EBABRAR([HE AT EKE TR
December 2021 while the resource and reserve data of the Xiejiahegou Coal HOWERERFEEFERE - MART
Mine are based on the resource and reserve review report provided by Mr. BERBERE2022F12A31HHNEIRE Ri#
Leung Karfai of BAW Mineral Partners Limited (‘BAW”) as of 31 December EHRAREESBERRAR(ERE]
2022. The resource and reserve data as of 31 December 2022 of the Hongguo MRSZEEERUNERFETEMS -
Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine have been adjusted by the measured A RBEEREA I EEEE2022F12 A31
resource data and the proved reserve data as at 31 December 2021, after HWERE kEE8EEREN20216F12
deducting the respective data extracted from the mining activities between 1 AMBMGFHARESRBERIEREELA
January 2022 and 31 December 2022. . Wk B20229F1 18 £2022F12 A
31 A HiR BRI E 8115 DA ABRE SR -
©) The marketable reserves of each of the three final products (clean coal, @ ARERE 8 LERERRHSONERE=
middling coal and sludge coal) of the Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal EHEKERBE - AERRER)S8/MA
Mine and Xiejiahegou Coal Mine were estimated by using the historical HE M E B BF 202291 51 HZE2022F
average recoveries of coal preparation from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 12 431 BRI 2 F I BRI Tib T ©
2022.
@) The clean coal produced from the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal @) AT TR B A L BRI T A EE RO RSB KD

Mine are mostly 1/3 coking coal whereas the clean coal produced from the
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine are mostly coking coal.

DRVBEE - MBI FONBREREAT EENTE
BRRED DR
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.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BB RN (E)

Production

As at 31 December 2022, each of the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan
Coal Mine had a permitted annual capacity of 600,000 tonnes, whereas the
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine had a permitted annual capacity of 450,000 tonnes,
totalling 1.65 million tonnes for the overall permitted annual capacity of the
Group’s mines. Below sets forth the actual production and utilisation rate
for the Group’s coal mines for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

*E

M2022F12 318 AT REBREAILERE
& B A] F EE 48 £600,0001 5008
PETE YR A] 4F EE A5 45 450,00000 7N 45 (B (78
R FERA L A1.6588ME - TRH
PR E E 20224 22021412 A31 H [EFEA
SEBEEC BERESEREHAE

2022 2021
Annual Actual Utilisation Actual Utilisation
Capacity production rate production rate
FERE BERES ER=E BERES EEER
(tonnes) (tonnes) (Percentage) (tonnes)  (Percentage)
(mg) (M) (BZLE) (mg) (BZLE)
Hongguo Coal Mine A REE 600,000 509,100 84.8% 520,549 86.8%
Baogushan Coal Mine BALEE 600,000 463,911 77.3% 439,228 73.2%
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine WEOABLEE 450,000 409,508 91.0% 409,767 91.1%
83.8% 83.0%

1,382,519

For the year under review, the Group’s total raw coal production was
1,382,519 tonnes, of which 509,100 tonnes, 463,911 tonnes and 409,508
tonnes of raw coal were produced by Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan
Coal Mine, and Xiejiahegou Coal Mine, respectively, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.2%, an increase of approximately 5.6% and a
decrease of approximately 0.1% YoY, respectively. The changes in actual
annual production are relatively mild and fall within reasonable year-to-
year fluctuations. The utilisation rate of Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan
Coal Mine, and Xiejiahegou Coal Mine was approximately 84.8%, 77.3%
and 91.0%, respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 2.0
percentage points (“ppt”), an increase of approximately 4.1 ppt and a
decrease of 0.1 ppt YoY, respectively. In total, all three mines produced
1,382,519 tonnes of raw coal, which increased by approximately 0.9% from
1,369,544 tonnes in 2021.

1,369,544

REEFE AEEHNRELEER
1,382,519 MF + & 71 509,100 Wf - 463,911 lf
%.409,508ME [REE 755> Bl AL SR EHE - BAL
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2.2%  HIN%I5.6% Kk 490.1% o EERF
EEFCREE] - BREENRLZBIEHE
A o ALRERE - BALERERHRTEERES
FRED B4 £84.8% ~ 77.3% 591.0% * 7
RIFEILLR D Z2.0EF SR (TED B ~ 350
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Coal Processing

The Group operates its own coal preparation plant, #A LB (Songshan
Coal Preparation Plant*) and #Z)W & BB (Xiejiahegou Coal Preparation
Plant*) for processing the raw coal extracted from its coal mines. As at 31
December 2022, the capacity held by Songshan Coal Preparation Plant
is 2.4 million tonnes per annum. Newly launched during the year under
review, Xiejiahegou Coal Preparation Plant currently holds a capacity of

approximately 1.8 million tonnes per annum.

Before the completion of the construction of Xiejiahegou Coal Preparation
Plant, in order to reduce the operation costs of Xiejiahegou Coal Mine, the
Group and &M FEAERFAZEAR AR EREN RS HIERE (Guizhou Bangda
Energy Development Company Limited Pan County Yunixiang Changxing
Coal Mine*) (“Changxing Coal Mine”), a connected person of the Company,
entered into the coal washing and processing service agreement on 26
May 2020, pursuant to which the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine commissioned
the Changxing Coal Mine for coal washing and processing services for a
term from 1 June 2020 to 31 December 2022. Details were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 May 2020.

During the year under review, a total of 1,367,083 tonnes of raw coal was
processed, of which 970,202 tonnes, 58,558 tonnes and 338,323 tonnes
were processed by Songshan Coal Preparation Plant, Changxing Coal Mine,
and Xiejiahegou Coal Preparation Plant, respectively.

EREFHEDT(E)

BT

ANER B B R BRI LU A R e A ZORT T e
- EE IR R A R AT INT o 72022
F12A318 - MIWEEBREFAERE N R2.4
BB o 5 BIREF [E A& AL B ZOME SR
B B BT RE DA R B F1.8E & o

R SORNE SRR TEA S AT - AR SN
ERIE 2 SR - 202095268 © AN
EHEANREEA TSN EERRREEGREAD
AR ERN e 8 B R ([ 8 JEE AT R
ZRUEENIER - Bt - #EODBEEET
S RIR S R N TR - BFR A2020
F6A1HZE2022F12A318 - BRAFFEHN
AARBEA2020%5 26 HHY A% o

REIBEFE K22 451,367,0830F & & H N
LR 2 RS N A 5RO S R A R
£ 511 A970,20218 - 58,5588 £2 338,323 °




22

Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A & BERIZERER QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BB RN (E)

Sales Volume and Average Selling Price
Below sets forth the sales volumes and average selling prices of the Group’s
coal products for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively:

TR B AR B R E RN B E2022F
2021512 A31H L FERHE M FHEE -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021

Sales Average Sales Average

Unit volume selling price volume selling price

By HE THEE HE THEE

(RMB/unit) (RMB/unit)

(AR¥ E1{1) (AR¥ #h1)

Clean coal - internally T — N EE tonne M 719,079 2,347.09 744,173 1,926.85

produced

Middling coal apes tonne 1§ 223,963 317.98 268,988 364.49

Sludge coal T tonne 1 109,039 153.26 41,034 70.53

Raw coal JRIE tonne M 14,796 239.32 11,038 314.28

Sales of coalbed methane gas B R IEESE cubic 26,597,991 0.18 17,119,187 0.18
meter

The coal market has experienced significant volatility during the year
under review. The Group’s average selling price of clean coal increased
by approximately 21.8% YoY to approximately RMB2,347.09/tonne (2021:
approximately RMB1,926.85/tonne). The average selling price of middling
coal decreased by approximately 12.8% YoY to approximately RMB317.98/
tonne (2021: approximately RMB364.49/tonne). As a result of policies aiming
to improve the supply-demand balance and a continuous improvement in
the domestic economy with the pandemic under control in Mainland China,
the average coal price in the market experienced volatility, with that of clean
coal products continuing in an upward trend. Such trends were reflected in
the average selling price of the Group’s products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The Group’s raw coal is washed and cleaned into clean coal at Songshan
Coal Preparation Plant, Changxing Coal Mine and Xiejiahegou Coal
Preparation Plant before the coal products are sold to the customers. During
the year under review, the sales volume of clean coal internally produced
amounted to 719,079 tonnes, representing a slight drop of approximately
3.4% YoY from approximately 744,173 tonnes in 2021. The sales volume
of middling coal dropped by approximately 16.7% YoY to 223,963 tonnes
(2021: approximately 268,988 tonnes). The sales volume of sludge coal
increased by approximately 165.7% YoY to approximately 109,039
tonnes (2021: approximately 41,034 tonnes). The sales volume of raw coal
increased by approximately 34.0% to approximately 14,796 tonnes (2021:
approximately 11,038 tonnes). In total, the sales volume of coal products
amounted to approximately 1,066,877 tonnes (2021: approximately
1,065,233 tonnes), and remained relatively stable.

Financial Review

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately RMB1,784.0 million (2021: approximately RMB1,541.4
million) from the production and sales of clean coal, middling coal, sludge
coal, and coalbed methane gas, representing an increase of approximately
15.7% YoY. The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

were summarised as follows:
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2022 2021

Percentage to Percentage to
RMB’000 total revenue RMB’000 total revenue
{48 (= Urea
ARBETT Bok AREETFTT Bkt

Sales of coal products HIREmIHERR
- Clean coal — B 1,687,745 94.6% 1,433,911 93.0%
- Middling coal — B 71,216 4.0% 98,044 6.4%
- Sludge coal — et 16,711 0.9% 2,894 0.2%
- Raw coal —RE 3,541 0.2% 3,469 0.2%
Sales of methane gas HERIHERE 4,820 0.3% 3,081 0.2%
100.0% 1,541,399 100.0%

1,784,033
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BB RN (E)

Consistent with the Group’s strategy, clean coal remains the principal
product of the Group and the Group has been adhering to the strategy of
increasing the proportion of clean coal products. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the proportion of revenue generated from the sale of clean
coal increased to approximately 94.6% (2021: approximately 93.0%).

During the year under review, the Group’s sales revenue of clean coal
increased by approximately 17.7% to approximately RMB1,687.7 million
(2021: approximately RMB1,433.9 million), sales revenue of middling coal
decreased by approximately 27.4% to approximately RMB71.2 million
(2021: approximately RMB98.0 million), sales revenue of sludge coal
increased by approximately 477.4% to approximately RMB16.7 million
(2021: approximately RMB2.9 million), sales revenue of raw coal remained
relatively stable at approximately RMB3.5 million (2021: approximately
RMB3.5 million), sales revenue of coalbed methane gas increased by
approximately 56.4% to approximately RMB4.8 million (2021: approximately
RMB3.1 million). The increase in total revenue during the year under review
was mainly attributable to the growth in the sales of clean coal resulting
from an increase in average coal selling price.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group recorded an increase in its gross profit from approximately
RMB918.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB1,117.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing
an increase of approximately 21.7% YoY. The gross profit margin for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately 62.6% (2021:
approximately 59.6%), representing an increase of approximately 3.0 ppt
YoY. The increase in gross profit and gross profit margin was a result of
the approximately 15.7% increase in revenue and the Group’s continued

improvement in cost efficiencies during the year under review.

Other Income

The Group’s other income increased by approximately 297.1% YoY
to approximately RMB52.8 million during the year under review from
approximately RMB13.3 million for 2021. Such increase was primarily
attributable to (1) the increase in government grants in connection
with meeting the production volume target of coal products and safety
requirements from the local government; and (2) the Group sold internally
gas-generated power to efficiently use the power.

EAEERRE B BEDARAEEEE
Em o AEE—HRFRAEEEDLOINE
BE o Bl E 2022412 A31 B LFE @ HERE
T A U R EE (38 DN 22 4994.6% (2021 4F = 4Y
93.0%) °

REIEFE - NEBEBEHEE RGN
17.7% =4 AN R#1,687.7 5 Bt (20214 :
HAR1,4339B 8 T) : PEHEKERE
LH2T A% EHAREETI.2HE (20214 ¢
HMARE98.08ET) : HEBEEWRILINE
ATTA%EH ANRE16.7A B T (20214F © 4
ARMB29\E )  REHEERFEHET
RHAREISBHET(2021F - HARE3S
BETT)  HERBEEREIEINL56.4%E4)
AREEABEETL(2021F : YARKIAEE
7L) o REIEFE B NSIEINEZHEER T
HEREE LR - SBEREEAMER -

EFRERZE
REBHENBEE2021F128318 LFE
HARKEII85EBETILMEE E2022512 A
SIHIEFEHARE,1176EET * FLLiE
18 4921.7% - E E2022F12 A31 B L FEH
EFI R %) 562.6% (20214 : 4959.6% ) ' [
LEIE INAI3.01E B 75 B o EFI REF EIL N TY
P FA B B A 2 IS 38 DN 4915.7 % R AN SR B AK,
RGBS

HApg A
REEHMAB2021FHARK1B3EE
TR K297 1% ZEIEFEH AR
52.8BETT - AR 2B AN (1) E=E K
E A EE R IE T RE R T BT I E & 2 1%
ERANBUTAEBIEN : RQAEBESBEX
EREANMHENGELORREEIE -



Annual Report 2022 £ #§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Fair Value Change of Contingent Consideration Payables

The fair value change of contingent consideration payables is derived
from the change of expected present value of the remaining consideration
payable by the Group in respect of its acquisition of the Xiejiahegou
Coal Mine and the projected performance of the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine
under the Profit Guarantee, which consists of compensation and bonus
using discounted cash flow method. As at 31 December 2022, the
contingent consideration payables in respect of the Profit Guarantee
were approximately RMB395.2 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB631.6 million) while a fair value loss on contingent consideration
payable of approximately RMB20.4 million (2021: approximately RMB308.5
million) was recognised in profit or loss during the year under review. With
no significant change in the financial forecast and the actual financial
performance for the year under review, the amount was recognized
only based on the discounting of the expected cash settlement over the
contractual term of the consideration payables at a discount rate, which
represents additional payment pertaining to the Group’s overall cap amount
of consideration payables.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses primarily comprise gain or loss on disposal/write-off
of property, plant and equipment and net exchange difference. The Group’s
other gains and losses changed from a net gain of approximately RMB1.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to a net loss of approximately
RMB4.9 million for the year under review, which was primarily attributable
to translation difference arising from the conversion of Hong Kong Dollar
(“HKD”) to RMB.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
24.8% YoY to approximately RMB72.5 million during the year under review
from approximately RMB58.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in transportation costs for
certain customers to which a large amount of sales volume of the Group’s
coal products was made and the Group borne the transportation costs.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 14.7% to
approximately RMB110.9 million during the year under review from
approximately RMB129.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was mainly brought by the continued implementation of stringent
cost control measure during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BB RN (E)

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased to approximately RMB77.2 million
during the year under review from approximately RMB2.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly brought by the research
and development expenses in relation to the mining technology and coal
seam studies which were incurred during the year under review.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs primarily comprised the interest expenses
on bank and other borrowing and interest expenses on secured bank
borrowings from factoring of bills receivables with full recourse from the
Group’s customers. Finance costs increased by approximately 25.5%
to approximately RMB28.9 million during the year under review from
approximately RMB23.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase was mainly due to the interest expenses arising from the increase
in average bank borrowings during the year under review.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, by excluding the impact from the fair value
change of contingent consideration payables on the Profit Guarantee, the
Group recorded a net profit of approximately RMB764.4 million during the
year under review (2021: approximately RMB610.3 million), representing an
increase of approximately 25.2% YoY. The increase was mainly resulted
from the improved sales revenue and gross profit margin.

While considering the fair value change of contingent consideration
payables arising from the acquisition of Xiejiahegou Coal Mine in 2020,
the Group recorded an increase in net profit to approximately RMB744.0
million with an increase of net profit margin to 41.7% during the year under
review (2021: approximately RMB301.8 million and approximately 19.6%,
respectively).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects

Shortly after China’s reopening, the Chinese New Year season arrived,
during which many citizens traveled across the country and gathered with
family and friends. The fact that the most important holiday of the year did
not trigger mass infection waves sent a positive signal as the country moves
away from COVID-19 restrictions. On 30 January 2023, China’s State
Council said at a press conference that it believes the domestic COVID-19
situation has entered a new phase of low infection, and the daily caseload
throughout the country is declining. The International Monetary Fund also
estimated China’s economic growth rate to pick up and reach 5.2% in 2023,
in deep contrast with the sharp global slowdown.

Boosted by hopes of the end of COVID-19 restrictions, China’s
infrastructure is being ramped up. Analysts from multiple research and study
institutions, including China Industrial Securities, China Minsheng Bank, and
BOC Research Institute (B3R 77 7t Pr), have estimated that the growth
momentum of investment in infrastructure will continue throughout 2023,
given its essential role in bolstering domestic consumption and stabilising
the country’s economy. Between a solid demand from fuel steel production
and strong fiscal policies to maintain the supply-demand balance, the
coking coal market is expected to remain strong but become less heated in
the coming year.

Among the major infrastructure projects across China, Guizhou’s Nayong-
Qinglong Expressway (#9%5 = A %) stands out, as its mega bridge over
Zang Ke River ( #£ # JT ) recently reported major progress. The bridge,
connecting many districts of Liupanshui City, is expected to shorten the
currently hour-long trip to minutes. In the meantime, Panzhou - Xingyi
Railway (# ), upon its expected completion in 2025, will expand the
high-speed rail network in the southwestern region of Guizhou, where the
Group’s coal mines and processing plants are located. These infrastructure
projects not only boost the regional energy and coking coal demand in the
coming years but also provide bright prospects for upgraded transportation

and a stronger economy.

While remaining cautious of market conditions, we are optimistic about the
Company’s long-term development. Looking ahead, we wish to realise our
vision of sustainable development of our business as well as our region’s
economy by promoting clean and efficient utilisation of the coal resources in
the Liupanshui region.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BB RN (E)

Liquidity and Financial Information

Bank Balances and Cash

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB202.1 million (2021: approximately RMB180.9 million).

Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, secured bank borrowings from factoring of bills
receivables with full recourse amounted to approximately RMB435.0 million
(31 December 2021: approximately RMB171.0 million). The effective interest
rate on the discounted bills was approximately 1% to 2% per annum during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately 1% to 2%).

As at 31 December 2022, secured bank borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB351.0 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB351.0 million). The effective interest rate on bank borrowings was 5.5%
per annum during the year under review (2021: 5.5%).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 0.32
(2021: approximately 0.30). Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total
bank and other borrowings divided by the total equity as at the end of the
year. The increased gearing ratio was mainly due to an increase in the bank
and other borrowings.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is subject to limited foreign currency exposure as its business
activities mainly take place in China and all sales and most of its costs are
denominated in the functional currency (RMB) of respective group entities.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is primarily Hong Kong dollars
as certain bank balances, deposits and accrued charges are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. Such risk may cause financial loss to us
due to a failure to discharge obligation by the counterparties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the top three trade
debtors accounted for approximately 61% and 78% of the Group’s total
trade receivables, respectively. In view of this, the management regularly
visits the customers relating to such trade receivables to understand
their business operations and cash flow position and follows up with the
subsequent settlement from the counterparties. The management delegates
a team of staff responsible for monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the management
considers that such credit concentration risk has been significantly
mitigated. Taking into account the financial condition of the customers,
their historical settlement pattern with no previous default and the forward-
looking information (such as the future coal prices and GDP growth of
China), the management considers that the trade and bills receivables as
low-risk with a low likelihood of default from the counterparties, based on
internal credit rating assessment.

In respect of other receivables, restricted bank deposits, and bank balances,
the management considers that no inherent material credit risk exists based
on the assessment of historical settlement records.

Liquidity Risk
As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded net current liabilities
of approximately RMB299.8 million, which was mainly attributable to
the contingent consideration payables to the Vendors for the Group’s
acquisition of the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group. The Directors are of the view that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable future
after taking into consideration of the cash flow forecasts, which assume the
continuity of normal business activity and indicate that the Group will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its operational, existing contractual debts and
capital expenditure requirements for the 12 month period from 31 December
2022.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease
liabilities and bank and other borrowings and is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to restricted bank deposits and bank balances.
The Group currently has no interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management closely monitors the Group’s exposure to future cash flow
interest rate risk as a result of changes in market interest rates and will
consider hedging the changes in market interest rates should the need
arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BB RN (E)

Capital Commitments and Expected Source of Funding

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments in respect of
property, plant and equipment and the acquisition of the Xiejiahegou Coal
Mine in Guizhou Province contracted for but not yet incurred in the amount
of approximately RMB3.5 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB17.7 million). The Group planned to finance the capital commitments
with internal resources.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, save for the contingent consideration payables
amounted to approximately RMB395.2 million (2021: approximately
RMB631.6 million) set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2021: nil).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 3,619 employees (31
December 2021: 3,098). During the year under review, staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration) totalled approximately RMB414.8 million (2021:
approximately RMB340.7 million). All members of the Group are equal
opportunity employers, with the selection, promotion and remuneration
of individual employees based on their suitability to the positions offered.
The Group provides defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident
Fund as retirement benefits for its employees in Hong Kong and provides
its employees in China with various benefit schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations in China. All of the Group’s employees are
required to undergo induction trainings before they commence work. In
addition, depending on the work nature, the Group’s employees are also
required to attend training pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Investment
Projects

During the year under review, the Group had no material acquisitions,
disposals, or investment projects for sale.

Final Dividend

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK12.50 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK3.75 cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Asset Charges

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings from factoring of bills
receivables with full recourse amounted to approximately RMB435.0 million
(31 December 2021: approximately RMB171.0 million) and the other bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB351.0 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB351.0 million) were secured by the pledge of the
Group’s bills receivables and the mining right of the Hongguo Coal Mine,
respectively.

Event After the Reporting Date

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that
has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in the exploration and mining of coking coal and
coal refinery in the People’s Republic of China. Details of the principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB281.4 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB330.1 million).

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 111 of this
annual report.

The Board has recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
HK12.50 cents (2021: HK3.75 cents) per Share for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Closure of Register of Members

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company (the “2023 AGM”) to be
held on Wednesday, 31 May 2023, and entitlement to the final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed on the dates as set out
below:

(i) For determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
2023 AGM:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents
for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office
inHongKong . ... At 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 24 May 2023

Closure of register of members
oftheCompany ................... Thursday, 25 May 2023 to
Wednesday, 31 May 2023
(both dates inclusive)

(ii) For determining shareholders’ entitlement to final dividend:

Ex-dividenddate ...................... Monday, 12 June 2023

Latest time to lodge transfer documents
for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office
inHongKong ... At 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 13 June 2023

Closure of register of members
oftheCompany ................ Wednesday, 14 June 2023 to
Friday, 16 June 2023
(both dates inclusive)

Recorddate ............. ... ... .. ...... Friday, 16 June 2023

Expected paymentdate................... Monday, 3 July 2023
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Closure of Register of Members (continued)

During the above closure periods of the register of members of the
Company, no transfer of Shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2023 AGM and to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than the aforementioned latest time.

Financial Summary
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 209 of this annual report.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December
2022 including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 10 and pages 17 to
31 respectively of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year under review using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the Financial Highlights on pages 5 to 6 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Details of the investment properties held by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities
of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Arrangements for Directors to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of shares or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised such right during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB1.1 million (2021:
approximately RMB1.9 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 34.2% of the total sales
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
80.6% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases attributable to the
largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 10.9% of the
total purchases and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 42.7% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the total number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Bangping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sun Dawei

Mr. Wang Shize

Mr. Li Xuezhong

Mr. Lau Kai Ming (appointed on 1 June 2022)

Mr. Yu Zhilong

Mr. Yu Xiao

Mr. Lam Chik Shun, Marcus (resigned on 1 June 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fong Wai Ho

Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva

Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha

Mr. Wang Xiufeng

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Board shall have the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Mr. Lau Kai Ming, who
was appointed as a Director on 1 June 2022, shall hold office until the 2023
AGM and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 16.19 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but
not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Mr. Sun Dawei, Mr.
Yu Zhilong, Mr. Yu Xiao and Mr. Wang Xiufeng will retire by rotation at the
2023 AGM and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.
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Changes in Information of the Directors EEEREE

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities BEEIMES EMBRA(TEWRA])E
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, the changes in information of 13 51B()RTARE - ESHFBEEZHNT
the Directors are set out below:

Name of Director Details of changes
EEEB BEFIE
Mr. Yu Bangping His salary was adjusted to RMB896,480 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
RAFHLE Company with effect from 1 February 2023.
H2023F2 A1 HiE - EHBAERGFFH ARK96,4807T - HALRAIZMER
AIZAT o
Mr. Sun Dawei His salary was adjusted to RMB896,480 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
HERIBR A Company with effect from 1 February 2023.
H2023F2 A1 HE - HFHMARATFFH ARK896,4807T - HARA LHER
BT e
Mr. Wang Shize His salary was adjusted to RMB896,480 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
FHRAEAE Company with effect from 1 February 2023.
H2023F2 A1 B - EHPEIRAEFFH ARKEB96,4807T * HIARRIZIEBA
AT e
Mr. Yu Zhilong He obtained a bachelor’s degree in mining engineering awarded by 1 Bl % A £
REEELAE (China University of Mining and Technology®) on 8 July 2022,

R2022F7 A8H  REFBIEE RN EBRENHETIRELT B o

His salary was adjusted to RMB396,480 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 1 February 2023.
B2023F2 A1 B - EHPARAEFFH ARKEI96,4807T * HIARRIZIEBA

AE A -
Mr. Yu Xiao His salary was adjusted to RMB396,480 per annum paid by a subsidiary of the
G patas Company with effect from 1 February 2023.
B2023F2 A1 B e - AFHAR AT FEEH ARK396,4807T - BARRIZHMEA
AISEAT ©

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be bR PR RSN - SR EM ERRIRE £
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. FRBIZE13.51B(1)IEFLARKE -

*

For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under
the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former
Directors) of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles and in the Directors and officers liability insurance
maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts or appointment letters,
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Equity-linked Agreements
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not entered into
any equity-linked agreement.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company
were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register therein, or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of the Company:

Capacity/

Name of Director Nature of interest

BEEpE B0/ EmitE

Mr. Yu Bangping Interest in a controlled corporation

RAF LA (Note 2)
A E R (fHEE2)
Notes:
1. The percentage was calculated based on 1,600,000,000 Shares in issue as at

31 December 2022.

2. These Shares were held by Spring Snow Management Limited. The
issued share capital of Spring Snow Management Limited was held as to
approximately 48.27% by Lucky Street Limited which was wholly owned by
Mr. Yu Bangping. Accordingly, Mr. Yu Bangping was deemed to be interested
in 864,000,000 Shares held by Spring Snow Management Limited for the
purpose of the SFO.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures (continued)

Long positions in the shares of associated corporations:

Name of associated

Capacity/

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest
EFEHR RECEEERE B, RnitE
Mr. Yu Bangping Spring Snow Interest in controlled
RAFHLE Management Limited corporation (Note 2)
A E R (fiaE2)
Mr. Sun Dawei Spring Snow Interest in controlled
BERIBHAE Management Limited corporation (Note 3)
kB i (M)
Mr. Wang Shize Spring Snow Interest in controlled
FEEE Management Limited corporation (Note 4)
kB s (M E4)
Notes:
1. The percentage was calculated based on 10,000,000 issued shares of Spring

Snow Management Limited as at 31 December 2022.

2. Mr. Yu Bangping owned the entire issued share capital of Lucky Street
Limited which owned approximately 48.27% of the issued share capital of
Spring Snow Management Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yu was deemed
to be interested in 4,827,441 shares of Spring Snow Management Limited

held by Lucky Street Limited.

BEERTHREZNARG - 18R
R EEFNER RS (&)

RAEBSEERD BT R
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shares held (Note 1)
LA ER
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4,827,441 48.27
1,293,140 12.93
287,364 2.87
3T
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Limited 742022412 A 31 H #710,000,000/%
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures (continued)
Notes: (continued)

3. Mr. Sun Dawei owned the entire issued share capital of Black Pearl Limited
which owned approximately 12.93% of the issued share capital of Spring
Snow Management Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sun was deemed to be
interested in 1,293,140 shares of Spring Snow Management Limited held by
Black Pearl Limited.

4. Mr. Wang Shize owned the entire issued share capital of Seasons In The
Sun Limited which owned approximately 2.87% of the issued share capital
of Spring Snow Management Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang was
deemed to be interested in 287,364 shares of Spring Snow Management
Limited held by Seasons In The Sun Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to
the Company, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executive were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein; or were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2021, the following interests in Shares or underlying
Shares of 5% or more of the issued Shares of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest

TERRME LB ERME
Spring Snow Management Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2)
Ema AME2)
Lucky Street Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2)

A EEs (H2)

Ms. Qu Liumei Interest of spouse (Note 3)
BlxEzt Pie B s (PH7E3)

Notes:

1. The percentage was calculated based on 1,600,000,000 Shares in issue as at

31 December 2022.

2. The issued share capital of Spring Snow Management Limited was held as
to approximately 48.27% by Lucky Street Limited. Accordingly, Lucky Street
Limited was deemed to be interested in 864,000,000 Shares held by Spring
Snow Management Limited by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. Qu Liumei is the spouse of Mr. Yu Bangping and was therefore deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr. Yu Bangping (through Lucky
Street Limited and Spring Snow Management Limited) by virtue of the SFO.

>
> |
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#K2021F 128318 * AR EIEEHTRHF5%
A ERIAR 1 SABRARR (0 B T 31 i aR s 8 A AR
NAEIREREF KRG E336IEEFTENE
wERMA

e
Approximate %
Total number of of interests held
Shares held (Note 1)
hiFERERE
BHESH
BERGEH (MF7E1)
864,000,000 54.00
864,000,000 54.00
864,000,000 54.00

MI3E

1. ZBE>HER20022F12 A31HK

1,600,000,000% B BT (DFTE -

2. Lucky Street Limited A& Spring Snow
Management Limited 2 % 17 & & 4
48.27% ° HIft - REBEFHFLBE KO -
Lucky Street Limited# 4% /252 Spring Snow
Management Limited 3 /& &) 864,000,000
IR A A o

3. EMELTARBIEENRS - BLtR
BEAFARBERAKEARABTLEE
i% 3B Lucky Street Limited X Spring Snow
Management Limited#5 4 & B4 B&(n 7
G o



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to
the Company, no other person (other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company whose interests are disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Guizhou Bangda, an associate
of the connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of
the Listing Rules, and owned by Mr. Yu Bangping (Chairman and executive
Director) as to 90% and Mr. Yu Bangcheng (brother of Mr. Yu Bangping)
as to 10%, both being the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
prospectus of the Company dated 26 November 2018 (the “Prospectus”)),
was principally engaged in the mining, production and sale of coking coal,
whereas the Group has been principally engaged in the mining, production
and sale of 1/3 coking coal and coking coal. The Directors are of the view
that there is no actual or potential in competition in business between the
Group and Guizhou Bangda and there is a clear delineation of business
between the Group and Guizhou Bangda. The Directors are satisfied that
each of Mr. Yu Bangping, Mr. Sun Dawei and Mr. Wang Shize (who are the
executive Directors and the Controlling Shareholders) are able to perform
their roles in the Company independently. The Directors are also of the view
that the Group is capable of managing its business independently from the
Controlling Shareholders and their respective close associates during the

year under review.

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed above, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors or the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective close associates that had competed or
might compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the Group.
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Non-Competition Undertakings by Controlling

Shareholders

In order to avoid and safeguard any potential competition arising between
the Group and the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates, each of the Controlling Shareholders (including
Mr. Yu Bangping, Mr. Sun Dawei and Mr. Wang Shize) and Guizhou Bangda
(the “Covenantors”) has executed a deed of non-competition (“Deed
of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company. Details of the Deed
of Non-Competition are disclosed in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings” in the
Prospectus.

The Covenantors have made an annual confirmation that they have fully
complied with the Undertakings given by them in favour of the Company
pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of the compliance by the Covenantors
with the Undertakings during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Covenantors of the Undertakings given by them.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements

or Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any related company
(holding companies, subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries) was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications, competence and
job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and decided by the Board, having regard to
their experience, responsibilities, performance and the time devoted to the
Group’s business. The Company has adopted a Post-IPO share option
scheme on 15 November 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees.

Retirement Benefit Scheme
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 31
to the cogolidated financial statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is held by the public
under the Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 15 November
2018 which shall be valid and effective for a period ending on the tenth
anniversary of 12 December 2018, being the date of the listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange, subject to early termination by the Company in a
general meeting or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to provide an incentive or reward for the grantees for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant an option
to any full-time or part-time employees, potential employees, consultants,
executives or officers (including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of Shares available for issue under options which may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue immediately following completion of the Share Offer (but taking
no account of any Shares which may be allotted or issued pursuant to the
exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus)) (the
“Scheme Limit”), being 160,000,000 Shares. The total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each eligible person in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board provided
that it shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (jii) the
nominal value of a Share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company
by way of consideration for the grant. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time after
the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it
has been granted.

No share options have been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and no share options were outstanding as
at 31 December 2022 under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 160,000,000 Shares representing 10%
of the issued shares of the Company.

The number of share options available for grant under the Scheme Limit as
at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 was both 160,000,000.

BT El (@)

ARIRBEAR AR £ B4 B O (L B AT
HRGREESHESTRT - HABETE
ERUTREE  RENEH(BALLE
B )7ER P B RE R IR B 77 U
B (\EESHAMNELSEE  BIHfE
B R BRI IS S5 K8 ¢ Ri)
BAPTEE -

BEMBERER  ARARARRLBRERAR
AL 1ABTTRE - BRI RIZERET S
RN BRI R AR H MR RE REE
B &% B FH 05 & i AT e AT B A AT o
ATEERENRERESE2ENER
E o EEREEB10FRNSITEEMBR

e

1 o

HZE2022F 12 A31HIEFE - HEBERER
BREERERT BN - 176~ FEsHER  BR
202212 A31H » W EARITFERERE -

RS BHE - RIS ST TR
9 #8%15160,000,000A% /% 17 » (HANAFE 3
1TR%1910% -

R2022%1 A1 8 K2022F12 A31 8 » &
BRBETIHRFHNERESREY A
160,000,00017 °



Continuing Connected Transactions

On 26 May 2020, & /N A Z= F i 582 & F 45 40 & = )0 )& K & (Guizhou
Jiutai Bangda Pan County Yangchang Village Xiejiahegou Coal Mine*)
(“Xiejiahegou Coal Mine Branch”), a branch of Jiutai Bangda, and
EMNAERIRFAEFR AR BEN L S HERE (Guizhou Bangda Energy
Development Company Limited Pan County Yunixiang Changxing Coal
Mine*) (“Changxing Coal Mine Branch”), a branch of Guizhou Bangda,
entered into the coal washing and processing service agreement (“Coal
Washing and Processing Service Agreement”). Guizhou Bangda is
owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng
respectively. Mr. Yu Bangping is the Chairman and an executive Director.
Also, each of Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng is indirectly
interested in approximately 48.3% and 7.2% shareholding interest in Spring
Snow Management Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Hence, Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng are regarded as the
Controlling Shareholders. As such, Guizhou Bangda, an entity controlled
by Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng, is regarded as an associate
of the connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions as contemplated under the
Coal Washing and Processing Service Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
are disclosed as CCT No. 1 in the table below pursuant to Rule 14A of the
Listing Rules and set out in the announcement of the Company dated 26
May 2020.

On 16 December 2020, the Group entered into several continuing connected
transactions with the connected persons of the Company, namely Guizhou
Bangda, &/ £ #8454 85 JR B B & (£ A & (Guizhou Yue Bang Integrated
Energy Limited Liability Company*) (“Guizhou Yue Bang”) and #& /1| i 4L iE 45
A BeRAMR AR (Panzhou Hongda Integrated Energy Co., Ltd.*) (“Panzhou
Hongda”). Guizhou Bangda, as mentioned above, is an associate of the
connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of the
Listing Rules. Guizhou Yue Bang is owned as to 45% and 55% by Guizhou
Bangda and an independent third party of the Company respectively and is
therefore an associate of the connected person of the Company pursuant
to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules. Panzhou Hongda is owned by
Guizhou Bangda and an independent third party of the Company, as to 49%
and 51%, respectively and is therefore also an associate of the connected
person of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.
These continuing connected transactions are disclosed as CCT No. 2 to 6 in
the table below pursuant to Rule 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of each of
these continuing connected transactions are set out in the announcement
and the supplemental announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2020 and 21 December 2020 respectively.

*  For identification purpose only
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

On 22 February 2022, Xiejiahegou Coal Mine Branch and Changxing Coal
Mine Branch entered into the electricity supply agreement (the “Electricity
Supply Agreement”). As mentioned above, Guizhou Bangda, an entity
controlled by Mr. Yu Bangping and Mr. Yu Bangcheng, is regarded as an
associate of the connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions as contemplated under the Electricity Supply
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details are disclosed as CCT No. 7
in the table below pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 22 February 2022.

et
No.
kegE

BWE(E)

Name, date and term of the agreements
and service fee

fi#%H - AERARARRHE

Coal Washing and Processing Service Agreement
signed on 26 May 2020
202055 A26 RE T RAZ T A ENT AR

Term: From 1 June 2020 to 31 December 2022
HR : 52020567 1622022612431

Coal washing and processing services at cost of
RMB26.5 per tonne (tax exclusive)

REZENIRG  ERASEARKL5T
(F&7)

QOperations Agreement signed on 16 December 2020

R00F12R16R B2 E R

Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
#R  B2021F1 A1AZ20235 123317

Logistics Service at cost of RMB5 per tonne

IS AR BSTHBARERRG

_ &
> |

Transaction party
within the Group

ASERNRSR

Xiejiahegou Coal Mine Branch

ARTREEALNA

Jiutai Bangda
ARHE

Counterparty, nature and
description of the transaction

REUFH  HERHE

Coal washing and processing
services provided by
Changxing Coal Mine Branch

HEERENNRRE
REFENTRE

Logistics service provided by
Guizhou Bangda
mEMBERIRE

BERERS @)
R2022%F2 A22H -
BETE ) N EIR] N B TR
E D
EEINEEE

N SR

Purpose of transaction

PCELY

Washing and processing raw coal
extracted from Xiejiahegou Coal
Mine

FRNIRREAZT
BRENRE

For temporarily storage and
loading of Jiutai Bangda's coal
and coal side products on trains
for onward transportation at
Hugjiazhuang Railway Logistics
Centre

ERERARFEN R AR
ERUEEEE)E HHEE

REFRERMARLENEE

MMEOBERY AR NS
% ([EH{HER
KRB A RARPB L
MFBERE ETR AR A
ANRRBEANTHEBA it - RE LR
BIZE+HAZE -
SBRARRANFERER S o *E%th%ﬁﬁu
THAER TREBEAFTERERER

HRAR 75%7%2022@)%225&3/%0

ENHEHHERTRETHR

Consideration
for 2022

02K E
RMB'000
ARETL

1,952

3515
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) BERERS @)

16 December 2020
00512 A16RETNEAUTNEERS

Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
#R 8202151 A1AZ20235 123317

Purchase of electricity: RMB0.5038 per kiWh
(tax inclusive)
BES)  BTABARK05087(2H)

*  For identification purpose only

BALKRALE

Guizhou Yue Bang
mEMEAEER

Baogushan Coal Mine

BESNMEALRRRR

CCT Name, date and term of the agreements Transaction party Counterparty, nature and Consideration
No. and service fee within the Group description of the transaction Purpose of transaction for 2022
EmE
RERE  HEEE  BARARARREE AEERNRSE R4 HERFH R5EH N0ERE
RMB'000
ARETFT
Baogushan Gas Supply Agreement signed on BNARAEERREER Coalbed gas supplied to Supply of coalbed gas from 3,345
16 December 2020 NABBIRERALLE Guizhou Yue Bang Baogushan Coal Mine for
R00F12A16BF T ME AL RARERE (Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy ~ FIEM EALEEER generating other source of
Development Co., Ltd. Panxian revenue
Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 Hongguo Town Baogushan Coal FREALEREERLERS
55 52021 F1 122023124318 Mine?) (‘Baogushan Coal Mine AWK
Branch”), a branch of Jiutai
Sale of coalhed gas: RMB0.0688 per KWh electricity Bangda
generated (tax inclusive) ENAERERRRAARADR
HERER  XEBTANAARK006887(27) FAREBAURB(ERLE
EA0E ) ARBENART)
Hongguo Gas Supply Agreement signed on ENARRERFREER Coalbed gas supplied to Supply of coalbed gas from 1475
16 December 2020 NIBFAREIRRRE Panzhou Hongda Hongguo Coal Mine for
R200F12A 16 AT MA R AT (Guizhou Jiutai Bangda Energy ~ FIEMATEEEEER generating other source of
Development Co., Ltd. Panxian revenue
Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 Hongguo Town Hongguo Coal FRIZEREERLRE
55 52021 F1 122023124318 Mine?) (*Hongguo Coal Mine EER-YaRE
Branch”), a branch of Jiutai
Sale of coalbed gas: RMBO.18 per/m® (tax inclusive) Bangda
HERER  BUARARK0IST(ER) NSRS ERATE
BURETRAR(LR5RD
AR AZAENALA)
Baogushan Electricity Supply Agreement signed on Baogushan Coal Mine Branch Electricity purchased from Purchase of electricity for use in 4216




50 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited X Z= 3834t

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

RERBRAF

BEems(E)
Continuing Connected Transactions (continued) BERERS @)
CCT Name, date and term of the agreements Transaction party Counterparty, nature and Consideration
No. and service fee within the Group description of the transaction Purpose of transaction for 2022
EmE
RaRE  HEEE - BERERIRERE AEEANRS S REHTR - HERRE R5EH 022K fE
RMB'000
ARETFT
6 Hongguo Electricity Supply Agreement signed on Hongguo Coal Mine Branch Electricity purchased from Purchase of electricity for use in 8417
16 December 2020 IRABHNA Panzhou Hongda Hongguo Coal Mine
2020512416 SAT AL RE N2 mENIEEES BESNMMIRERER
Term: From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
R 8202151 A1AZ20235 123317
Purchase of electricity: RMB0.5117 per kWh
(tax inclusive)
BEE): BTABARKOSNIR(2H)
7 Electricity Supply Agreement signed on Xiejiahegou Goal Ming Branch Electricity supplied to Sale of electricity for enhancing 11,000
2 February 2022 EaEEEAND Changxing Coal Mine Branch the Group's profitability and
R02F2RNBEINENEERE A ERRADALES) sharing of fixed electrical
capacity charge
Term: From 22 February 2022 to 31 December 2024 HEE NIRRT EENRN
B 8202052 A2 BF024F12A318 RAthhEREEEE
Sale of electricity: a fixed electrical capacity charge
and a unit price calculated based on the electricity
tariff plus RMB0.02 per kWWh (tax inclusive)
HEE)  EFAESERERERIENERNE
TRBAEB0027(2H)
All the above continuing connected transactions as referred to CCT No. 1 *ETJ%_K:%%E AIE+AE @ L AE1E71E
to 7 are exempt from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval BRER SO ERHERER S REST
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are subject to L&&%iﬂﬁ%ﬁtxﬁﬁm ME/RESFERW - A
the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements. None of the ERFEERBT - REZE2022F12/31H
transaction amount of each of the above continuing connected transactions LEFE - PlFEREI IS EFERER

has exceeded its respective annual cap (on an aggregated basis where SR GEMBEEAEE B E’Uifitﬁﬁ(fé

appropriate) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company set out above and unanimously
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better; and (jii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions of the Group are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
confirmed that in relation to the related party transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of
this report for further details.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group recognises the importance of environmental affairs and
considers business development and environment affairs are highly
related. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group implemented
certain environmental protection measures to save energy and reduce the
consumption of resources. These policies were supported by the staff of the
Group and were implemented effectively.

For more detailed information about the Group’s environmental policies
and performance for this financial year, please refer to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 77 to 101 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
BEFEWE(H)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers, business associates
and the local community are key stakeholders of the Group’s success.
The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability through engaging
employees, providing quality services to customers and collaborating
with business associates (including suppliers and contractors) to deliver
sustainable products and services and support the local community.

For more detailed information, please refer to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 77 to 101 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations including the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Business
Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of Hong Kong), etc.
The Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of the
same. In addition, as the Group engages business in the People’s Republic
of China, compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, the mining-related rules
and regulations which have significant impact on the Group. Any changes
in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention
of relevant employees and relevant operation units in the Company and
subsidiaries from time to time.

Relief of Taxation
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the independent auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2023 AGM.

By order of the Board

Yu Bangping

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kofig, 21 March 2023
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Culture and Values

The Company is committed to creating value for our customers and
contributing to the development of society through our products and
services. Our corporate culture is built on the following core values:

1. Professionalism: We are focused on the coal industry and
continuously strive to improve our knowledge and skills; to reinforce
the required standards, the Company conducts periodic training for
our employees.

2. Integrity: We upholds high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance in all activities and operations and our
employees are committed to maintaining integrity and acting
ethically and responsibly, with explicit standards and norms laid out
in training materials for all new staff and incorporated into various
policies, such as the Group’s employee handbook, anti-corruption
policy and whistleblowing policy.

3. Responsibility: We see products and employee responsibility are
the valuable assets. We take responsibility for our coal production
and ensure it meets environmental and safety standards. We also
prioritise the safety and health of employees in the workplace by
providing necessary training and resources to ensure their well-
being.

4. Sustainability: We recognize the importance of environmental
protection and sustainable development. We always strive to
minimize our negative impact on the environment and promote

sustainable development in the economic and social aspects.

These core values will guide our actions and decisions, and help us achieve
our mission: to become a trusted and sustainable coal company, creating
value for our customers, employees, and communities.
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RERERE (E)

Corporate Governance Code

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. It is the belief of the Board that the shareholders of the
Company can maximise their benefits from good corporate governance. It is
also with these objectives in mind that the Group has applied the principles
of good corporate governance as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2022,
except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirms that the Directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of leadership, development
of sound business strategies, availability of adequate capital and managerial
resources to implement the adopted business strategies, adequacy of
systems of financial and internal controls and conduct of business in
conformity with applicable laws and regulations. All Directors have made full
and active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the Board has always
acted in the best interests of the Group.

The executive Directors and the senior management are delegated with
respective levels of authorities with regard to key corporate strategies and
policy and contractual commitments. Senior management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the Group’s business.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the roles of the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer were performed by Mr. Yu Bangping.
Mr. Yu is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
and business development of the Group as well as day-to-day business
management.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year under review, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer have been held by Mr. Yu Bangping. Mr. Yu
Bangping is the founder of the Group and possesses substantial and valuable
experience in the coal mining industry that is relevant and significant to the
Group’s operation, and therefore the Board believes that vesting the roles
of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer in Mr. Yu
Bangping will provide the Company with strong and consistent leadership
and promote effective and efficient formulation and implementation of
business decisions and strategies. The Board considers that such structure
is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders at this stage.

The Board however will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Group’s management from time to time and should candidate with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the Company will make such
nomination as appropriate to ensure that the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are performed by two separate individuals.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu
Bangping, Mr. Sun Dawei, Mr. Wang Shize, Mr. Li Xuezhong, Mr. Lau Kai
Ming, Mr. Yu Zhilong and Mr. Yu Xiao and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Fong Wai Ho, Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva, Ms.
Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha and Mr. Wang Xiufeng. Mr. Yu Bangping
(the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company), Mr. Sun
Dawei and Mr. Wang Shize are interested in the Company’s shares through
their interests in Spring Snow Management Limited, the immediate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Yu Bangping is the father of Mr. Yu Zhilong.
Save as disclosed aforesaid, the Directors have no other financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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Board Composition (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the number of independent non-
executive Directors represents more than one-third of the Board. As such,
there exists a strong independent element in the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgement. The Company has complied with the
requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this

annual report.

Independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are independent in
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accordance with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing 3 e

Rules.

Board Independence

The Board has established mechanisms ensuring independent views
available to the Board and such mechanisms are reviewed annually by the
Board. The Board considered that the following key features or mechanisms
under the Company’s Board and governance structure are effective in
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ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the Board. RIEN ©

Composition of the Board and Board
Committees

>

The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors (“INED(s)”) and at least one-third of its members being
INEDs (or such higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules from time
to time).

Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by the Listing Rules as to
the composition of certain Board committees, INEDs will be appointed to other
Board committees as far as practicable to ensure independent views are available.
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Board Independence (continued)

Independence Assessment

B A

Compensation

e
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TRERES (F)

EEE2HIM@E)

The Nomination Committee must strictly adhere to the Nomination Policy and the
independence assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with regard to
the nomination and appointment of INEDs.

Each INED is also required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there
is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may materially affect his/her
independence.

The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess annually the independence of
all INEDs by reference to the independence criteria as set out in the Listing Rules
to ensure that they can continually exercise independent judgement.
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No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or grants) with performance-
related elements will be granted to INEDs as this may lead to bias in their
decision-making and compromise their objectivity and independence.
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Board Independence (continued)

Board Decision Making °

BEFEARR .

Review of mechanisms implementation e

2 EEITTIRR .

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated by
the management of the Company on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure

EEEHV
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INEDs (as other Directors) are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings. They can also seek assistance from the Company’s company secretary
and, where necessary, independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expense.

INEDs (as other Directors) shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director or
any of his/her close associates has a material interest.

The Chairman shall at least annually hold meetings with the INEDs without the
presence of other Directors to discuss major issues and any concerns.
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The Board shall, or may designate a Board committee to, make an annual review
of the implementation and effectiveness of these mechanisms.
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compliance and upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional

ARARBBEE2 NEMHEFERRORIE

development courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors
participated in continuous professional development by way of attending
trainings and/or seminars organised by professional organisations and
director training webcasts organised by the Stock Exchange and also
reading materials updating new practices, rules and regulations to keep
themselves updated on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
(continued)

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of trainings
received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as

follows:

ERERRSE(E)
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Trainings/Seminars/

Name of Directors FEHE Reading materials
FI, e
AR
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Yu Bangping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) — #IBF5eE (LB HFTIHAEE) v
Mr. Sun Dawei BRRIERE v
Mr. Wang Shize FHESAE v
Mr. Li Xuezhong FERSEE v
Mr. Lau Kai Ming (appointed on 1 June 2022) BIRR$4 5t (FA2022F6 A1 BEZLT) v
Mr. Yu Zhilong R} BERE v
Mr. Yu Xiao RMAEE v
Mr. Lam Chik Shun, Marcus (resigned on 1 June 2022) MBS 4 (F220224F6 A1 B EHT) v
Independent non-executive Directors BUIHRTESE
Mr. Fong Wai Ho FREZEEE v
Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva Punnya Niraan De SilvaZt 4 v/
Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha B v
Mr. Wang Xiufeng THRERE v

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Each of the executive Directors has entered into an executive director
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years until
terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one month’s
notice. Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed to
the Board pursuant to his/her respective letter of appointment for a term of
three years until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less
than three months’ notice. The procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles. Each
of the Directors is subject to re-election at the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) of the Company upon retirement by rotation.

EENZEET  EERER

BRTEFCEHARARILATESRE W
#RH=F HEEE-—SRE—HTELED
PR—ERBH - FBULIFRTEFCRIER
EXENHTEZEIRESTENE A=
FHEEHA- SRS HELTOR=EA
BA - EENERE  BERRBREFLBED
AETHA - RREEURMESRERAR
ABCRBFEAS ([RRBFARE ) BRET -

=
b S

59



60 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A & BERIZERER QA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

rEER®RE(E)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting.

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles, at every AGM of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not
less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any newly appointed
Director shall not be taken into account in determining which Directors are
to retire by rotation. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the
general meeting at which he/she retires and shall be eligible for re-election.
The Company at any AGM at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated
office by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors
may participate in meetings either in person or through electronic means of
communications. At least fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting
is normally given to all Directors who are provided with an opportunity
to include matters for discussion in the agenda. According to the current
Board practice, if a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting
rather than by a written resolution. The Articles also stipulate that save for
the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain from voting and
not be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving any transaction,
contract or arrangement in which such Director or any of his/her associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) has a material interest.

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
independent non-executive Directors once without the presence of other
executive Directors in 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, six Board meetings were held
and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Record of Meetings” of this report.
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Board Process (continued)
Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail and
draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and committee members for
comments before being approved.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”)
on 15 November 2018. All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles
and functions in accordance with their respective terms of reference which
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fong Wai Ho, Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva
and Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha. Mr. Fong Wai Ho is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, among others,
(i) monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements including
but not limited to the Group’s interim and annual results; (ii) overseeing the
relationship between the Company and its external auditor; (iii) reviewing
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and (iv) performing the corporate governance
functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

All members of the Audit Committee possess in-depth experience in
their own profession. At least one of the committee members possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit Committee is mandated to
monitor the independence of the external auditor to ensure true objectivity
in the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held two
meetings and performed the following duties:

(@) reviewed, with the management and the external auditor of the
Company, the 2021 annual results and the 2022 interim results of
the Group before their submission to the Board;

(b) monitored the integrity of such financial statements and the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group;

(©) oversaw matters concerning the external auditor including making
recommendations to the Board regarding the re-appointment of the

external auditor and approving their fees; and

(d) reviewed the effectiveness of financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems of the Company as well as the
independence of the external auditor.

(e) reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Record of Meetings” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Yu Bangping, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Fong Wai Ho and Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha. Mr. Yu Bangping is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including without limitation, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, talents,
skills, knowledge, length of service, experience and other qualities of
Directors) of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with the aim of enhancing the Board’s quality of performance as
well as achieving the Company’s sustainable and balanced development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, and
length of service. All Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The current Board consists
of a diverse mix of Board members with appropriate skills and experience to
lead and oversee the business of the Company. Depending on the needs of
the Group’s growing business and the availability of competent candidates
to fulfill those needs, suitably qualified individuals will be considered in the
future for membership.

During 2022, the Board comprised one female Director (Independent Non-
executive Director) and ten male Directors (comprising seven Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors), representing one
over eleven of the Board’s composition. The Board targets to maintain at
least the current level of female representation, with no immediate numerical
targets as to the female director on the Board. We believe that setting
numerical targets and timelines for achieving gender diversity on our board
is valuable enterprise goal; however such setting is not currently feasible
as the coal mining industry have encountered challenges in attracting and
developing females talent. The Company is committed to promoting gender
diversity and inclusivity within our organization in the long run. The Board
will continue to explore opportunities to increase the proportion of female
board members over time as and when suitable candidates are identified.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s global workforce (including senior
management) is more than 12% female. Accordingly, the Company
considers that gender diversity is also achieved in its workforce generally.
The table below summarizes the share of women at different position levels
across the Group as at 31 December 2022.

BEEZET @)

REZES(HA)

72022612 H318 - AEEEKETHE (£
REREEAB)BBI12% AL - it - &
NARABHETERNERMBIZ T - Tk
BEEN2022F12 A31 8 - AEBRTRBAL
R ZZ LB -

Level Al
Senior

Gender Director Management Manager Employee
451 = SREEE s BT
Male 10 5 24 3,141
B

Female 1 - 2 436
g

Note: The above data is calculated based on the number of total employees of the
Group as of 31 December 2022.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
to formally set out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship. According
to the Nomination Policy, the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board or the shareholders
in general meetings, as the case may be. The Board has delegated the
relevant screening and evaluation process to the Nomination Committee,
which identifies suitably qualified Director candidates and recommends
them to the Board. In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee takes into consideration the expected contribution
of the candidate that would bring to the Board to ensure the Board has
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business, his/her commitment and devoting
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs, fulfilment of the
independence requirements as set out in the Listing Rules (for independent
non-executive Directors) and diversity on the Board. After reaching
its decision, the Nomination Committee nominates relevant Director
candidates to the Board for approval of appointment and for consideration
and recommendation in respect of the re-election of the retiring Directors.
The Board will make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of Directors at general meetings of the Company.
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee held

three meetings and performed the following duties:

(@)

reviewed the structure, size, composition of the Board and the
Board Diversity Policy, to ensure that the Board’s composition
complies with the Listing Rules and reflects an appropriate mix
of skills, experience, and diversity that are relevant to Company’s
strategy, governance, and business and contribute to the Board’s
effectiveness and efficiency. The Nomination Committee is satisfied
with the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy;

made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new
Director and the re-election of the retiring Directors;

assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on renewal of
the executive Directors’ service agreements and the independent
non-executive Directors’ appointment period.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out in

the section headed “Attendance Record of Meetings” of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director, namely

Mr. Lau Kai Ming and two independent non-executive Directors, namely

Mr. Fong Wai Ho and Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva. Mr. Fong Wai Ho is the

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include, among
others, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and members of senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings and performed the following duties:

(@) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Group and recommended the Board to approve their

remuneration; and

(b) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the proposed
remuneration package of the new Director appointed during the
year.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out
in the section headed “Attendance Record of Meetings” of this report.

Remuneration of the Members of the Senior Management by
Band

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 are as follows:

HriNEE

Remuneration band

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Attendance Record of Meetings EESERLEBR
Set out below are the individual attendance records of each Director at the AT EHISESHFEARRRIREE20225F12
Board meetings, Board Committees meetings and annual general meeting ABLFERTHESE S 82T
of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2022: EPGLES RN ol
Attended/Eligible to attend
g/ EEREE
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors EENE Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EXE ERZEE REZEE FMzES RERBF
g2 g3 =E a3 PN
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Bangping RITERE

(Chairman and Chief Executive  (F/E#7TE##)

Officer) 6/6 N/ATNE A 3/3 N/ATiE A 1/1*
Mr. Sun Dawei BARELESE 6/6 N/ATiE A N/ATiE A N/ATiE A 1/1*
Mr. Wang Shize T2 AE 6/6 N/ATNE A N/ATiE A N/ATRiE A 1/1*
Mr. Li Xuezhong TERGE 6/6 N/ATiE A N/ATiE A N/ATRiE A 1/1*
Mr. Lau Kai Ming (appointed BIBRSR K A (202276

on 1 June 2022) H1H#Z(T) 2/2 N/ATNE A N/ATiE 11 N/ATNE A
Mr. Yu Zhilong RBAE 6/6 N/ATNE A N/ATiE A N/ATiE A 1/1*
Mr. Yu Xiao R BELE 6/6 N/ATNE A N/ATiE A N/ATRiE A 1/1*
Mr. Lam Chik Shun, Marcus MBS £ (K2022F6

(resigned on 1 June 2022) A188(L) 4/4 N/ATNE N/ATNE A 2/2 1/1%
Independent Non-executive B TTEE

Directors
Mr. Fong Wai Ho FRRESE 6/6 2/2 3/3 3/3 1/1*
Mr. Punnya Niraan De Silva Punnya Niraan De Silva

yites 6/6 2/2 N/ATiE A 3/3 1/1*
Ms. Cheung Suet Ting, Samantha {REE L+ 6/6 2/2 3/3 N/A7R i F 1/1*
Mr. Wang Xiufeng THEELE 6/6 N/ATNE A N/ATiE A N/ARiE A 1/1*
* Attended by telephone * BRELE
# Attended in person # HELE
Under code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board shall BECEEATIEF22(§ EFEXF

attend the annual general meeting. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, Mr. Yu JEHFRERFE RS - HRACOVID-19% 1%
Bangping, the Chairman of the Board, attended the annual general meeting 1B BEREEFFRBFLEEUBFELHER
of the Company held on 26 May 2022 (“2022 AGM”) by telephone to ensure NAR2022F5 A26 HEBITHRRBF AL
that he was also available to answer questions from the shareholders of the ([2022F BMRBFRE |) » AHRN B
Company. The 2022 AGM was chaired by the former executive Director, INAIBERT B & AR RIARER IR - 2022F R H
Mr. Lam Chik Shun, Marcus. At the 2022 AGM, the shareholders of the AFRSHATRTESMEELERETIREE
Company approved the amendments to the articles of association of the & o M2022F IR BFRE - AAGIRRE

Company to provide the Directors with the option of attending general HOEERT AR RIMAABERZMA - FES=0E
meetings remotely through electronic means if necessary or appropriate. BRUENEERNEFHRNERLFEREAR
P
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, for services rendered in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 is as follows:

Audit services %R
Non-audit services IEZEARTE

Other services H bR
Total BEt

In considering the re-appointment of the external auditor, the Audit
Committee has taken into consideration their relationship with the Company
and their independence. Based on the results of the review and after
taking into account the opinion of the management of the Group, the
Audit Committee recommended the Board to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the external auditor of the Company for the ensuing year,
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the 2023
AGM. In addition, the Audit Committee is of the view that the auditor’s
independence is not affected by the non-audit services rendered.

1% 85 B 57 B
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HZE2022F12 A31 8 L FE ARt BR7% B
PEFOMEAT

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
2,147 2,117

29 27

2,176 2,144
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities in respect

of the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for presenting a clear,
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects and
preparing the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group on a going-concern basis. The management provides the Board with
the relevant information it needs to discharge these responsibilities. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 105 to 107 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s assets
and the shareholders’ interests. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievements of the Group’s

objectives.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

Risk Management System

The risk management system comprises risk identification, risk evaluation
and risk management. The management is entrusted with duties to identify
and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated by the
Board and management based on the severity of the impact of the risks on
the Company’s financial results and the probability that the risks will occur.

ERERRSE(E)

ESNAEETH P BRRNET

E=WREFEIHAEENRALERATR
25 B R - WRBIRISEKSE L
BEERQFRBRASENRNERE - EEE
SREESRHEABTZEEEMFNHERE
¥t o I NAEALAA E A BB AR AR
BRENBREXRSHENEFXITAABNER
TEERE -

AR BVBIAZBEN S W B HRRAEH MR RE
EEBAHEHNRFRFE1052107 BB L ZH
AR o

b E IR I A ER ER
EZgRRAARRREMAMNEREER
NERETHERIE - AMREEAR BN E ERBIRD
o BREERAREEHEE HRHEAE
BIFBHMRE AN EEARRER D SHIEX -
I BEIE (MIEHER) 2@ R 8 MoRBeESD
AEE B RORL o

FEfEERABERERRNEREH

BB EFERA

[ TR R A - R RS R E
BEK - EEERAEEEETCRERBENZ
R R EEEAENEE) - LS PR E
% BEGNERERERBEARRGMEE
BT EBREREIANER LR R R ETT
R -

69



70 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A & BERIZERER QA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
PN

rEER®RE(E)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (continued)

Risk Management System (continued)

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company manages the risk as follows:

° Risk mitigation — management will implement risk mitigation plan to
reduce the likelihood and severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

. Risk retention — management will retain the risk if the risk rating is at
acceptable level and no action is required.

° Risk monitoring — management will monitor the level of risk
continuously and will take necessary action to reduce the risk to
acceptable level.

Internal Control System

The Company has put in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The main features of the internal control system are
shown as follows:

° Monitoring — ongoing evaluations are conducted to ascertain
whether the internal control system is functioning.

° Risk assessment — a risk management system is established for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Company’s objectives,
forming a basis for determining how risks are managed.

° Information and communication - internal and external
communication are made to provide the Company with information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Our internal audit department is responsible for assessment of the
effectiveness in the performance of the safety production measures.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

The Board has an ongoing process for identifying, assessing, and managing
the significant risks (including environmental, social, and governance
(“ESG”) risks) encountered by the Group. As part of this process, the risk
management systems and internal controls are reviewed at least annually
and improved from time to time in response to changes in the business or
external environment. By identifying and evaluating the risks encountered
as well as designing, operating, and monitoring effective internal controls
to mitigate and control these risks, management assists the Board in
the design, implementation and maintenance of the Group’s policies,
procedures, and limits within the Board’s approved risk appetite.

The review covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
procedural compliance controls as well as the process for the identification,
evaluation and management of the significant risks (including ESG risks)
faced by the Group. The Board also reviews the Group’s accounting,
compliance, risk management, internal audit, and financial reporting
functions, as well as those pertaining to the Group’s ESG performance and
reporting, in terms of resources, employee qualifications and experience,
training programs, and budget of the Group.

In order to ensure a sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework, the Board has, through
the Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group with the
assistance of an independent internal control consultancy firm, Richard
Poon & Partners Risk Management Limited (“Richard Poon”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Richard Poon has submitted its internal control
review and risk assessment reports of the Group to the Audit Committee
and the Board in March 2023.

The above-mentioned review report with examination results and relevant
improvement recommendations were duly enabled the Audit Committee
and the Board to assess the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. Any material failings or weaknesses
identified in the internal control system were dealt with through appropriate
remedial actions in a timely manner. All remedial actions shall also be
regularly followed up where necessary to ensure that the failings and
weaknesses have been mitigated or duly addressed.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

During the review, the Board also considered the resources and staff
qualifications and experience of the Group’s internal audit, accounting,
financial reporting and business support functions, and found their training
and budgets to be adequate. The Board considers that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate and that the
Company has complied with code provisions of the CG Code relating to risk
management and internal control.

The Company is aware of its obligation under the SFO, the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced on a
timely basis and conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. The Company has established disclosure mechanism
regarding the procedures of identifying inside information and preserving its
confidentiality until proper dissemination with the Board’s approval through
the electronic publication systems operated by the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

ESG compliance and governance

The Group has developed internal strategies aimed at creating sustainable
value for its stakeholders and minimizing its negative impact on the
environment. To carry out the Group’s sustainability strategy from top
to bottom, the Board holds ultimate responsibility for ensuring the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG strategies.

Dedicated teams have been established within each business division
to manage ESG issues and monitor progress toward corporate goals for
addressing climate change. These teams are responsible for enforcing and
overseeing the implementation of relevant ESG policies throughout the
Group and have designated staff members to carry out these tasks.

The Group’s management and responsible teams regularly review and
adjust its sustainability policies to meet the evolving needs of stakeholders.
Detailed ESG risk and information on the Group’s management approaches
for environmental and social aspects can be found in various sections of
our ESG report. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the Group’s
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
relating to ESG performance and reporting.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling

and Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Group conducts its affairs with
close attention to the inside information provisions under the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Directors and senior management are responsible for
determining whether any particular information is inside information and
overseeing and coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group.
They are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure that
proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement
in relation to the Group from time to time and that disclosures are made
and/or announcements are published on a timely basis in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations, and before such information is
fully disclosed to the public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly
confidential. The Directors are also committed to ensuring that information
contained in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material
fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Board communicates with its Company’s shareholders and investors
through various channels. The Board members meet and communicate
with shareholders and investors at AGMs and other general meetings
where shareholders can obtain better understanding of the business and
operating performance of the Group. Corporate communications (such as
interim and annual reports, notices, circulars and announcements) are sent
to shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Shareholders Communication Policy,
which is available on the Company’s website and sets out the Group’s
objective of ensuring timely, transparent and accurate communications
between the Shareholders and the Company. The Board reviewed the
Shareholders Communication Policy and the Group’s shareholders and
investor engagement and communication activities conducted in 2022 and
was satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders
Communication Policy.

During the year under review, the 2022 AGM was held on 26 May 2022.
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Dividend Policy
The Company had adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). According

to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and

in determining the dividend amount, the Board takes into account the

following:

@

()

The financial results of the Group;

The working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans of the Group;

The retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company;

The general economic condition, industry cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the

Group;

Any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company is
bound from time to time;

Any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s contracting parties;

The shareholders’ and investors’ expectation; and

Any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividends is also subject to compliance with applicable laws

and regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time

and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular

amount for any given period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric was the company secretary of the Company
who was nominated by an external service provider in respect of his
appointment as the company secretary of the Company. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company was Mr. Lau Kai Ming, an
Executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Group. Mr. Chan
has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to provisions of the
applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and rules and regulations of the
Stock Exchange, an annual general meeting of the Company is held each
year and at the venue as determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, is called an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”).

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles, an EGM shall be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, which
is presently situated at Unit 1003, 10th Floor, Tower 2, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
and signed by the requisitionist(s). If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the attention
of the company secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at

Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 12.3 of the Articles for putting
forward a resolution at a general meeting. The requirements and procedures
are set out above in the section headed “Shareholders to Convene an

Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

On 26 May 2022, the shareholders of the Company have approved at the
2022 AGM the proposed amendments (the “Amendments”) to the Articles
of Association of the Company to provide flexibility to give Directors the
options of attending at general meetings remotely through electronic means
if necessary or appropriate. Details of the Amendments were set out in
the circular of the Company dated 22 April 2022. The latest Amended and
Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is

available on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board
Yu Bangping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reporting Principles and Scopes

The Group’s main production facilities are located in Guizhou Province,
China, and mainly engage in mine development, coal mining as well as clean
coal production and sales. To smaller extent, the Group is also engaged in
the sales of other related products including middling coal, sludge coal and
coalbed methane gas. This environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
report (the “ESG Report”) mainly covers the Group’s principal business
and operation from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, in Hongguo Coal
Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine, Xiejiahegou Coal Mine, and Songshan Coal
Preparation Plant in Guizhou, and the offices in Guizhou and Hong Kong.

With the support of the Group’s management team and the Board, the
original consumption data were collected and sorted from the Group’s
internal documentation and relevant utility bills, and submitted to an
independent consultancy company that calculated and quantified
the Group’s ESG KPls, complying with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) under Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and following HKEX’s ESG Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs and ESG Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs. The
preparation of this ESG Report mainly follows the principles listed below:

1. Materiality: the channels of stakeholder engagement as well as the
process of identifying material ESG factors will be disclosed in the
sections to follow;

2. Quantitative: the reporting of emissions/energy consumption follows
HKEX’s ESG Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and uses
calculation tools it recommends; any assumptions made in relation
to a specific calculation are disclosed in the relative sections;

3. Consistency: there were no major changes to the methods or
KPls used, or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison with the previous year;

4. Balance: by engaging an independent consultancy company, the
Group works to provide an unbiased picture of its ESG performance.
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A Message From the Board

The Board oversees the operation of the Group and assesses the
achievements and shortcomings in terms of environmental protection,
corporate governance, and social involvement. The Board also guides the
preparation and drafting of this ESG Report and provide necessary support
and grant access to relevant materials.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company conducted a
comprehensive internal materiality assessment to identify which ESG-
related aspects concern the Group and its stakeholders the most. Since the
Group’s principal business engages in the extraction of natural resources
and production of coal products, the emission of pollutants and use of
resources are considered top priorities. The Group’s major goals are to
reduce its pollutant emission and resource consumption. The achievement
of these goals is assessed by relative environmental KPIs. Meanwhile,
the Group’s workforce values employment-related matters and career
development; as such, the Board, via the help of the senior management
team, instructed the HR department in creating a rewarding workplace for

its employees.

After reviewing this ESG Report, the Board considers it complies with
the ESG Guide and covers all of the aforementioned significant aspects.
The board believes that the community involvement part was the most
outstanding during the year under review. It also recognises the relentless
efforts devoted to containing GHG emissions and air pollutants.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Stakeholders Communication

The Group’s major stakeholders comprise its shareholders and investors,

government and regulatory bodies, customers, employees, communities,

and media. To ensure this ESG Report reflects their main concerns, the

Group has developed various channels that allow stakeholders to share

their demands and opinions on the Group’s operation and performances

regarding environmental, social and governance aspects. The table below

identifies the major stakeholders’ demands and expectations and outlines

our communication channels with each of them.

Stakeholders
FE

Shareholders and investors

BERRIREH

Government and regulatory bodies

B REEHE

Customers

Major demands and expectations
FEERKE

- Profit sustainability

— Corporate governance system

— Consumption of energy and emission
of pollutants

— Prevention of operational risks

— HEANRE

— BEEREL

— BERBREL SRR

— BeBLLERR

— Compliance with regulations

— Consumption of energy and emission
of pollutants

— Conservation of resources

— BTER
— BB RPN
— HHER

— Quality of products and services
— Information security
— Ease of communication

- ESRRBEE
- wARE
— BER
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Main communication channels
FTEERBRE

— Company announcements
— General meetings
— Annual report and interim report
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— Supervision and evaluation
— ESG Report

— Inspection

— EERX
- B HEREARE

- BE

— Business communication
— Customer feedback

- XKAR
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Stakeholders
FE

Employees

Communities

Zan

Media

S
i

Major demands and expectations
FEERKHE

- Job security

— Workplace safety

— Corporate governance system
- Employee rights and benefits
— Employee remuneration and welfare
— Career development

- BMERE

- IESMLs

— BEERBES

- [EERENZER

— EEHMEE R

- BEZERE

— Involvement in public welfare activities

— Emission of pollutants
— Community investment
— Providing jobs

— ZERHED

— AR

- HEKRE

— RHstE

— Transparent information

— Sustainable business development
— Production safety

— EFUEH
— AEERBERE
- REAEE

The Group welcomes feedback on its ESG approach and performances.

Hearing from the stakeholders enables the Group to include all-rounded

opinions when preparing this ESG Report and formulating relevant policies

to address their concerns for the year to come. Should you have any

questions or recommendations on the Group’s ESG matters, please feel

free to enquire via the Company’s website.
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Main communication channels
FTEERBRE

— Staff meetings and activities
— Staff training

— Workers’ congress

— Recruitment process
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— Communication with communities and
local government
— Charity activities

— BEdENEWBUTERE
- BERY

— Company’s website

— Company’s advertisements
— Business interviews

— Pressreleases

— AR,

— RAES

— BBEHK

— FEEM
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Environmental Protection

Our General Environmental Policies

Generally speaking, the Group’s mining operation mainly consists of the
following key steps, all of which involve a certain level of environmental
impact:

Coal Mine Coal Minin Coal
Development 9 Preparation

JRAE R 3 BREE LS

During coal mine development and mining processes, our impact on the
land environment is the most dominant, while the coal preparation stage
requires a large amount of water and calls for proper wastewater treatment.
For product transportation, vehicle exhaust and the use of fossil fuels
contribute to air pollutants and carbon dioxide emissions. Lastly, we work to
reclaim the land we used and contribute to creating a new life cycle for it.

All of the above-mentioned production cycles are based in the Panzhou
area of Guizhou Province of the PRC. As a result, our business operations
shall comply with local and national environmental laws. Overall, the
most important and relevant laws and regulations are the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China ({ 1 & A B # #
IR 3% 1R # )% ) ), and the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({1 2E A R EMEIIR R 251 E)%)). When we
have construction projects for new facilities, we shall closely follow the
Administrative Measures for Inspection and Acceptance on Environmental
Protection of Construction Projects (72 & 18 B % T 3R 5 (R & 5 I & 12 W
7£)). As an impactful business in the Panzhou area of Guizhou, we receive
scheduled and random visits from local authorities, who convey the latest
environmental policies to our sites and inspect the Group’s environmental
standards. In case of a breach of any of the regulations, the Group’s mines
are at risk of losing their operation permits.

Having no environmental non-compliance cases during the year under
review, we strive to take up our corporate responsibilities and contribute
to the country’s mission of environmental conservation. Under today’s
climate, extreme weather conditions could affect any business that requires
outdoor operations. This is especially true for us, as our production happens
outdoors and sometimes underground. We had been able to navigate the
climate conditions during the reporting year and no specific climate-related
issue significantly caused operational difficulties.
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To minimise the environmental impacts caused by our operations, the EREBMNEEENNREFE  ~5%
Group closely monitors its coal extraction and pollution control measures I)‘ B H R AR 5 2R TR bE - Wad
and records relevant statistics to compare its performances over the years. SAREE AT EUR AL R EFRIA - BB
Through site examination, assessment, and planning from time to time, the SRS « SHARRE - REBEMAEXR
Group fully implements sustainable business modal in all major decisions FURHIER BRI EERERN - WENS
made and updates the existing procedures if needed. ZRARIRITE

Our environmental goals for the year under review are to conserve resources BN EBEFEENREREREAEHHNER
and reduce pollutant emissions as much as possible. Specific steps taken KRS R MIHERL o &7 EEREN R B S S ER
in each aspect will be disclosed in relevant sections in the ESG Report while RIRE - g REARSHIEAESPKRE

the list below outlines the major environmental management procedures the MASEMRANEERREEEFHSMN
Group takes. N

Our mining and coal preparation processes use a large amount of water hence we
Water resources implement strict water conservation policies and make sure that our machinery is
conservation up-to-date, so as to increase our water usage efficiency. Our coal mines are fitted
KRERRE with water treatment facilities, sewage circulation systems, and recycling pools,
which allow us to recycle and reuse a portion of wastewater when safety
protocols are met.

BAIRRERE SR FUBIZERAREK - E A E b B R AN KRR I FEAR IR PIAY
BERRERH - ARRR MM AKEE - HMSEBAHEKERRE  5KERER
SR EYOE - EEEMIRERE R R L2 AT T DU BN AEBOREK o

Continuously researching on the mining water treatment techniques and
Wastewater following the latest discharge policies, the Group has adopted an advanced
management wastewater treatment solution to minimise the impact of mining water discharge.

REKERE A complex of chemical and physical treatments have to be applied to our mining
wastewater till it meets relevant regulatory standards for discharge.

AL B NE FURE KR IR RN - WARB RO PEBOR - RA R ERNRIKEE
FER - BERDBEHKERNTE - BHRMANRKERIETEMNCERYIE
R - EEETERIINEERE -

: Treated coal wastes from our mines are securely loaded onto trucks and
Solid waste transported to designated areas nearby. The designated areas are believed to
treatment have the capacity to securely contain over 10 years of waste produced by our

IEE%EE%W}EE mines.

Kéﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁ@m%%%m%$ PREFHAECEERE - ZEET
AR MBETE 10 LA EEERREEY) -

Py
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Reduction of dust Low-concentration methane power generators are built in each of our coal mines
and air pollutants to generate electricity from gas while significantly reducing the methane
B E emissions from our coal mining productivity. We have also installed water

R g S Y sprinklers to control dust and maintain a safe work environment.

BN ERBEZEERETREEHE  BRARNETAREE - RARAERD
BAIEREEERBOF L - HPITAELKEKEEVRENERAER TIERE
RE o

Our noise control measures include the use of silencers, noise and vibration
Noise control dampening, enclosure of noisy equipment, use of insulation materials, and
1% 3o | ongoing equipment maintenance.

BANRSEZFIEBREEAESS  BRERE BESBRIRE  EREEMN
KRS EEITREHEE

We conduct reclamation activities according to the laws and regulations in the

Reclamation PRC, making our contribution to recovering and preserving damaged farmland,
activities grassland, and forests so that current and future generations can continue to
EREE benefit from these natural spots.

BB BEHEIEROERETERES - BABXIBERNHE - Ei RARMIK
ERRE SHREARESFHECSZERARTHRENR

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the overall ecological and #HE2022F12 831 HIEFE - £RIRRER
environmental risks are controllable and there are no environmental MESTMT - REAREEERES|IEMNREIRE
emergencies nor significant climate-related issues directly created by the BHEMNEARBE(LEM -

Group so far.

<
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GHG Emission Reduction

During the Group’s operation, fuel consumption at the mining sites, vehicles
used for coal transportation, and waste treatment procedures directly
generate greenhouse gas (GHG). And purchased energy, mainly electricity,
used to power our machinery and equipment, such as scraper conveyors
and shearers used in coal development, coal mining, coal preparation,
and other production processes, contributes the most to its indirect GHG
emission. To a lower extent, such indirect generation also comes from
power consumption in the Group’s offices in Mainland China and Hong
Kong.

To reduce GHG emissions, the Group is committed to modernising
its production equipment and techniques. The Group has built low-
concentration methane gas power plants at each of Hongguo Coal Mine,
Baogushan Coal Mine and Xiejiahegou Mine, which utilises the methane
emitted from coal mining process and prevents it from polluting the air. For
our end products, we focus on producing clean coal rather than the more
polluting types, leading the industry towards a more environmentally-friendly
path. The Group sets a target to maintain the GHG emission at a similar
level in coming year.

As the year under review proved to be challenging and turbulent in the
business aspect, the Group had an increase in business activities to
navigate the ups and downs of the market, resulting in a greater use of fuel
and energy in our PRC sites, though we were able to maintain land and air
travel at relatively low levels. Considering all the above, the Group’s carbon
emissions and intensities increased during the year under review.

BERERBE

RAEEEE WIS - BB
EWMANERREREHEERELRER
RS o 1 ARERE) E M AN 3R A (AR PR A 3%
BREERAER - BpOEE M E A A ERIZ P E AR
AR B AR M) B RER (EERE
1) BEZREREHBALEA - NEH
AP B AR RBEBRREEREETRIERE
BB AR -

BREREREHEN  AEERNRBRAE
JEREATRAR - REERAIRER - 824
IWEEES R ERES BB RREF IR
TR - DA R AR B B AR B A R
Bi IEEDS 2R o SR B MK mESD « F I
HEREERFORBE  MIESRERENE
& 3| EITEERFIRRER - XEEYTE
20 ARR IR AT 58 = R HE A IS AR
K o

RREEFREXRBTEERIBREE - &
SEEMEB RS ARETISHENR - B
PIRA R B VIR 518 A B Z 0K I BETR © 18 3P
5 B it 2 22 FR SR T MR ARSI BUEKCE © %5 E
Pt - AEERBREINE FOREREBRFESR
P& AN ©
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AEBA AL E BT ERREREIME
BT

The Group’s GHG emissions in CO, equivalent:

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLFE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Total Total
emissions emissions
of CO, Key emissions of CO,  Key emissions
equivalent intensity™ equivalent intensity®
— S 1bhx Z&AbHR
GHG emissions (kilogram in CO, BER&&HHE EEHM EEHM
equivalent) (ZEtREETR) HEE FEEREEY mE FEHREEO
(kg) (kg/tonne) (kg) (kg/tonne)
(Fx) (F5=/H) (F=) (Fx,/u8)
Direct (Scope 1) B (%EN) 4,227,271 3.96 2,678,676 2.51
Indirect (Scope 2) el i (#5E2) 90,336,199 84.68 70,209,018 65.91
Total st 94,563,470 88.64 72,887,694 68.42
Note: sk
(1) Key emissions intensity is calculated by kg of CO, equivalent emissions per (1) FEHNEEREWDHERRERN =

SULTE EHR(TR)HE -

tonne of coal products sold.
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Air Pollution Control ZERSREH
The Group’s operation involves the emission of key air pollutants, including REBENSESREEERSEMN - £2

primarily Nitrogen Oxide (NO,), Sulphur Oxide (SO,) and Particulate Matters BREAE(Y - ME Y RBFRT - #HE)E
(PM). The use of mobile vehicles contributes the greatest to air pollutant NERRZER TR RAFHA - Bt -

emission. Thus, the Group set up transportation plans and integrated them AEBOHEERE  SHMAZESF
into its operations and target to reduce pollution in future years. WEBIRARREFRDSREE -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, as mentioned above, our use REZE2022F12 A1 B IEFE - 1 EXFT

of vehicles were maintained at a relatively low level compared to a year il BE—FRIMEL - B EEER AR
ago. As a result, the Group’s emission of air pollutants and their intensities T ERKF - Fitt - NEBAKRSRYBER
decreased slightly. ERBENEEREE T o

The Group’s emissions of key air pollutants: REERFE RS PEREIE -

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Total Key emissions Total  Key emissions
emissions intensity emissions intensity®
Key Air Pollutants FTERRFEY BHERE  EEHEREBEO BEE  ETEHREREO
(9) (9/tonne) (9 (g/tonne)
(%) (%=,/H) (52) (52,/M8)
NO, RE 180,022 0.17 195,982 0.18
PM BFRLT 17,250 0.02 18,799 0.02
SO, waly 299 0.000280 326 0.000306
Note: Bz -
(1) Key emissions intensity is calculated by gram of respective air pollutant per (1) TEHRETEREWE HERKKE DA
tonne of coal products sold. EZE RS (7)) E -
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Hazardous Wastes and Treatment

Gangue, as a by-product of the coal-washing process, is the main
hazardous waste in the mining industry. A large amount of untreated gangue
could pose severe impacts to the environment, including generating toxicity
into the air and soil and taking up otherwise fertile fields or spaces with
agricultural and/or commercial potential. However, qualified companies can
sort and clean gangue properly and apply them in different areas, including
power generation and building material production.

The Group’s gangue was transported to and stored on a designated field
near the mines where qualified local village cooperatives engaged by us
handle the treatment. The stored gangue is covered with a layer of soil that is
suitable for plantation and has the potential to restore fertile land.

As the Group’s coal production in Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan
Coal Mine increases from the low levels during the previous year, gangue
generation in these two mines rose accordingly. For Xiejiahegou Coal Mine,
its own coal preparation plant was launched during the year under review,
hence the start of its gangue record. The Group sets a target to maintain the
hazardous waste produced at a similar level for coming years.

A breakdown for gangue generation and intensity by mines:

R e kEamE (&

BEBRMREERED A
fERERBRNMBIEY  TORREEEE
BEBEY - RERGCEIBTAARYREE
RBRYE DEBERSHEERNIE ¥
EAEMERAERER KEEENNKL
%z - AT AEERRATRENF AL E
EER  ETRBEMAER  BERERE
WA -

REB R AESRER KT ESIFR
R FEFNEEELONAFLRIE o 7
ANEBEEAEENLTIE - BERERE
ARLHHYE S

RRAREARKELRBEAIRENRRES
R EFEMEMETH - MERENTLELS
ARG AN - BEAZOMBKREM S - B ASER
REBEFARE - BitFRnERFALsE - A
SEBERE  ARAREFHAELENEE
BEEMGFERENREL -

RESE ST ABERE R EE R

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021
20225 20216
Hazardous Hazardous
Gangue waste Gangue waste
generation intensity™ generation intensity
BEREEY BEEEY
HRHEHE ZEO HagmE BEO
(tonne)  (tonne/tonne) (tonne) (tonne/tonne)
(W) (T, 18) (1) (W8, M)
Hongguo Coal Mine AESLY ] 605,096 0.57 440,294 0.41
Baogushan Coal Mine BAILERE 575,659 0.54 403,653 0.38
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine EIEREIY Yy 406,852 0.38 N/A “I~iE A N/A N
Total we 1,587,607 1.49 843,947 0.79
Note: P3E -
(1) Hazardous waste intensity is calculated by tonne of hazardous waste per (1) EEBEEDTELRSWDHERRERN

tonne of coal products sold.

BEERY(W)FE -
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Non-hazardous Wastes and Treatment

The Group’s non-hazardous wastes mainly consist of general production
waste and domestic waste, which are sorted at source and then handled
by the local government. These non-hazardous wastes are non-significant
in amount and no quantified records were documented. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group continues to encourage its staff to recycle
at work and home, so as to minimise general waste and aim for a greener

environment.

Energy Consumption

The Group purchases electricity as a main source of power across its
facilities in Guizhou and Hong Kong. It also uses diesel to fuel its onsite
power generation, mining fleets, mining machinery and equipment. For
land transportation, unleaded petrol is mainly used to power automobiles.
An internal audit department assesses and audits the aforesaid usage of
fuel and resources and uses such records as indicators to determine the
effectiveness of Group’s energy conservation measures.

To reduce the use of fossil fuels, the Group keeps up with the latest
technology trends in the industry to make sure its machinery meets the
energy efficiency standard. As for electricity usage, we ask that our staff turn
off lights and electric appliances when they are not in use, and encourage
them to limit air conditioner temperature in summer.

Through the above mitigation measures, we believe that the Group will
achieve reduction of energy consumption in future years.

With the continued resumption of business activities in China, the usage
of fossil fuels and electricity saw an increase during the year ended 31
December 2022, though electricity used in Hong Kong had a mild decrease.

BEBRRYRBEBEERE
AEBEENBEEEENE BT —REERE
PRI AR - IRIRE DI B E IR
FRERETRE - ZSEEFEEVNHE
PR WS - BE2022912A31H
IHFE - AEEBEESBHE I T TIERER
NERBAME  WRERD—REY - BR
EIRIE o

BEROHAE
AEERBENEREMNREBRIENHEIES
DAR - ETMERSMRERISHE - KRS
5 SREREA N R B IRMRE - HREERE
W EITURERARMAERMAE T o REL
T RRPIRHA MR _ IR E K B IR (E 15
o WARF LR - UEEARELRE
FERBEIRL ©

RBDERCARE  ARBEHREERAITE
RIEMBY - MREMESRERERIRE - 51
BNERME - RAERE TR MERERERE
BMERR - UERRERERRHIZEFRE

BB DRAATRIEIE - BAIRIE - ARERR
RREFEEBR D BERBRE ©

PEERBEEESFERE  BERENAE
SBEE TR LA RAE INERRER
202212 A31 B IEFEH AT -
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Diesel and unleaded petrol consumption and the intensity:

For the year ended 31 December

SOh K TR R REE

BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214F
Energy Energy
Energy consumption Energy consumption
consumption intensity®  consumption intensity®
REREE  REREEEEO fEREE  REREEEREC
(litres) (litres/tonne) (litres) (litres/tonne)
(#) (Ft,/18) (71) (F+,/m)
Diesel ey 1,594,862 1.49 1,001,201 0.94
Unleaded petrol i3 D 20,341 0.02 22,145 0.02
Note: FfsE :
(1) Energy consumption intensity is calculated by litre of energy consumption per (1) RORMRE T E IR TN 85 & R IR EmB B
tonne of coal products sold. RREE(FHEE -
A breakdown of electricity consumption by region: VAHD [ B 5 ) FEEE = BRAR -
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Electricity Electricity
Electricity consumption Electricity consumption
consumption intensity  consumption intensity®
HEE HEZEO REE REREO
(kWh) (kWh/tonne) (kWh) (kWh/tonne)
(FRER) (TRE W) (TRE) (TR /W)
Mainland China AR B A FE 146,412,685 137.24 113,723,000 106.76
Hong Kong HiE 9,299 0.01 12,096 0.01
Total RnE 146,421,984 137.25 113,735,096 106.77
Note: FI%E
1) Electricity consumption intensity is calculated by kWh of electricity (1) RERERBUEHERARERNEES

consumption per tonne of coal products sold.

(TRE)FE -

<

<
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RBE - g kEems (&)

Water Consumption

A reliable water source is vital for the Group’s production process. We

ensured that each of the three mines has sufficient production and domestic

water supply from the surface and underground sources. As a result,

there were no water-sourcing difficulties during the year under review.

Underground water from the Group’s mine was extracted and filtered for use

at the coal preparation plant, fire-safety facilities, and as an anti-dust agent.

The water usage during the year under review remained relatively stable as

compared to the previous year and we target to maintain the similar level in

future years.

A breakdown of water consumption by workshop:

FEKE

ASKRERAEBEETFEZHER - 3
AR — (R IR RO AL I AR FK I RE B 3 RO
K T/KER R HKIR - Bt - BEFEA
T e (T ER KR VIR - AR EESH
# TKEIREUBIRIE AR - B R &
FRYEDTEER - SLEFHALL - MEEFEMAKE
RIFIEEIRTE o - BRIMFEIRARREF RS

FHEIKF o

AT 58I 0 mFEKEHA :

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
Water Water
Water consumption Water consumption
consumption intensity  consumption intensity®
KB FRBE kg FRBEO
(md) (m%/tonne) (md) (m%tonne)
(ZAK)  (ZHK W) (ZAK)  (SLARE)
Hongguo Coal Mine RETE 669,300 0.63 687,600 0.65
Baogushan Coal Mine AR 733,904 0.69 683,500 0.64
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine AEONEETE 358,463 0.34 391,400 0.37
Songshan Coal Preparation Plant  #ALLI %t EE Bk 202,515 0.19 118,600 0.11
Total #5t 1,964,182 1.85 1,881,100 1.77
Note: M3 -
(1) Water consumption intensity is calculated by m?® of water consumption per (1) FREERGUE HERRERNEKE

tonne of coal products sold.

>
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Paper Consumption and Packaging Materials

Paper is consumed across Hongguo Coal Mine, Baogushan Coal Mine,
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine, Songshan Coal Preparation Plant, as well as offices
in Mainland China and Hong Kong. To control paper usage, the Group
encourages all departments to process information digitally as much as
possible. The Group’s total paper consumption for the year ended 31
December 2022 remained at a stable level compared to the previous year.

Paper consumption and intensity:

RHRE(TR)
RAEE(REWOHEE

Paper consumption (kg)
Paper consumption intensity (kg of paper
consumption per tonne of coal products sold)

(kg/tonne) (F7= W)

Working Environment and Employee Development
The Group continuously improves its human resources policies and
regulates its employment management. At the core of this aspect, we make
sure that all employees of the Group in Mainland China are covered by the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FF#E A R £ A E & E))%)),
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (% A R ££7N
B &) 4 [F)%)), General Principles of the Civil Law of the People’s Republic
of China (¥ AR Z&FEI R %@A)); while all the employees in Hong Kong
are covered by the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 57 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The workers’ union represents all
workers and monitors the execution of our employment policies.

R g kEems (&)

REERBEMR
SHEKRNSATRIEARERE - B LEE -
SO B RENE « ML - A R R BIRRE &
EBNRAE - BEFAL  XEEHBHE
HPIREUBFHIAEREER - A5EHZE
2022F 12 A AL FE 2 M EH FFAEL
IRIFBIEAKTE ©

REEREE :

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLFE

BRIREmNFELRE (T )aH)

2022 2021

20224 20214

7,245 6,246

0.007 0.006
THERBEREERE

AEBTHETEANEREE  REAITE
B o R ERZRL - BAERASEHRAT
BAREREEXZ(PEARKNELEE)  (h
EARANBELE B A RE R(PEARLME
RZBADMRE - URERABEEEEER
BREDIESTE(RIBIRH) - BEEDIF485
B(RFERTREF BRI REEADIF608
ERETEGODARE - TERERABELIA
W EE BRI ERBERAAIT ©
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RS g kERRE(B)

The table below shows detailed employee statistics of the Group

categorised by contract, job function, gender, age group, and employment

location:

By job function

Directors of the Company

Administration and management

Accounting and finance
Sales and marketing
Production scheduling
Production safety

Mine production

Coal preparation

Supply and procurement

By gender
Male
Female

By age group
<30

31-40

41-50

51-60

> 61

By employment location
Guizhou

Hong Kong

Total

>
> |

REEER D
ARAEESE
THER
SR
HHE K H
EEZE
LS

A YNEAT

A
e

2

RERERE D
30B%E AT
31-405%
41-503%
51-607%

6155 A

BI{EHESD
=)

e

#Et

TREIAKEIZEL - Biae - 15 - Fied
B R TR &) 20 M RHARIE B 2R -

Number of employees

BEAE
As at 31 December

128318
2022 2021
20224 20214
11 11
331 299
32 29
6 6
32 27
298 281
2,578 2,236
326 204
5 5
3,180 2,736
439 362
682 582
1,276 1,036
1,071 957
560 512
30 11
3,609 3,087
10 11

3,619 3,098




The table below sets out the employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region:
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By gender ZERIE D
Male St
Female 2zt

By age group REwRARNE D
<30 305% AT
31-40 31-405%,
41-50 41-505%,
51-60 51-605%,

> 61 61573 A £
By geographical region ZitEE D
Guizhou M

Hong Kong E

Employment Standards

The Group’s employment standards are set out clearly in its internal
documents. Adhering to the relevant local and national laws and regulations,
as well as the Group’s internal guidelines, hiring of the following groups of
persons is strictly prohibited, including under-aged labour, persons without
legal identity, those who were prohibited from working in the industry
by law, other Company’s employees, those who can’t pass the physical
examination for the relevant position, and any other persons who are
prevented from employment by law. Our recruitment decisions are based
on the type of work, skills, and qualifications required by different positions.
The general manager of each subsidiary is responsible for the employment
practices of the respective company and shall be held accountable in case
of illegal employment and termination, inappropriate punishment, incomplete
social insurance etc. Chairman and persons with his authorisation are
accounted for the employment of the higher management team. Due to
strict internal hiring rules, no non-compliance cases were found during the
year under review.

B R REARE ()

TRHEFIRIER - FhER MtEEDHREE

MRE

Employee turnover rate (%)
EBERKE(%)
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12B318LEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
57.99 30.34
28.25 15.47
77.27 40.03
64.66 32.72
46.03 22.05
17.14 16.41
90.00 172.73
54.53 28.70
10.00 9.09

(R

AEERERRERIINEAR M - RigH
FAMBEFKEEERER AR EBNIIREG S
B BEERNUTARERE  BREAKFED
EBREFNEFROAR - ROERLEER
TEIENAR - HibARBEE - 1B
BRIamA R EARRASEILERMEAEMD
AR - RFIMBRREDENTIEEL - TR
BAIFTESKNRAEMEEFEL - XHTB AR
RIEHEERARNEREINAR - HERER
KAREE - REITE - HERBRREBTI2FHEN
BEEM - TEREREABRY LAEEEK
METAE - ARAEATHEERE - DEF
EARERIERER -
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Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to providing equal opportunities for all employees.
The company does not discriminate on the basis of race, gender, age,
religion, or disability. The Group’s hiring decisions were made solely based
on whether the candidates’ skillset met the relative requirements of the
positions they applied for.

During the year under review, the Group’s workforce consists mainly of
persons 31-50 years old, while those beyond this age range also took up
a certain proportion, which is in line with the current labour market. As for
gender, generally more male individuals were willing to join labour-intensive
frontline positions in Guizhou, therefore, the Group employed significantly
more men than women, though no gender-discrimination consideration was
put in place, nor was there any other unequal hiring standards.

Besides, equal access to training and development opportunities, and
equal consideration for promotions and other job opportunities are given
to all employees. More about remuneration and on-the-job training will be
explained in the following sections.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not receive any
complaints in relation to unequal employment or workplace discrimination.

Remuneration and Benefits

The group provide competitive wages and benefits, along with reasonable
working hours and paid leaves to our employees. We also offers bonuses
and other incentives to employees who demonstrate outstanding

professionalism.

As required by the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group contributes to all employees’ mandatory provident
fund and retirement benefits scheme. As for Mainland China, we provide
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, and housing fund, widely
referred to as “Five Insurances and One Fund” in the region.

>
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Occupational Health and Safety

While our back-office employees are exposed to significantly fewer health
and safety risks, the measures discussed in this section mainly apply to
frontline employees in Mainland China. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group has complied in all material respects with all applicable
laws and regulations concerning health and safety at our coal mines
in China, in particular, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work
Safety ((FPZE AR HEMBEIZ 2 £ E X)), and the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FF# AR %
BB 2 555K )). During the year under review, a dedicated unit of the
management staff is assigned to each of the Group’s mines to oversee the
daily practices in preventing and controlling occupational diseases. Though
each mine has its own set of policies and governing unit, these policies can
be summarised as below:

(1) All staff members at mines must comply with safety rules and
processes and wear personal protective equipment, including
masks, earmuffs, and safety helmets;

) Standard ventilation equipment is established at work, and the level
of toxic gas in the mines are regularly monitored;

3) Before operating the machinery of the mines, including excavators,
drills, explosives and trucks, workers must receive training and
obtain qualification proofs;

4) Each coal mine has established its production safety management
department with designated heads in charge of safety management,
including inspecting the conditions of the mines to ensure safe
working conditions;

) Each coal mine is assigned with over 30 officers from the production
safety management department who have received professional
training and are qualified. They are assigned to different teams and
key activities; and

(6) Prior to each team entering the mine, a pre-shift meeting will be held
to remind employees to maintain their safety awareness and take
pre-cautions to prevent potential hazards.

The Group is committed to ensuring the safety of our workers, yet we deeply
regret to report that there was one fatal accident in our Hongguo Coal Mine
in 2022. We offer our sincerest condolences to the family and friends of
the deceased worker. Our Group has investigated the accident and taken
measures to prevent similar incidents from occurring in the future. We strive
to continuously improve our safety procedures and maintain a safe working
environment for all employees. In the previous years ended December 31,
2020, and 2021, there were no fatal accidents at our coal mines. There were
some occupational injuries and lost workdays, which we have worked to
manage at reasonable levels.
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The below table summarises the number of injuries from the occupational
accident and related lost working days in the Group:

TREATEERTEEEIMEBHNZEA
BLERBARTIERS :

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A3ALEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Number of Number of
Number of ~ working days Number of working days
injuries from lost due to injuries from lost due to
occupational occupational occupational occupational
accidents injuries accidents injuries
ETEBZING HAIBGELX RIEBEIMN FIERESPS
BYZEAY ITHEEE  BRXEAH T{ER%
Hongguo Coal Mine ARSI 81 9,000 66 6,425
Baogushan Coal Mine BaLERE 38 4,738 53 5,479
Songshan Coal Preparation Plant AL 3 442 3 462
Xiejiahegou Coal Mine AFOEETE 44 5,651 44 4,607
Total st 167 19,831 166 16,973
Development and Training BREEI

Employee development and training are important parts of any successful
business. We consider it essential to ensure that our employees are
adequately trained and developed in order to realise their full potential
and ensure that they are able to perform their duties effectively. We also
encourage our employees to take up new challenges and responsibilities to
grow their vocational skills and showcase their capabilities in order to gain
career development.

The Group provides thorough training to new recruits so that they are
familiarised with their working conditions and necessary safety precautions,
while all workers and special operators shall obtain certifications by
passing annual training before starting work. In addition, the Group offers
professional on-the-job training based on the needs of the different
roles such as coal mining, supply and procurement, administration, and
accounting, so that employees can improve their skills in their respective
fields and have opportunities for further development.

>
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We provide adequate training courses without discrimination based on age, BMREEFIRE - ToFhe - HRIRE
gender, and rank. However, courses related to production safety and mining oo R - BRAEEZE MBI RN
conditions are considered the most important and were repeatedly provided REBREE  TRE2FZAHAR - ZE5HE
throughout the year. These courses were mainly provided to mining workers, FEDRRBEIARE  BEXZRBEMA
who are predominantly male who are willing to join a labour-intensive work BEEERTHERENEHETIA -

environment.

The table below shows a breakdown of the number of attendances by TREYIREEERE DB FEARBA
employee type:

For the year ended 31 December

HE12RALEE
2022 2021
2020E 20215

Total Average L Total Average The

numberof  traininghours  Percentage of number of training hours percentage of

atendances  completed per attendances atendances  completed per attendances

trained attendances trained trained attendances trained

(hours) (%) (hours) (%)

BUREEIN BREZEI

B EENTHE B BN RENTEE RS

EEAR = EENEAM EEAR [ [EERAEAL

By categories et (1hE) (%) (/) (%)
By gender RAERIED

Male S 3,802 48 99.58 5510 4831 99.84

Female i 16 9 042 9 5 0.16
By job categories EECE)

Administration and management TR 49 3 128 21 5 038

Accounting and finance ERpE % 3 063 12 5 0.2

Sales and marketing HEREH 12 3 032 6 5 0.1

Production scheduling FEHRE 10 2% 0.26 NATER NAT R NATER

Production safety FERE 158 % 414 NATER NATER NATER

Mine production BREE 3,555 50 93.11 5475 487 99.20

Supply and procurement ftE R 10 3 0.26 5 5 0.09

<
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Supply Chain Management

In order to ensure efficient and effective product production and delivery,
the Group actively and cautiously manages its supply chain. The Group
purchases mechanical auxiliary materials from external parties such as
articulated rollers, belt conveyors, bottom rollers, polyester composite
pipes, rubber, curing agents, support steel, fire-resistant belts, hydraulic
supports, anchor nets and lifting boards. These machines have a significant
impact on the efficiency of our operation and the safety of our workers.
Therefore, the Group imposes stringent requirements on selecting suppliers.
As a ground rule, suppliers shall possess the necessary legal certification
as well as meet international and national provisions relating to product and
service quality. We also consider their production capacity and track record
of customer service. After the certification review, we ask potential suppliers
to ship product samples for our internal inspection. The Procurement
department keeps a record of qualified suppliers. For large orders, relevant
departments shall first compare at least three suppliers based on quality,
price, delivery time and services. Internal approvals must be obtained before
any large orders are processed. Other than necessary qualifications, the
Group also considers suppliers’ environmental impacts and tries to engage
with companies with the same ethical values as ours.

During the year under review, the Group had 285 suppliers (2021: 303), all
located in Mainland China.

Product Responsibility

Quality Control

The Group is committed to providing the highest quality products to its
customers, knowing that poor quality fossil fuel products could pose a
severe threat to the natural environment and end-users’ working conditions.
To ensure this, we have implemented a rigorous quality control process.
This process includes regular inspections of the mining sites, testing of
the raw materials, and the use of the latest technology to monitor the
production process. A designated quality control laboratory is set up in
our Songshan Coal Preparation Plant, where our experienced technicians
conduct preliminary testing on our products to determine their quality.
The products would be traced and further studied whenever any abnormal
indicators were found.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not violate or
breach any laws and regulations relating to product responsibility and did

not receive any product complaints or claims.

>
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Customer Services and Information Management

To provide excellent customer service, the Group has a dedicated sales
team that is available to answer any questions or concerns that customers
may have. The Group’s sales team connects us to our customers, mainly
coking enterprises, iron and steel or chemical manufacturers, power
plants, etc. They negotiate with customers to determine the selling price
by considering production cost, market demand, specification and quality,
and prevailing market rates. The team is also responsible for providing
customers with accurate and up-to-date information about the products
offered by the Group.

As part of our customer relations management policies, we make it
clear that customer information and privacy must be treated under strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. All customer information is
recommended to be stored digitally behind our antivirus firewall. Our sales
managers oversee the printing of customer documents and the filing of hard
copies. Both hard copies and electronic files containing customer information
are only accessible by relevant and authorised staff. Our IT department is
responsible for setting up authorised accounts while the human resources
department implementation of our customer privacy policies. Staff in breach
of the rules above may be subject to fines or termination of employment.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not receive any
reports or customer complaints on violation of the laws and regulations
relating to customer services and information management.

Intellectual Property Management

The Group has implemented a comprehensive intellectual property
management system that includes the registration of patents, trademarks,
and copyrights, as well as the protection of trade secrets and production
techniques. All intellectual works created by our employees to complete
work assignments using physical materials provided by subsidiaries of the
Group are considered the intellectual property of the relevant subsidiary. The
Group’s intellectual property management system strictly follows relevant
laws and regulations, and our legal team is responsible for monitoring the use
of these properties with the assistance of designated personnel from each
department. When partnering with outside parties, confidentiality terms may
be added to the engagement contracts to protect the intellectual properties
of the Group and other concerned parties.

No breach of intellectual property laws and regulations was found during
the year under review.
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Anti-Corruption

Committed to conducting business in an ethical and responsible manner,
the Group has adopted an Anti-fraud Code that outlines its commitment
to ethical business practices and its zero-tolerance policy for corruption.
The Anti-fraud Code is reviewed and updated from time to time to ensure
that it reflects the development of laws and regulations as well as the
Group’s commitment. As a listed company, we also comply with the Code
of Corporate Governance Practices, set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, as a guideline for formulating the internal rules and regulations for
integrity discipline and clean administration.

The Board and its Audit Committee guide and monitor the Group’s anti-
corruption practices with assistance from the auditing department. The
Group also opened whistleblower channels including telephones and
emails that can provide employees with a safe and secure way to report
any suspected violations without fear of retaliation. In case of any breach
of internal anti-corruption rules, the progress and results of the corruption
investigation will be submitted directly to the Board. If non-compliance
cases of governing laws were found, we would report to the authority and
hold respective staff accountable. The Group also arranges regular training
sessions for all employees to remind them of the anti-corruption policies.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was not involved in
any corruption litigation and has not received any suspected corruption
report.

The following table shows the number of anti-corruption training sessions
provided by the Group:

BY R BE)SEIRRIZIRE
BERESHIMHEAR

Number of anti-corruption training sessions held
Number of employees receiving anti-corruption
training
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Community Investment

The Group’s local subsidiary ranked 14" among the top 100 private
enterprises in Guizhou, growing from 41t in the previous year. With a root
in the Liupanshui area of Guizhou Province, the Group is deeply concerned
about the welfare of the local community and allocated resources mainly
to poverty relief, medical support, and education. In Hong Kong, the Group
takes responsibility for the elderly in overcoming mental boredom and
material difficulties during the COVID-19 pandemic by sponsoring a charity
Cantonese opera performance that included free online streaming for all and
gifting goods to various elderly care homes.

During the year under review, the resources we allocate to community
investment are summarised below:

- Donation of RMB790,000 to Songshan Village Residential
Committees, Hongguo Subdistrict (4T £ #7 & M LU /& £ € ) to
contribute to the Rural Cooperative Medical Scheme (114 {E 58 5);

- Tuition and living subsidies of RMB223,400 towards 22 local
impoverished college students;

- Donation of RMB3,000 as activity budget for Xiaying Village,
Yangchang Township (548 T & 49);

- RMB18,000 for vising people in need in Yangchang Township (¥
#B) during Chinese New Year;

- Donation of RMB62,600 to help people in need in Yangchang
Township (FE1545);

- Sponsorship of HK$20,000 for Charity Cantonese Opera Show

Welcoming Mid-autumn (%% & & #8 ¥ § #K) for the elderly in Hong
Kong.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PERENNIAL ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
ARIPERRIZERER AT
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Deloitte

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Perennial
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 208, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key audit matter
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FREITEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNERNMEERRETSE

Depreciation of mining structures included in property, plant and equipment and amortisation of mining rights

FTAYF - B KR BRI IR IS Y RIHT B R FR AR HE A 3

We identified the depreciation of mining structures included
in property, plant and equipment and amortisation of
mining rights (“mining related assets”) as a key audit matter
due to the involvement of significant estimation and the
management’s judgement in determining the total proven and
probable reserves of the coal mines.
HRPRERTHERER EETABERE MR EFERER
THE - BEMSEADE - BE RRENREBEYITE R
R ([ SRR B ) B tH T T RRARE ST $IR -

As explained in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group determines depreciation of mining
structures included in property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of mining rights by using the units of production
method based on the actual production volume over the total
proven and probable reserves of the coal mines concerned.
The estimated reserves are the estimates of the quantity
of coal that can be economically and legally extracted
from the Group’s mining properties, which are determined
according to an independent technical review report
prepared by an external specialist with the consideration of
most recent production and technical information of each
mine. In addition, a variation on recovery rates or unforeseen
geological or geotechnical perils may cause the management
to change the production plan resulting from a revision to the
estimates of coal reserves.

MANERE PSRRI 4P - EREREE BHEEEE R
B B E R E B A B AT T A - F%&“
BRREBEDITE A RIREE S - (ArtfEERE 56
B E AL B GRHT A EERRNBEREE-THT -
IRIRIN PR AR B0 8 L B T2 B e s I 2 B & % ) B AP
HERBMTERHEERE © tboh - BEREZ BN TER A E
geE T RIGH RS BB R K KRS et BT SR ok &
HEERE -

As set out in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, depreciation of mining structures and the
amortisation of mining rights for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to RMB25,192,000 (2021: RMB17,338,000)
and RMB37,324,000 (2021: RMB35,912,000), respectively.
WANER A IS IRARMT 14 R 16FTH - B Z=2022F 12 A31H1E
FE - RBEEBEYITE RIREERED R A AR25,192,000
70 (2021 F : A R#17,338,000T) & A K ¥ 37,324,000 7T
(20214 : AR¥35,912,0007T) °

Our procedures in relation to the depreciation and
amortisation of mining related assets included:

BN ERRER B EMITE R HEF B

e Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external specialist who prepared the independent
technical review reports;

o MARRBURMEMRSOIILERNER - 8
mit

NEE

e Obtaining an understanding from the external specialist
about the techniques applied in estimation of total proven
and probable reserves of the coal mines, the basis of
calculation, key inputs and data used in the estimation;

o [AISNERE %%%%ﬁﬂﬁmﬂﬁﬁ%@%iﬁr%m&
o~ AEPTAMGERERE FERABBERER

e Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs used in
calculation of depreciation and amortisation of mining
related assets, by examining the annual production
summary provided by the management of the Group
and checking the consistency by comparing it against
estimated production volume throughout the useful lives
of the mines included in the estimated coal reserves
(comprising total proven and probable reserves), based
on an independent technical review report prepared by
external specialist;

o AR ERBIEMEETE EHENBERAZBIERN
BEM  FEAMEAEEEREIRENFELEERE
WRBINFERFERHOBE LM ESRERBLERIARE
REREERSG NG ESReEhERFES (R
BE LB AEEAR) B —3T

e Testing actual production volume by crossing checking to
delivery and settlement documents on a sample basis;
o FRMBERINZERNREEX  ARABEREES

e Testing the integrity and arithmetic accuracy of the
calculation of depreciation of mining structures and
amortisation of mining rights for the year ended 31
December 2022;

o AIEEE2022F12 A31 B L F EERIE R S I B MR
st E AR B R e
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company

and those charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

>
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIAZBEN RS (F)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identified during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken or safeguards applied to eliminate threats.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Zhu Chen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBmkHEMAEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31H IFFE

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Fair value change of contingent
consideration payables

Other gains and losses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year

Earnings per share (RMB cents)
Basic

sk
HERA

EF

HARA
EASARBATFEES

HAh s K B 18
DR HERX
TR
HABF
AR

BRA A A
MIE

FREN R 2ERA LR

BREMN(ARED)
E-Y/N

28

10
11

13

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
1,784,033 1,541,399
(666,398) (622,916)
1,117,635 918,483
52,798 13,296
(20,409) (308,518)
(4,940) 1,935
(72,515) (58,109)
(110,882) (129,921)
(77,211) (2,690)
(28,928) (23,048)
855,548 411,428
(111,593) (109,658)
743,955 301,770
46.50 18.86
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Mining rights

Restricted bank deposits

Deferred tax assets

Rental deposits

Deposits for purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Deposits for acquisition of mining rights

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Bank borrowings

Contingent consideration payables

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

WE - BB KRR

REME

PRz

R HRITER
ERRIAEE

Heme

BEME  BEMRENZE

WEREEN S

REEE
&
B 5 YR & R R &

Ze  RNREREMRKKIEA

AU EIFEIR
RekRSEEY

it

BHaE

) AN/

L IR K AT B A
AHAE

HERE

FEfITHIR

RITRESK

PR RARME

\hlt \lm\é\ &4

o

REEEFHE

REERRBAE

NOTES
s

ﬁ-{

14
15
16
17
18
21

21
21

19
20

21

22

23
24
25
26

27
28

e AR R
As at 31 December 2022
7202212 A31H

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
1,897,205 1,512,740
51,500 51,600
828,867 866,191
17,239 12,740
40,129 -
426 494
2,819 26,520
90,566 90,566
2,928,751 2,560,851
49,444 51,159
871,550 393,003
28,202 20,516
= 31,238
202,057 180,854
1,151,253 676,770
109,304 81,688
212,391 159,735
1,639 9,197
1,275 1,251
35,270 -
695,972 221,015
395,186 253,536
1,451,037 726,422
(299,784) (49,652)
2,628,967 2,511,199
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

Ra BRI R (&)

As at 31 December 2022
72022F12H31H

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

Contingent consideration payables
Provision for restoration costs

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 208 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2023 and

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Yu Bangping
RAFEE
DIRECTOR

BE

FRBEE
EEHARE
RITRESK
FERRARE
BERAR R

BEEFE
BARRHE
BeA

s

R

B

2022 2021

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T AREET T
18 28,017 16,811
26 1,299 2,575
27 90,000 301,000
28 = 378,095
29 47,008 44,974
166,324 743,455

2,462,643 1,767,744

30 14,136 14,136
2,448,507 1,753,608

2,462,643 1,767,744

HNE108E 208 E M4 A M IEMRAKREHRE
FEHR2023F3 F21 B#HbA& M IRHETIEE - Wi
UTALEE :

Mr. Li Xuezhong
ZERESE
DIRECTOR

BE



At 1 January 2021

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividend recognised as distribution

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve

At 31 December 2021

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividend recognised as distribution
(note 12)

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve

At 31 December 2022

Annual Report 2022 £ 111

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e g

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADNREE AL
Statutory
Share Share Other surplus Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
EERER
RA  ROOEE  HtbfEE #E  REEN st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTL ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARET:R
(note (i) (note (ii)

(Fi&EG) (B i)

20211 A18 14,136 443,759 212,664 84,075 764,494 1,519,128
FREAREZAERALE

- - - - 301,770 301,770

REDELIRE - (53,154) - - = (53,154)

BRESLTRABRRE - - - 31,350 (31,350) =

12021123318 14,136 390,605 212,664 115425 1,034,914 1,767,744
FREHREZAKAEE

- - - - 743955 743,955
BRD K ZBE (HFE12)

= (49,056) = = = (49,056)
BRI TRRRHE - - - 76,374 (76,374) =
R2022F128318 14,136 341,549 212,664 191,799 1,702,495 2,462,643
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Other reserve as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 represented
the aggregate amount of (i) the aggregate profit of RMB130,191,000 in
respect of operations of the Mining Business (as defined in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements of the annual report for year ended 31
December 2019) carried out by Old Operating Entities (as defined in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements of the annual report for year ended
31 December 2019) prior to the Assets Transfer (as defined in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements of the annual report for year ended
31 December 2019) and the profit was legally belonged to Old Operating
Entities and non-distributable by the Group; (ii) net historical transfer from
non-controlling interests of RMB222,669,000; (iii) the credit of RMB5,664,000
arisen from historical derecognition of assets and liabilities of Old Operating
Entities; (iv) historical distribution of profits of a subsidiary of RMB145,860,000
to the then Shareholders (except for Hong Kong Resources (as defined in
note 2 of consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 December
2019)).

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each year, the
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit after
taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve has
reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The statutory reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors of the relevant
subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital.

BiEE

(ii)

72022F 12 A31 H &%2021F12 531 HAY
HiFEEA T SENERN : (HELEER
B(ExREZ2019F12 A31H ILFER
ERZEAVBRRNE) FEAEERE(TE
EREZE2019F12A3N B EFEREF 2
REMISIRARMI ) ATETT R RIEER (8
#BEE2019F12A31B L EEREF 2
RAEMBHREME) EENRFBEAR
#130,191,0007T ' % m AR LBRE
BEER  AEETAUDK (VBAEE
B IR )T A R 16222,669,0007T :
(iR ItERELS EEENEERABESE
K8 AR5,664,0007T : K (v)BERAE
RHRF(EEERER(ERRLEE2019
F12A B IEFEREP 2HKEMBRE
FisE2)BR AN 73R — R B A R FIA R
145,860,0007C °

A E ARFME ([HEDEBEER
ERETR  REFESIRANA - RPE
R SZ OB B 2 B 858 B R BR AE M EN10%
BRIEAEBHRBES ZRBEIMNBR
AlEMEARNS0%E RSN - LIABMER
AESg RAMIPIHER - RETEHERE
ESERANEHRERIIENER -



OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of mining rights
Finance costs
Fair value change of contingent
consideration payables
Loss on disposal/written off of property,
plant and equipment
Fair value change of investment
properties
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in trade payables

Increase in other payables and accrued
charges

Decrease (increase) in inventories

(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities

Increase in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Increase in trade and bills receivables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Annual Report 2022 3% 1 1 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ IE@/)ILE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31H ILEE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREET T

T E
BREE AR 855,548 411,428
FLATIEER fEH A% -
ME - BEKRRBINE
99,135 83,307
PRAEREE B 37,324 35,912
BB 28,928 23,048
ERSAREBATEE
20,409 308,518
HEMEEE - BE RRENES
2,554 441
REMENTELS
100 1,100
FIEMA (1,264) (@11)
BEESEPINEEESRE
1,042,734 862,843
& Z R FRIEE 85,004 16,170
Hh REHRRIE S FE AT & FRIE AN
64,676 70,990
FERAEM) 1,715 (21,780)
ERaEORD) N (7,558) 9,007
e - TERERIE R E R
N (7,618) (3,256)
E 5 FEWGRIE X E R IR AN (924,203) (199,442)
(R ETIETE 4 254,750 734,532
BEASFTSE (74,008) (181,104)

S EE TSRS T 180,742 553,428
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

RAaRenER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EE¥)% - BE L& E
Purchase of mining right and related assets ~ WRE TG MBI A &

Placement of restricted bank deposits 7 X PR FIERITIF 5K

Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEME  BEREENENES
plant and equipment

Interest received BEIFLE

Increase in deposit paid for acquisition of W R TE M B R & 15 00
mining rights

Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits IREVZ R HIERTTIE

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant LEWE - BERBREMSHKIEA
and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES &2&EEFTFAE & F5E

FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Dividend paid ERTRE
Interest paid on bank borrowings and BITEREAEEENENTE
lease liabilities
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE
New borrowings from factoring of EREBERTIRIEFTE

bills receivables

New borrowings raised FTIg R
Repayment of borrowings BEEK

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEEE TSI S F5E

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEEYIENFE
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FPRERBRESEEBY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATTHE S XEERRLZEY
END OF THE YEAR, BERITHESBERS
represented by bank balances and cash

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
(471,654) (428,838)
(256,854) (187,959)
(4,499) (4,516)
(2,819) (26,520)
1,264 911
- (29,366)
- 12,030
- 1,510
(734,562) (662,748)
(49,056) (53,154)
(19,367) (21,102)
(1,252) (1,824)
644,698 171,651
- 100,000
- (45,000)
575,023 150,571
21,203 41,251
180,854 139,603
202,057 180,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Act Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 7 June 2017.
The shares of the Company were listed on the company Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) on 12 December 2018 and its parent and ultimate
holding company is Spring Snow Management Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).
The address of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and Unit 1003, 10th Floor, Tower 2,
Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the exploration
and mining of coking coal and coal refinery in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”).

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Mr. Yu Bangping (“Mr.
Yu”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) which is also the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

—RER

ARRAAR2017F6 A7HBIEHS 5
ERTEEREERSHSEMMA
UREBREBERAGF o RABKMH
R2018F12 A 12BEEBHER S
FBERAR(TBERP]) ERET
i H & 2 7] M ik SR E AR X 7] & Spring
Snow Management Limited ' %22 &
RRNEBREES((HABRELRES])
EMAZEBR AR o ARAF R M
PERRFELEB RIS R
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands
REEEEIR NBEHLE2F10
1£1003% °

RRFE—AREEB AT - HME
RAEBWEB /NP EARLME
(TFR B ) e = B iR B R ER AR AR DA Bzt
BREETS o

ARRERBRABRBFEE(TRE
£ e

FAMBHRERNARB(TAREDZ2
5 ARETRARRARIEINEEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

2. Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2022
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds

before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

RANE 78 B 7 e s 2R B
(TEEMBIREEL )
(CHIEN

RAE R RO E B
R BUEETA

RAFE  AEEEXEAESS:T
MAg((EBSFEAE ) BMAEIA
TEHEBUBRELEANSET - ZFEF]
RAEEB202251 A1 BFRBNEE
HARISR B AR - ARG RER S IR
*:

BEUMBREER  REHSER

EXACCHES)
BRI REEE 20216 A30A A A
F16% (1B7]A) Covid-194AFf
SER
BEEHENE6S W% BRREE-
(f3TA) BERRANASE
TE
BEERER  EHAN-BIANN
(fE3TA) A
BAMEREER BAMBREER
(B3T) 2018F £20205 2
FENE

AEERATEVBREEA(ERT
R)VHARBEARFEE FBEFENTTE
RREEE R RZEEAPBREK
PREVEVIREEI MEBARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Non-current liabilities with covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

2. Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on

the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

(continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity
is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period do not affect
whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if the
entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those liabilities is
subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue
of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2022, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

2. Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However,
not all accounting policy information relating to material transactions,
other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples
are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such items to
be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly
and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops
an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by the
accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use
of judgements or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable
information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in HKAS
8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

et

For the

R ML ()

year ended 31 December 2022

#HZE2022F12 31 ILFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the going concern basis which assumes the continuity of normal
business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement
of liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of
the Group when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group generated a net
profit of RMB744 million (2021: net profit of RMB302 million). At 31
December 2022, the Group had total cash and cash equivalents
of RMB202 million (2021: RMB181 million), net current liabilities of
RMB300 million (2021: RMB50 million) and generated net operating
cash inflows of RMB181 million (2021: RMB553 million) and total
net cash inflows of RMB21 million (2021: net cash inflows of RMB41
million), after investing and financing cash flows.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the Group will
be able to meet its debts as and when they fall due after taking into
the consideration of the cash flow forecasts, which assume the
continuity of normal business activity, indicate that the Group will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its operational, existing contractual
debts and capital commitments for the 12 month period from 31
December 2022.

Accordingly the consolidated financial statements were prepared on
a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and contingent
consideration payables that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

S

3.

202212 A31BILFE

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when a company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when a company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when a company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when a
company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributable to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interest. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if the results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do not constitute
a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and the revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with

an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right
to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The Group recognises revenue mainly from the sales of coal
products/coalbed methane gas.

Sales of coal products/coalbed methane gas

Revenue from the sales of coal products/coalbed methane gas
are recognised at a point in time when the control of goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to the
customers’ specific location. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers as this represents
the Group’s right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment is due.
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combination, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception or modification date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of leasehold land and buildings that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property in “property, plant and equipment”,
the same line item within which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

S

3.

202212 A31BILFE

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
assets. When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non- lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured under fair
value model.

Rental income of leasing the investment property is included in other

income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through

forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,
including costs of testing whether the related assets is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the entire consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets,
other than construction in progress and mining structures, over
their estimated useful lives after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The mining structures are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the mining
structures using the units of production method based on the actual
production volume over the total proven and probable reserves of
the coal mine concerned. Reserve estimates are reviewed when
information becomes available that indicates a reserve change
is needed, or at a minimum once a year. Any material effect from
changes in estimates is considered in the period the change occurs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Mining rights

Mining rights are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and subsequent accumulated impairment loss. Mining
rights include the cost of acquiring mining licenses. Amortisation for
mining rights is provided using the units of production method based
on the actual production volume over the total proven and probable
reserves of the coal mine concerned.

A mining right is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of a mining right, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment loss on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment loss on non-financial assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated to the assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated statement
of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above.

Bank balances for which used by the Group is subject to third party
contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless the
restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the definition
of cash. Regulatory restrictions affecting use of bank balances are
disclosed in note 17.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except trade and bills receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

S

3.

202212 A1 B ILFE

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including restricted bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances), which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills
receivables. The lifetime ECL on trade and bills receivables are
assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

et

For the

B ML ()

year ended 31 December 2022

#HZE2022F12 31 ILFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default; (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment
grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(ii) Definition of default
The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer of the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

o it is becoming probably that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade and bills receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice when appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount with the exception of trade and bills receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a

loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

et

R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liabilities is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading or (jii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables and
accrued charges, and bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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year ended 31 December 2022
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Provision for restoration

A provision for restoration is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or construction) as a result of exploration,
development and production activities undertaken, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount of the provision can be measured
reliably. The estimated future obligations include the costs of
removing facilities, abandoning sites and restoring the affected

areas.

The amount recognised as the provision for restoration cost is the
best estimate of the present value of the expenditure required to
settle the present restoration obligation at the end of the reporting
period, based on current legal and other requirements. Future
restoration costs are reviewed annually and any changes in the
estimate are reflected in the present value of the provision at the end
of the reporting period.

Changes in the estimation of the restoration provision that result
from changes in the estimated timing or amount of cash flows,
including the effects of revisions to estimated lives of operation or
a change in the discount rate, are added to, or deducted from, the
cost of the related asset in the period it occurred. If a decrease in
liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Unwinding of the effect of
discounting on the provision is recognised as finance costs.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the income tax expense currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

3.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

B ES U ERRNEE
REREFTTBE @)

HHEEER

REHMR BRI R B IR RS R TR
HX R RER S RER - A
REMEE RN DR /MY - RIFE
EEBRBUBRELENREL
AT ABERARER o

BREZHBH(WIERFEURSE
BRIRHAKREMENEBERRESA

(=
8

o

Bi1g
i TE 45 B BA FE A< BT 1S 56 A 2 BRI RE 7Y
TERY4EAN o

BV HA 5 58 2R T 3R F A B AR Bt g M =t
B - HREMEFE N ERT AR
WA B 78 32 DA B 2R ER B B T AT 7R
HE - ERBENERINGEIERE R
Hih 2R T2 MR AT
A o REBEMBEBRIARBEIZRE
HRERMKXBEERMANTHEE -

BB A M RRPEER
B ERRREE S5 B RRTOE A AT
HERE BN ERER - ELEH
A B E—RILAT A AR B B 22 RR AR
R o RIETIRE E—RATA AR
EisZRER - NE B ERBR
AT ARG AR IR 28 A
BR o i #] 2 MR (RIS A BFERSN) — TR
RHBERABMEENERHEZET
FERRVEMNKGFHEN - BIFR
BEMBEERBE/T TR

149



1 5(0 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited XA 32 a0RERER A H
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investment
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale, except
for freehold land, which is always presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right of use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application
of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement
or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

3.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE
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3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,

and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

>
o

3.

G EUBRRNELE
REREFTTHE @)

(RPN

Wi - gt ERBEREEAIALR
BERERESHENERERERHEERN
BE) BEREBENERNAE T AZE
BEENKA BERSEEBEAE
BERRIHE

EHEEECSERRARERZHE
SR - (EA i R R AV 8 E B B AT
A—REFATHE —RERNERE
o BEBRREFEAREHERE
REERBIEREREMRRNEE
WAR A BBEAMEMERKARH

A B A fE SR A 70 B A AR A

= Nz 7
B R o

SNES
REREEEEERNHTHHRE
B - AXE IR AN ER (51
B)HENXZRR S A HMNBRTER
MR - RIEHR - LISNERHENE
KRB RZANRITERSHRE -
VAR £ R ARGT B AIMNE ST ER IER
KIEETHERE -

REERIERANENREEEIER
ELNELZRONEESHHER

FAERR ©



Annual Report 2022 £ #§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the management of the Group have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on undistributed profits of subsidiaries
At 31 December 2022, the Group provided for deferred tax liabilities
of approximately RMB28,017,000 (2021: RMB9,477,000) in relation
to the earnings expected to be distributed from certain subsidiaries.
Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided on the distributable
profits of subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,777,456,000 (2021:
RMB1,013,714,000) that the Group plans to retain in the respective
entities for their daily operations and future developments. In case
where the actual distribution of profits are larger than expected,
material tax liabilities will arise, which will be recognised in the profit
or loss for the period in which such profits are distributed or the
future development plan of the Group changed, whichever is earlier.
The detail of undistributed profits are set out in note 18.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Depreciation of mining structures included in property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of mining rights
As explained in note 3, mining rights and mining structures are
amortised or depreciated using the units of production method based
on the actual production volume over the total proven and probable
reserves of the coal mine concerned.

Proven and probable coal reserves estimates are estimates of the
quantity of coal that can be economically and legally extracted from
the Group’s mining properties, which are determined according
to an independent technical review report prepared by an external
specialist with the consideration of most recent production and
technical information of each mine. However, the mining rights were
granted for terms of 20 years (2021: 20 years). The management
of the Group is of the opinion that the Group will be able to
continuously renew the mining rights and the business licences
without significant costs. Accordingly, the Group has used the
proven and probable reserves as a basis of estimation for the useful
lives of its mining rights.

Fluctuations in factors including a variation on recovery rates
or unforeseen geological or geotechnical perils may render the
management of the Group to change the production plan, resulting
from a revision on the estimates of coal reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation of mining structures included in property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of mining rights
(continued)

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate reserves
change from period to period, and because additional geological
data is generated during the course of operations, estimates of
reserves may change from period to period. Changes in reported
reserves may affect the Group’s financial results that depreciation
and amortisation charged to profit or loss may change where such
charges are determined by the units of production basis, or where
the useful economic lives of assets change. The carrying amount of
mining rights was RMB828,867,000 (2021: RMB866,191,000) and
the carrying amount of mining structures included in the property,
plant and equipment was RMB881,422,000 (2021: RMB643,322,000)
as at 31 December 2022. The amortisation of mining rights and
depreciation of mining structures for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to RMB37,324,000 (2021: RMB35,912,000) and
RMB25,192,000 (2021: RMB17,338,000), respectively.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE

4.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Estimated useful life of machinery included in property,
plant and equipment

Machinery included in property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over their useful economic lives after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The assessment of estimated useful lives
is a matter of judgement based on the experience of the Group’s
management, taking into account factors such as technological
process, conditions of machinery and changes in market demand.
Useful lives are periodically reviewed for appropriateness. The
carrying amount of machinery included in property, plant and
equipment was RMB609,056,000 (2021: RMB522,079,000).

Remaining useful lives of mining rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated remaining
useful lives of 21 to 43 years (2021: 22 to 44 years) for its mining
rights based on the proven and probable reserves. However, the
mining rights were granted for terms of 20 years (2021: 20 years).
The management of the Group is of the opinion that the Group will
be able to continuously renew the mining rights and the business
licences without significant costs. Accordingly, the Group has used
the proven and probable reserves as a basis of estimation for the

remaining useful lives of its mining rights.

Provision for restoration costs

Provision for restoration costs has been estimated by the
management of the Group based on current regulatory requirements
and is discounted to present value. The management of the Group
estimated this liability for final reclamation and mine closure based
on detailed calculations of the amounts and timing of future cash
flows that a third party may be required to perform the required
work. However, significant changes in the regulatory requirements,
timing of performance of reclamation activities or discount rate will
result in changes to the amount of provision from period to period.
The provision is reviewed regularly to properly reflect the present
value of the obligation arising from the current and past mining
activities. The carrying amounts of provision for restoration costs
was RMB47,008,000 (2021: RMB44,974,000).

RETHHE R AT
E.?E’JEEME(AE
STAYIZE - RERBENHEEN
CEGIKES R
KEETRETAYIE - R KRR a8
MEETRIBREER - BRRELHEE
FFETE o Bt ERAFET AT
BEAEEEREERATEAE - X
TR TE - AR RIS E K
“@#lﬁ Tﬁ%i%z% )
LA RE TE 2 CETAME - MR
&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ@n%ﬁAE
# 609,056,000 7T (2021 F : AR
522,079,0007T) °

RIBRER I 2 A A
AEEEEEREZERMEHEE
EHFBEENGGAIERFEHA21E
43GF (20214F : 22F444F) - SR » R
TEREER R EI204F (20214F : 204F) ©
REBEEERE AEE M
BEARBEREERR  MBEAX
REREAR - Bt - AEEUEE
BB 2 E R AT HIRERE A RS
H B o

BRI RS
@£%$%ﬁam$ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EREEREETHIT MRS

B - ERHE fﬁﬁﬁ%xlﬁjb
EEMARRBRSRENSBRERA
HAFHE  ARBETREEDR&KRE
BREFBEGTILIERE - A
EEREMNEANES  BRFHH
TR MR R R BRI ESER T
EHAMI B £ 2 F) - BESTEH T U®
uT J«MD &BQQEEH' &iﬂff} ﬁ%?éiﬂ
FTEEMETRE - EEXNAEERN
BRI E A A R 47,008,0007T (2021
& AR%44,974,0007T) °



Annual Report 2022 £ #§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rE MR EE ()

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the sales of goods and services provided by the
Group to related party/external customers, net of related taxes, for
the year.

The following is the disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers:
Types of goods and services EmkREER
Recognised at a point in time: RE—F R
Sales of coal products: HEBEREMD
- Raw coal —REE
— Clean coal i
- Middling coal —E
— Sludge coal — e
Sales of coalbed methane gas HEKER
Geographical market Ui T 35
The PRC =a

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

Wz & 2 #PEF

6

Wais AR BRNEAm RSN
EFHEEmMERRBHE K EE
WRTE R A A (FOERAERI )

UTREFAHRU AL -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
3,541 3,469
1,687,745 1,433,911
71,216 98,044
16,711 2,894
1,779,213 1,538,318
4,820 3,081
1,784,033 1,541,399
1,784,033

1,541,399
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
Revenue (continued)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers
Sales of coal products and coalbed methane gas
For sales of coal products and coalbed methane gas, revenue is
recognised when the control of goods is transferred, being when the
goods are delivered to the customer’s specific location. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the Group’s right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due. The customers have neither rights of return
nor rights to defer or avoid payment for the goods once they are
accepted by the customers upon receipt of goods. The contracts
signed with the customers are short-term and fixed price contracts.

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less. As permitted
by HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Segment information

The Group’s operation is solely derived from the production and
sales of coal products and coalbed methane gas. For the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment, the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) (i.e. the chief executive officer)
reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group as a
whole prepared based on same accounting policies of the Group.
Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment and
no further analysis of this single segment is presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue are all derived from the PRC based on
the location of the customers and the Group’s non-current
assets, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets, of
RMB2,868,215,000 (2021: RMB2,543,402,000) are located in the
PRC and of RMB2,742,000 (2021: RMB4,215,000) are located in
Hong Kong, respectively, by physical location of assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Segment information (continued)

Information about major customers

over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C

6. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments

(@)

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ2022F12AB1 B ILFE
5. W@mKkoEER @
DEER (H)
B FEEFaIEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing RAEEHERTRRE10% A L84
EEEREPWELNT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
ZBEA 610,138 419,708
ZFB 525,848 569,556
®PC N/ATIE F* 247,582
No revenue attributed from the relevant customer. * 2% P R B R E e U o
6. EEREEHM
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ESERITHEZHH
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the HERAEENEBE SN
Company by entities comprising the Group are as follows: RAREFHFHMAT
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
YER BUinES
Mr. Lam Mr. Punnya Ms. Cheung
Mr.Sun Mr.Wang Mr.Li - Chik Shun, Mr. Yu Mr.Yu  Mr.lau  MrFong Niraan ~ SuetTing, ~ Mr. Wang
Mr. Yu Dawei Shize Xuezhong ~ Marcus  Zhilong Xiao  KaiMing ~ WaiHo  DeSilva Samantha  Xiufeng Total
Punnya
Niraan
AEE BABRE THERE FEREE WEGRE RRERE  FERE HRMELE HERAL DeSiha%i FERIT IABKE 3t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note i) (Note (i) (Note (ii) (Note (ii)
(&G (HfsEE) Pz (i) (R (i)
Year ended 31 December  E/22022%12/4314
2022 LR
Fees e 103 108 103 103 ) 108 108 60 309 309 309 200 1,848
Other emoluments: EfpgH -
Salaries and other benefits %4 [k E &7 902 902 902 1,072 938 402 402 876 = = = = 6,39
Retirement benefits BIRRHEEIRR
schemes contributions 21 - 2 2 9 19 19 18 - - - - 128
Total emoluments Hies 1,026 1,005 1,026 1,196 990 524 524 954 309 309 309 200 8,372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ20226F12AB1 B ILFE
6. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments 6. EESRESHM@
(continued)
(@ Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EERTBEIFHMGE)
(continued)
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
g% BUHES
Mr. Lam Mr. Punnya  Ms. Cheung
Mr.Sun Mr. Wang Mr.Li Chik Shun, Mr. Yu Mr.Yu  Mr.Fong Niraan ~ SuetTing, ~ Mr. Wang
Mr. Yu Dawei Shize  Xuezhong ~ Marcus  Zhilong Xiao ~ WaiHo  DeSiva Samantha  Xiufeng Total
Punnya
Niraan
REE BABRE THEEE ZBREE WEERE ALERE  ARAE ABRAL DeShaii REExt FABAE it
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETI
(Note )
(R
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEANNF10A3 ALFR
Fees ik 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 299 299 299 200 1,797
Other emoluments: At -
Salaries and other benefits FEREME 899 899 899 1,381 2,538 399 399 = = = o 744
Retirement benefits schemes RINRAEEIRR
contributions 19 - 19 20 20 17 17 - - - - 112
Total emoluments Hes 1,018 999 1,018 1,501 2,658 516 516 299 29 299 200 9,323
Notes: Bit%E
(i) Mr. Yu is also the chief executive officer of the Group. His (i REETRREETHLE
remuneration disclosed above included those for services H oo L BETFMEER
rendered by him as Chief Executive Officer. TERTT IR 48 &0 79 IR 765 B
(ii) On 1 June 2022, the board of directors approved the (i) R2022%6H1H - &g
resignation of Mr. Lam Chik Shun from executive director BOEMEE ST EBHEBT
and appointment of Mr. Lau Kau Ming as executive director. B WEREDIRSELE
RPITESE
The emoluments of executive directors stated above were LTRBTESTHNEREEE
for their services in connection with the management of the BARRNE RAEESHEHRSE
affairs of the Company and the Group. The emoluments of Mt o BB IEmITES
independent non-executive directors stated above were for TR ABREZIERRNATIES
their services as directors of the Company. RIARTE M S o
There was no arrangement under which a director of the REREE - WEEHAAR
Company waived or agreed to waive any remuneration in any B E N E Sk A B E ] S B
of the year. No remunerations were paid by the Group to the HLHE o NEEIWE R AR A
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon EEXMEFHMEARSI AL
> joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office in any S BRI INAZRE B R 528D
of the year. SAERRERAEE -

>
>
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rE MR EE ()

6. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments 6.

(continued)
(o) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the

year are all directors (2021: all directors), details of whose

emoluments are set out in note 6(a) above.

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

1,000,000/ 721,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7C 22,000,000/ 7T
2,500,001 703,000,000/ 7T

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest

paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office in any of the

year.

7. Other Income

Bank interest income
Government grant (Note i)
Rental income (Note ii)
Sale of electricity

Others

7.

RITHLB WA
BT 4 Bh (P RED)
i NG AT
BAHHERA
Hith

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

BENEEEHFN @

(b) (EREHM

FAREBREERSHA LY
REH(2021F : 2HE=F) -
BRAEFMFIREIIN £X

Fi7E6(a) ©

2022
Number of
employees

BEAE

2021
Number of
employees

BEAR

MNEREMAER  AEBELE
MR RS AL AEHMIE
AW IMAREEHR AR

SERNRBSEABRM
(0
Hbug A
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT AREBT T
1,264 911
15,842 5,721
3,780 1,101
26,782 4,022
5,130 1,541
52,798 13,296

<

4
.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBImAME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

7.

Other Income (continued)

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, government
grant mainly represents grants received by the Group upon meeting
production volume target of coal products and coalbed methane gas
and safety requirement set by the local government.

(ii) The amount includes (i) lease payments of fixed office building of

RMB1,101,000 (2021: RMB1,101,000) received under operating
leases from a related party, Guizhou Bangda Energy Development
Co., Ltd (“Bangda”) and (ii) lease payments of mining equipment of
RMB2,679,000 (2021: nil) received under operating leases from an

independent third party.

Other gains and losses

Fair value change of investment properties & ¥ 28X F(EE

(note 15)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property,
plant and equipment &8
Net exchange (loss) gain

Finance Costs

Unwinding of discount on restoration costs 18 2Rk <8527 # @]
Interest on discounted bills
IRITIE SRF B

HEBEHNTE

Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities

>
>
o

b L (&5 18) W 4R

REEES Y]

(ff5E15)

HEMEHWE - BE RRED

S

H AU A @)

i

(i)

B E2022F 2021612 A318 1k
FE  B#PEEEREERE
FXE B BUTT BT A% S AR R R
EBREEBIZERETE2HTEEAMTER
R B ©

ZEHEBE)RIBLETHES B
HEMBEERERBRAR(F
2 |) WREREY E E A KB E N K
AR #1,101,0007T (20214 : A
R#1,101,0007T) & (i)BF& =
Ef B —RBE = 7 WA EREE
RERENRARY2,679,0007T
(2021%F : &)

Hiblhzm R EE
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
(100) (1,100)
(2,554) (441)
(2,286) 3,476
(4,940) 1,935
A& A 2N
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
2,034 1,946
7,527 1,539
19,306 19,532
61 31
28,928 23,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rE MR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31H ILEE

10. Profit before Taxation 10. BR¥LANER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Profit before taxation has been arrived at B A& AR (FTA) ¢
after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration ZEEB & 2,147 2,117
Directors’ emoluments ERE 8,372 9,323
Other staff costs: HtE TR :
Salaries and other allowances e M EHAERL 347,374 285,585
Retirement benefits schemes contributions  EREH &Itk 59,063 45,768
Less: Capitalised in construction in B ERIRREARME
progress (148,859) (103,300)
Less: Capitalised in inventories o FEERME (179,431) (186,289)

Total staff costs (included in administrative, & TR AR42%E (5F ASTE « D85 K

distribution and selling expenses and SHERS REAMMS)

other expenses) 86,519 51,087
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BEREEITE

equipment 99,135 83,307
Less: Capitalised in inventories B FEEARL (90,465) (73,309)

Total depreciation of property, plant and FFATTBAEMAZAME - BE

equipment included in administrative RRETERE

and other expenses 8,670 9,998
Amortisation of mining rights PR AR 37,324 35,912
Less: Capitalised in inventories B FEERE (37,324) (35,912)
Inventories recognised as an expense ERBFALIHEE 666,398 622,916
Research and development expense R GTAEMAS)

(included in other expenses) 30,520 -

Rental income from investment properties & & ¥ & WA (kAT 2REF )
net of negligible outgoing expenses (1,101) (1,101)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12HA31B ILFE
11. Taxation Charge 11.
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”): B EEFTSHI ([ EEMEH)
- current year —ARFE
— (over) underprovision in prior years —RAFE (BERE)BETR
— withholding tax — a0
Deferred tax credit RIERIAE
Taxation charge A

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
subsidiary in Hong Kong has no assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25%. Subject to certain conditions on preferential tax treatment,
the applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2022. On 26 May 2021, Guizhou Jiutai Bangda
Energy Development Co., Ltd. E /M A F HZERHAE B R A A
(“Jiutai Bangda”) obtained an approval notice from the relevant
authority, which approved Jiutai Bangda as being engaged in
encouraged industry in the western region. Furthermore, the income
derived from its coal refinery business accounted for more than 60%
of its gross income in 2022 as stipulated in the Announcement of
the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration and the
National Development and Reform Commission on Continuing the
Enterprise Income Tax Policies for the Large-Scale Development
of Western China (“Announcement No. 23 2020”). The profits are
therefore subject to preferential tax treatment and the applicable tax
rate for the calendar year ended 31 December 2022 was 15%.

BiIE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

140,014 119,937
(968) 2,911
1,470 -

(28,923) (13,190)

111,593 109,658

R BB B A R R W F S EE
AbOm A - BB RS AR
B o

BEFBMREMEEERDEMS
BOEB MR - AR5 E A BB A A
W& 525% c EREETEEB
BEBHRET - FRNBRATREE
2022F 12 A31HIEFEZEAKE A
15% ° B2021F5H26H @ EIMAZR
Rzt RABAERAR([ARBE]D
WEIEBERZIERN  BEAR
BEANEAIHEOSEEESE -
BEAN - 20224 - BN T E UK
MMEBUAB0% A E - FFE B EED -
MsRE BREEREZHERNLE
ABAABECEMETHBRENRE
([20206 582355 1) 2 #7E ° ALt - Fr
BERNAIZEEEHNBEE  #HE
2022F 12 A3 B ILEFHMEARER
15%



11.

Taxation Charge (continued)

Annual Report 2022 F3§ | 65

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation as follows:

Profit before taxation

Taxation at PRC EIT rate of 25%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes

(Over) under provision in respect of prior
years

Income tax at preferential tax rates

Withholding tax on distributed profits of a
subsidiary

Decrease in opening deferred tax assets
resulting from decrease in applicable
tax rate

Deferred tax charge arising on undistributed
profits of PRC subsidiaries

Recognition of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised

Taxation charge for the year

BRI A A

P BI MRS H 5%t HHY
IR

RN e 7

BERRBMANR ST &

SBEFE(BRERE) BETE

BEERKRFERMREH
B AR 2IRAMENIENHIA

ERBE M ESBIIRIT AR AR
W

B B A BIAR D IR A B E £ AR IE

BIAS H
HEREA AR NREREZR

FABRIBEX M

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31H ILEE

BIEX H @)
ERRIES BB B AT RIS BT -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
855,548 411,428
213,887 102,857
10,071 84,192
473) (345)

(968) 2,911
(89,537) (79,957)
1,470 -
3,603 -
18,540 =
(45,000) -
111,593 109,658




1 OO Perennial Energy Holdings Limited X 32 a0RIERE R A H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

12. Dividends 12.

Proposed final dividend of HK12.50 cents 3K 3 R HA% B &% 12.50/811
(2021: HK3.75 cents) per share (20214 : 3.75711l)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK12.50 cents
(2021: HK3.75 cents) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount
of HK$200,000,000 (2021: HK$60,000,000), has been proposed
by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 has been paid
during the year.

13. Earnings per Share 13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Earnings: &H
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings FR s E &S EAEF & EF
per share (profit for the year attributable (RARHEB AEEFEART])
to owners of the Company)

Number of shares: RHEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERERRNNERBR
shares for the purpose of calculating INETHEL

basic earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share was presented for both years as there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

RE

TN

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT

178,660 49,056

RIBEBMRZE  ARRESERN
HZE2022F 12 A31H ILFEIRZE AR
% B R X E A% 12.5078 1L (2021 4F :
3.75%1l) - & &% %8 £200,000,000
771 (20214 : 60,000,000/87T) © &
FFREREEREAS EHE - BEE
F2021F12 A31B L FE M & A AR E
REERFERIRS e

SREF
ARBEAANBIEEREAREER
FRBE T HIBURAH -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T

743,955 301,770
’000 ’000

TR FA%
1,600,000 1,600,000

HAMEFES T ESHTEELT R
I - MMRESESL B2 GREE
ARF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ2022F12AB1 B ILFE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y% - BMERZME
Office and
Construction Mining electronic Motor  Leasehold Leased
inprogress  Buildings  structures  Machinery  equipment  vehicles land  properties Total
AR

BRI By REREN B% STRE HEER HEth  AENR e
RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RMBI000
ARRTRL ARRTT ARRTR ARMTT ARRTR ARETR ARRTR ARMTR ARETR

C0ST A
At 1 January 2021 202151 A1A 40641 186794 529722 TIO%6T 24,181 B 49T 915 1,569,182
Additions e 290,102 45 - 173 341 2791 = 3826 430,208
Transfer 2 (197,004) 1584 184,009 11411 = = = = =
Disposal/written-off e /i (1,455) @) = (7.541) (476) (135) = (4081) (13,735
At 31 December 2021 120215127318 192284 188746 TIGT31  B4THI0 24046 28400 41977 8901 1,985,655
Addtions e BT 13877 59 108175 1378 5798 - - 486,154
Transfer =1 (395937) o173 262693 39,05 2476 - - = -
Disposal/written-off HE /i - (1,25) - (4,104 (608) (367) = = (6314
At 31 December 2022 12022127318 0674 293101 977028 990696 27202 33831 41977 8901 246549
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2021 120211 1R - %043 53071 280304 14 15247 3449 7464 401392
Provided for the year Ende - 6,277 17338 52210 2482 2431 817 1,692 83307
Eliminated on disposal/ HE /i

written-off - (33) - (7,083) (464) (123) - (4081) (11,784
At 31 December 2021 20215127318 - 397 70400 325491 13182 1755 4266 5075 472915
Provided for the year EREE - 7405 25192 58970 2,640 283 818 125 9913
Eliminated on disposal/ e /HiEE L

written-off = (222) = (2.821) (509) (208) = = (3,760)
At 31 December 2022 12020124318 - W10 95601 381640 15263 20,182 5,084 6350 568,200
CARRYING AMOUNTS EEE
At 31 December 2022 12022127318 WOT4 248031 881422 609056 12029 13649 36,893 2551 1,897,206
At 31 December 2021 120215127318 132284 151750 643322 522079 10914 10845 3771 3826 1512740

<
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

14.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress and mining structures, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis after taking into account their estimated residual
values, at the following rates per annum:

3.33% to 5%
6.7% to 20%
10% to 20%
10% to 20%
Over the shorter of estimated

Buildings

Machinery

Office and electronic equipment
Motor vehicles

Leasehold land useful life and the lease term
Over the shorter of estimated
Leased properties useful life and the lease term
The leasehold land represents the payments for land use rights
which are under medium-term lease (i.e. 40 to 50 years) in the PRC.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land in the PRC.

The mining structures include the main and auxiliary mine shafts and
underground tunnels. The construction in progress comprises mainly
the main and auxiliary mine shafts and underground tunnels in the
course of construction and machinery under installation.

Depreciation are provided to write off the cost of the mining
structures using the units of production method based on the actual
production volume over the total proven and probable reserves of
the coal mine concerned. The mining structures have estimated
remaining useful lives of 21 to 43 years (2021: 22 to 44 years) based
on the proven and probable reserves of the coal mine concerned.

The legal titles of the buildings, with aggregate carrying value of
RMB205,895,000 (2021: RMB151,430,000) as at 31 December 2022,
have not been granted by the relevant government authorities and
the relevant titles are still under application. In the opinion of the
management of the Group, taking into account of the PRC lawyer’s
legal opinion, all the risks and rewards of ownership of the buildings
have been transferred to the Group.

14. Y% BENRE @)

Bt Rt ER - LAYE - BE
RETEE (R TIE RAREB S IR
SN ABBROEIRA T FRITE -

BF 3.33% =5%

s 6.7%Z=20%

WAREFHRE 10%E20%

1 ) E5 8 10%Z20%

e+ fhErAIE A B K
TAHnERE

Gizh=¢7ES st Al A B R
fAfnREE

HE PR HEE(B405 =
504 )8 T L b AR

v

ZERFRRPEEE L

p=Ill

RIEWEY BRI WHE, R TE
BoHERETRIBEGEEEITNIEH
B N3t TR IA M e R ey -

EERERNZE LR AKSRE
BERESNEEBETIRITER
- AMSE IR AR © 1R
EERBENEERBBESTE - K
EEEY G E A S A21E43F
(20214 : 225 44%F) ©

M2022F12A31H - REBEAA
R #205,895,0007T (20214 : AR
151,430,0007T ) BV IE FOA R F 1w R
FERERATR AT B L - T AR B AT
FERFEHR - L RPEZMAEEER
RAEBERERE  EFMEHE
HFERBRKEREEREAREE o



The Group as lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and equipment)

As at 31 December 2022
Carrying amount

As at 31 December 2021

Carrying amount

For the year ended

31 December 2022
Depreciation charge
Capitalised in inventories

For the year ended

31 December 2021
Depreciation charge
Capitalised in inventories

Total cash outflow for leases
Additions to right-of-use assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

2022%F12H831H
BREE

20214128318
BREE

B ZE2022F12A31H
IHEE

WEER

FEAERL

B E2021F12A31H
IHEE

hEER

FEERE

HER SR
RECREEE

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

14. Y% - BERZRE @
AEBEAEEA
BRREE AN  BERSE)

Leasehold Leased

land properties Total
HELT HEMEE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTFT ARETFT ARBFIT
36,893 2,551 39,444
37,711 3,826 41,537
817 1,275 2,509
(817) - (817)

- 1,275 1,275

817 1,692 2,509
(817) - 817)

- 1,692 1,692

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFT

1,313 1,855

= 3,826

<
<
b ™S
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

14.

15.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and equipment)
(continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of three years
(2021: three years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several buildings. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

Investment Properties

The Group leases out office premises under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 3 years (2021: 3 years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease
beyond initial period held by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

AFE
720211 A1H

FAIR VALUE
At 1 January 2021
Fair value changes recognised to profit or loss

At 31 December 2021

Fair value changes recognised to profit or loss iNei=Eny

At 31 December 2022

72021412 A31H
RO D TEEE

R2022F12831H

14.

15.

REOATFELD

Y E Y S L1 )
AEBIEAFABA (HE)
EAEEE GIAYE - BERLE)
(##)

RRETE  AEEREESHEHAZ
BRAE - FFEIZAEAHNETH
HIAHA=4F (20214 : =4F) - AAHE
FIRERBAERETE  THESE
TRME SR R AGHE o PAE & TR R AT
TR S HAR A HABR B - AR E R
AHMTERILET SN AGIBITA
HARS o

AN AEBERETRT - AKH
RRENEER(BREERBEELT)
MEBREAA - CHRKREZEMERE
BIEM—RERK - ZEBBYEN
HELWE D EECDIEL MREER 5
DENERTBILESY -

BEYE

AEBBESCLHSEARAETME
WEHEAKBAE - ZEHE—RVF
ABE=F(2021F : =F) » EAHEA
BHEFEBHARTREEVIRTELE

HAMAEEHNEEERE BN
EEEEE  BAKEYAREBKHEHE
RHFTEHMSNERKR - BEA OB
TEERGREEERE SABEAR
HHERREEA MY EREE -

Owned
properties
BB
RMB’000
ARBFTT

52,700
(1,100)

51,600
(100)

51,500
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Investment Properties (continued)

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2022
and 2021 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, independent qualified
professional valuer not related to the Group.

The fair value of investment properties was determined based on
the direct comparison approach assuming sale of each of these
properties in existing state and by making reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market and adjusted
for differences in the location and condition. There has been no
change on the valuation technique used during the year ended 31
December 2022.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. At the end of
the reporting period, the management of the Group works closely
with the independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs into the model. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the management of the Group.

15.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

B E Y @)
AEERBLARERFURREAS
HAEB AR BT B YRR A
FEBRHE  CHERABEHEE
R

M2022F 2021412 A318 « &Y
AT EEIRAERE I EBHE
B & B EE A ER IR SRR
BIAARAREITHEERE -

BRENMFELNTFEERBEEZELEER
BURBREHESBZEWERE
B2 E MR T 5 A S8 R B LR
ERGETE UHMNERKINER
FLAFHE - HE2022F 12 A31H IEF
B PrERAe R ERMT RS -

REFHREMERATER - WERF
ReRsERRRERE REHREH
R AEHEEERBIABEREE
MEMEBEAE - URZENERD
BEDERBARE - WEEATE
BHEBEREY  KBEREAAEE
EEERS -



172 Perennial Energy Holdings Limited X 2= B3 AR IR R IR A F
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12 A1 B IEFE
15. Investment Properties (continued) 15. REYVZE @)
Information about fair value measurements using BEASRAE K1 AT ER 528 A 2B
significant unobservable input ET AT EFENER
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in TREIIRETREME RN FEMRB
the determination of fair values for investment properties and HEFEM M EEEXFTRAN A E
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models. g A\ BUHE o
Fair value Unobservable Range of Relationship of
Date of valuation Fair value hierarchy  Valuation techniques inputs significant inputs  inputs to fair value
BABBH
fHERH NHE ATERR AERE TABERAYE EABAREHE ATENER
RMB’000
ARBTT
31 December 2022 51,500 Level 3  Direct comparison approach ()  Discounting  Discounting factors  The lower the
factors on ranging from2%  discounting
location and to 40% factor, the higher
condition the fair value
20226128318 51,500 E=fh EREWA () MERKRE HRERENT SERZME R
HRZ 2%Z40% ATEES
(i) Adjusted RMB3,160 - The higher the
transaction RMB6,354 per adjusted
price square meter transaction price,
the higher the fair
value
(i) HBRELS FEARARE THER S
(B BI0TEARE  ERES:
6,3547C RAHEES
31 December 2021 51,600 Level 3  Direct comparison approach ()  Discounting  Discounting factors  The lower the
factors on ranging from3%  discounting
location and t0 30% factor, the higher
condition the fair value
20215127318 51,600 =i EREUBZE ) MERMRE HREERNT HHERME - B
BR% 3%Z30% ATHEES
(i) Adjusted RMB3,096 - The higher the
transaction RMB6,273 per adjusted
price square meter transaction price,
the higher the fair
value
(i) ®RERS  BIARARE  EFERS
Bt 3,0961E s
AR%6,2737L ATEAS
The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a level REEKREWENFEERE=RA
3 fair value measurement. There were no transfers into or out of level FEFE  c RMEFE - $ES ALK
3 fair value measurement during both years. HHE=RAFEFE -

The owned properties are stated in the PRC. BEYEMRBE -
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Mining Rights

COST RS
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022 12022F12H31H

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION EEqg (5
At 1 January 2021 202141 A18
Charge to profit or loss BEmNR

R2021F12831H
ERiERgillCs

At 31 December 2021
Charge to profit or loss
At 31 December 2022 1K2022 12831 H

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2022

BREE
202212831 H

At 31 December 2021 72021412 H31H

The mining rights represent the rights for the mining of coal reserves
located in Hongguo Town and Yangchang Village, Panzhou County,
Guizhou Province, the PRC. The mining rights have average
remaining legal lives of 17 years (2021: 18 years) but in the opinion
of the management of the Group, the Group will be able to renew
the mining rights and business licences without incurring significant
costs.

Amortisation are provided to write off the cost of the mining rights
using the units of production method based on the actual production
volume over the total proven and probable reserves of the coal mine
concerned.

The Group has pledged mining right with carrying amounts of
RMB53,313,000 (2021: RMB55,624,000) to secure bank borrowings
granted to the Group.

7202161 818 &2021F12A31H

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

PRIERE

RMB’000
ARBTT

985,327

985,327

83,224
35,912

119,136
37,324

156,460

828,867

866,191

PRUEFE 15 B R AL A P B & N & & M
SRAT RIB N FI5 0 00 IR Ik it = 0 1E
F oo B F BT EAEFRBITE
(20214 : 18%F) ' BEAKEEERER
B NEBEB R RERRES
Al E BB BB EEEBARA

HEBRBEOEE MR AFERE
EREENLEEBMAIREE - A
MSHPRARAEROPIAN ©

REBE D A5 IREE AR 53,313,0007T
ZIRTERE (20214 : AR ¥555,624,000
TOERMEAR T AEBRITERS
EIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ20226F12AB1 B ILFE
17. Restricted Bank Deposits 17. ZRFHIRITER
The restricted bank deposits are amounts held in a bank under the PR SR 1T RIS AR 58 P B AR B U
requirement of the relevant government authority of the PRC in HERERREMERNRTEFENS
respect of environmental rehabilitation. The amounts will be released o2 HEZMHEBABELARRFREL
at the cessation of mining activities or closure of mines if and only EREBNESR  BIZEZESERAER
if the environmental rehabilitation work of the relevant mines meets 1R FERTEE Bk B PR LU B AR RR © %
government’s requirements. Such deposits are classified as non- EEFEDBERIERDEE - XR
current assets. The restricted bank deposits carried interest at HIRITIF HKIRIR T I5F A% 0.25F
prevailing market rate of 0.25% (2021: 0.38%) per annum. (20214 : 0.38/E )51 & °
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December BREAEE20224F &2021F12 318 1
2022 and 2021 are set out in note 36. FRERENEAFIEETRHIFES6
18. Deferred Tax 18. IRIEBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised INTARAEE BT REHERE
by the Group and the movement thereon, during the current year EEANFEREHREEE(AE) K
and prior reporting period. HeEg) -
Fair value
adjustment on
Accelerated  property, plant
tax  and equipment,
depreciation leasehold  Adjustment on Undistributed Revaluation
and land and acquisition of profits of of investment
amortisation mining rights mining right subsidiaries properties Total
0% BER
R EELH
MERERE  URFEEN W RERE RABMH
ks ATERE fAE  WELTER  RENEER &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETTL AREFT ARETT
(Note () (Note (ii)
(Bz) (FE(i)
At 1 January 2021 R0t F1A1R (46:319) 27,99 - (0477 2.209) (30,001)
Credit to profit or loss STABR 10,542 2373 - - 275 13,190
At 31 December 2021 20215123318 (35,776) 30,369 - (9,477) (1,927) (16,811)
Credit (charge) to profitorloss ~ AMBZE5F A (1% 2,704 (266) 45,000 (18,540) 25 28,923
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31A (33,072) 30,103 45,000 (28,017) (1,902) 12,112

" &
y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Deferred Tax (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The temporary difference from the fair value adjustment on property,
plant and equipment, leasehold land and mining rights are mainly
arisen from acquisition in 2016 that these assets were transferred
to Jiutai Bangda with reference to their fair values estimated by an
independent qualified professional valuer not related to the Group.
Such fair value adjustments result in an increase in tax bases of Jiutai
Bangda. For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not recognise such fair value adjustments as these
assets are measured at cost model. Thus, a deductible temporary
difference is arisen from the difference between the carrying amount
of these assets and their tax bases.

The temporary difference from adjustment on acquisition of mining
right is mainly arising from finalisation of contingent consideration
of acquisition of mining right as set out in Note 28 during the year
ended 31 December 2022. Such contingent consideration results
in an increase in tax base of the mining right. For the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, subsequent measurement of
contingent consideration was recognised in profit or loss. As a result,
the deductible temporary difference is arisen from the difference
between the carrying amount of the mining right and its tax base.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of

financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have

been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FIEF IR E B
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEBE

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31H ILEE

IEFERA IE (&)

GEX

(i)

(ii)

HREEMBURRARNEITE - &

W - BEREE - HELHIAR
RN A TERREREEEE
EM2016FHIESEIAEL - M
ZERERSE ARG EY R
MR B R EEMEMGZE
BAENRNFEREETARIE -
BN TEABEHARIEND
EIR 00 - NAREUR B IS IRARET

HRZEEERRARAGE - &
REEN EERBERFEFE
At - AR EEREZEE
ERRREESEEGE 2 MMEHE -

E ARSI S| Bl TR
£ TZEHNRMTEEE2022F
12 A318 L FE M 28 FrE g
R 2 SANREBmMEL - BRI
RARESBEEERE 2 FREILN - N
REURA IS IRERE - RAREZ
st EE N BmER - At - &
BHIBEZE AR KEERESE
BEMEZENEEMEL

TRERBEERABECERE - U
TRAEMERSE BN EERIRLE
BT

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
40,129 -
(28,017) (16,811)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iR MRS R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

18.

19.

Deferred Tax (continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiary
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in these consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to certain retained profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,777,456,000 (2021:
RMB1,013,714,000) as at 31 December 2022, as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2022, a deferred tax liability
of RMB28,017,000 (2021: RMB9,477,000) has been recognised in
respect of undistributed profits of subsidiaries in the PRC amounting
to RMB280,170,000 (2021: RMB94,770,000).

Inventories

BRI EE fh
4 S A

Coal products
Auxiliary materials and spare parts

18.

19.

AR FER TH ()

REREMEMSRE © 5200841
A18# - KB B2 E T BE
EAEIROREFMNTEND - GRE
BRERI AFN2022512 A31 A
M A ElE FARR M F S| A =
£ A R #1,777,456,000 7T (20214 :
AR#1,013,714,0007T ) £ H R FE
THEE - BIEASE L s b B e
TR MUREEIETE
RA]TE R REE - 720224512 31
B ANEBEFFBEMBRRRD RS
FAR#280,170,0007T (20214 = A
R #94,770,0007T ) BERELEHIB A &
AR #28,017,0007T (20214F : AR
#9,477,0007T) °

FE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
11,841 6,500
37,603 44,659
49,444 51,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Trade and Bills Receivables

Trade receivables B 5 EUWGRIA
Bills receivables R =
Total @t

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB275,061,000.

The Group allows credit period of 0-30 days to its trade customers.
All bills receivables are matured within one year (2021: within one
year). The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date at
the end of each reporting period. For customers who used bank bills
to settle their trade receivables upon the expiry of the initial credit
period, the ageing analysis of bills receivables at the end of the
reporting period was based on the date of the Group’s receipt of the
bills from the customers.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

B EWFIAREWREE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

272,625 137,042
598,925 255,961

871,550 393,003

R2021F1A1H @ BREAHFMELN
B 5 e FE & A R 275,061,000
ﬁ: o

REEGETHESEFPHEERRIE
30 - FTARKEERHAN —FAREH
(20215 : —FA) - L TTARS]RE
HARBEZRZAHHEYE S EKZE
HBREEBBEREENRRD T - 3t
FRRITEBREEVREERRED
BORBHRENTFME @ RE®RS
HRERRENRRDIMZRANEER
BRPWEER B HTHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEFE

20. Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Trade receivables E S EWRIE
0-30 days 0%30H
31-90 days 31£90H
91-180 days 91£180H
181-365 days 1812365H

The following is an analysis of bills receivables, net of allowance for
credit losses, presented based on number of days to bills maturity
from the end of each reporting period:

Bills receivables FEU I
0-30 days 0£30H
31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H
91-120 days 912120H
121-180 days 121£180H
181-365 days 1812365H

Total st

20. BZRBWFEIERERERE

(%)

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
164,582 132,911
81,198 3,687
26,845 -

- 444

272,625 137,042

AT BREREMRBEREEDH
B RBE2IEERENREEER

BBERDH
86,600 135,000

83,651 15,200

120,509 -

59,828 65,261

110,100 29,930

138,237 10,570

598,925 255,961

871,550 393,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit
sales are made to customers with a satisfactory trustworthy credit
history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have good
settlement records.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying balance of
RMB108,043,000 (2021: RMB4,131,000) which are past due as at
the report date. None of the balance as at 31 December 2022 is past
due 90 days or more. As at 31 December 2021, out of the past due
date balances, RMB444,000 has been past due 90 days or more and
is not considered as in default since the management of the Group
are of the opinion that the balances are still considered recoverable
due to the management’s historical experience.

The Group applies simplified approach to provide for ECL prescribed
by HKFRS 9. To measure the ECL of trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills receivables have been assessed individually. Taking
into account the financial condition of the customers and historical
settlement pattern with no history of default in the past and the
forward-looking information (such as future coal price and gross
domestic product growth (“GDP”) in the PRC), the management of
the Group considers the trade and bills receivables are at lower risk
under internal credit rating assessment and the probability of default
of the counterparties was low. The Group applied ECL rate of 0.1%
(2021 : 0.1%) on trade and bills receivables. Thus, the loss allowance
provision of the trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2022
and 2021 was insignificant. There were no credit-impaired trade
and bills receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. In this
regard, the management of the Group considers that the credit risks
on trade and bills receivables are significantly reduced. The gross
carrying amount of trade and bills receivables as at 31 December
2022 is RMB871,550,000 (2021: RMB393,003,000).

20.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

B 2 RUG
(&)
REMNEMHES 28 FEEEE
AEEEEPNEEERTATHRE
ERZE - EASARMEMNASEER
BHEP I ERMHRE K TEPH
EERBATHER - BEAHITR
MERE 5 EYRIERR RIFEER
&% o

AN BN RS

N2022E12 A31H » st ARNEEE
SR HBESNEAERBEAR
#: 108,043,000 7T (2021 F : AR
4,131,000t ) 2 FEW AR K » O RE
B EHE - /020224128318 -
BEEE e HAO0 B s A | » 722021
F12A31H - @B ES - ARK
444,0007C 2 #1HA90 A sk LA £ - HEFA
EAZK‘EI BERE EZREEESR

FER - ZEEHKBEADAIKE - &)
EETZ%Z%@%’U °

$%lféﬁﬁﬁ%1tﬁ%ﬂﬂ.§ 81 7%
WEERFIORAMEIBEMEREES
B A28 REREREKRE
B BEZREFBEREKREEREER
BIFHRE o LT R B P ISR R E
RBEREENLHENBTFLEEER
LA R BT RE M B R (a0 7R B R 2R R (B
EEERNEERE(BRRNEERE])
) A&EEEEERA  BRER
“EZ?T.:V&.::FH Z 5 W GRIE K
W EEBERRAR - XHEFELD
7 AT AE 1 ERR Wili‘% 2 5 R
TH R E W ZE R A 0.1% (2021 4 -
01%)MTEHEEFSEZX - At - »
20224 K 20214612 B31H - B5JE
WskE & B R M BB B B T &
K o 20224 K 2021F12 A31H -
WEEERENE S ERIERER
ZE Bt AEBEEERRES
FEWFIEREREREOEERRE X
1BFE(K - R20225F12A31H 5
FEWFIEREREENERRERA
K #871,550,0007T (20214 : AR
393,003,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

20. Trade and Bills Receivables (continued)

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in note 36.

Transfers of financial assets

The followings were the bills receivables as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 that were transferred to banks by discounting
bills receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these bills
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of
the bills receivables and has recognised the cash received on the
transfer as secured bank borrowings (see note 27).

These financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised
cost in consolidated statement of financial position.

Carrying amount of transferred assets EHEEEEREE
Carrying amount of associated liabilities R B EREmE (M)
(Note)

Note: At 31 December 2022, the amount of RMB434,972,000 (2021:
RMB171,015,000) represents bank borrowings arising from
discounting bills receivables with resource as the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these bills
receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, bills receivables of
RMB644,698,000 (2021: RMB171,651,000) were discounted
with recourse have been presented as “New borrowings from
factoring of bills receivables” in consolidated statement of cash
flows. Corresponding borrowings of RMB384,263,000 (2021:
RMB81,500,000) were discharged without cash outflows upon bills
matured with full settlement by original issuers.

20.

B RIRREREWREE
(#&)

BEEHZE2022F K%2021F 128318 1E
FREBET A FIFES I 36 o

EEEREE
2022 F 2021 F12 A31H AR
EWREZE 2B REEURERER
ZEFAEETIRT - ARAEEY
EEPEZSEUREREENERR
G R ER - MEEEERZSERE
BR2IEREE - I8 5 58 A Uk AR
IR ERREEPRITER(RMHE
27) °

ZEERMEENERBERGEUT
AR KRBT IBR o

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT

435,913 171,650

(434,972) (171,015)

Mz : 7202212 A31H © AR
434,972,000 (20214 : AR
171,015,0007T) A8L IR A BB RE
M E R ELERRITER - RE
AASENEEREZ S RKER
EENERRRKER o

HZE2022F12A31BILFE - &
BERENEUMBEEKEEREAR
644,698,000 7T (20214 : AR
#171,651,0007T) E RNERA R ©
MEBRANZINAIZEEWER
REFER] - HEBRARE
384,263,0007T (20214 : AR
81,500,000t ) A= & B #i12 I A
FEIT AR - WER
E7d o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31BIEFE

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables  21. %% - FAIRER HAufE
kIR

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Deposits to suppliers of purchasing BEEWHRENHENES
auxiliary materials and spare parts 13,280 10,271
Government grant receivables JE ST #68 B 1,470 1,470
Rental deposits Heke 426 494
Other receivables, prepayments and H W sIE - FBNRIERIRS
deposits 13,452 8,775
Deposits for purchase of property, plant BEME  BERXENES
and equipment 2,819 26,520
Deposits for acquisition of mining rights W B R R iR & (B 5E)
(Note) 90,566 90,566
122,013 138,096
Classified as: DR
Non-current IERED 93,811 117,580
Current RE 28,202 20,516
122,013 138,096

181



182

Perennial Energy Holdings Limited A &= BEaRIZERER QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

21.

22.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

(continued)

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in note 36.

Note:

On 9 December 2020, Jiutai Bangda, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a closure quota transfer
agreement in respect of the production quota of Guizhou Chinalco
Hengtaihe Mining Co., Ltd. Shuicheng County Panlong Township
Panlong Coal Mine (B #iRBZR &G R A RI/KH SR & e %5
%) (“Panlong Coal Mine”) with Guizhou Ruomuzi Investment and
Development Co., Ltd (“Ruomuzi”), independent third party to the
Group, at a cash consideration of RMB72,000,000, which is fully paid
in prior years.

On 24 May 2021, Jiutai Bangda has entered into another closure
quota transfer agreement in respect of the production quota
of Panlong Coal Mine with Ruomuzi at a cash consideration of
RMB18,566,000, which is fully paid in prior year.

The deposits are not refundable and the transfers of related mining
right certificates are subject to final approval by the relevant
government authorities as at 31 December 2022.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held and short term bank

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. As at 31

December 2022, the bank balances carried interest at prevailing
market rate of 0.0% to 0.25% (2021: 0.0% to 1.7%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out in note 36.

21.

22.

e ANFUEREMmAE
W FRIE ()

HZE2022F 2021612 A31HILFE
BB (B ST I A 336 ©

it

R2020F12 98 * AR AIEER
BB RRARBERANEEE L
BZAEMERTRERABERE
FERAR(EARTFDHEMFIRES
AEEAR AR IE R IERE
B (B RRE ) M EEIBIZRT L
BEEIZEERE BeREAA
R ¥72,000,0007T ' ERBEFE
BT -

HR20215E5 248 » AFGERE
R E B A EIRIZE L5
—IERARIIRIZE E I - RerE
A AR%18,566,0007T * WEN £
—F B o

MR2022%12 8318 » k& AR
RiE - BB EATAE
BT S AHER - HEAE -

ReEkBREZEEY
IRITEBRRRESBIEMEER e R
B EA A=A K ARNEHRITE
o FR2022F 12 A318 « RITHEH
BRIRITHIHENENF0.0FE £0.25/2
(20214 : 0.0EZE1.7/E)518 °

ARE E2022F K% 2021128318 1+
FEREF G FBEHT M FES6
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Trade Payables

Trade payables 2 SN FRIE

As at 31 December 2022, included in trade payables are
RMB1,390,000 (2021: RMB985,000), RMB190,000 (2021:
RMB2,219,000) and RMB1,452,000 (2021: RMB1,334,000) due to
Guizhou Bangda Energy Development Co., Ltd (“Bangda”), Panzhou
Hongda Integrated Energy Co., Ltd.) (“Panzhou Hongda”) and
Guizhou Yue Bang Integrated Energy Limited Liability Company
(“Guizhou Yue Bang”), respectively. Panzhou Hongda is an associate
of Guizhou Yue Bang.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The
following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

0-30 days 0£30H
31-60 days 31260H
61-180 days 61£180H
181-365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days #Ri8365H

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

B 5 BNARIE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETT

109,304 81,688

202212 318 © B HENFKE
BEDBIEMEMNBZLRARER
ARI[PBE]) « BINTAELE AR
BRAT(THINATE ) &S M B BLR
ARERERECAT(IEMEF])
B A R # 1,390,000 7T (2021 4F = A
R #985,0007T) - A R #190,0007T
(20214 : AR™2,219,0007T) K& A
R #1,452,00070 (2021 & : AR
1,334,0007T) ° BN ZEABMNEF

ZHERE -

BEERNTHEREHROA - 1
REPRREZAHZINE FHEN

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

24,669 21,744
31,607 8,558
30,224 28,156
11,012 14,359
11,792 8,871

109,304 81,688
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

24,

25.

Other Payables and Accrued Charges

JERT B TR
eI EEBARA

Staff costs payable

Transportation cost payable

Payables for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

Payables for acquisition of mining rights

Us i SR U A B A OB

Other tax payables Hh R TIE

Government grants received in advance  TEURE AT B (M 3E)
(Note)

Accrued repair and maintenance fee EEHEERRERA

H AR FIR K B B

Other payables and accrued charges

Note: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, government grants received
in advance represent grants received with unfulfilled conditions on
meeting production volume target of coal products.

These balances were accounted in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 4.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities — current BHBE—RE
Sales of coal products RKEMEE

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to RMB190,000.
For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 of RMB9,197,000
the entire balances are recognised as revenue during the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Group sells coal products to customers. Payment received
in advance that are related to the sales of coal products not yet
delivered to customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities. Revenue is recognised when coal products are delivered
to customers.

>
>
o

24.

WHEME - BE MRERNRIA

25.

Htt R RIR R BT EH

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
39,257 33,769
5,934 8,738
93,986 64,641
10,635 10,635
30,150 19,314
23,654 10,390
1,373 2,980
7,402 9,268
212,391 159,735

BifaE ©  PA20224 K% 2021412 8311 + 78
W I BhiE MR ER R ES R
TGS 2 YRR A B o

B BFARIBH 4P E R BR

A -
BHEE
2022

RMB’000
AR¥T T

1,639

2021
RMB’000
ARBTT

9,197

R2021F1A1H - BHEEARARK
190,0007T ° FL&E £20214F12831H
LEFEZE&HBEANRKE,197,000
JC - EEHREEE NEE2022412 A 31

B L ERER AR o

AEEATEFHERKEM ° HiHAR
RN FEFHNRREmMHEABHNE
WHRIBLLELE D AR A NAE -
W R IR EE RN T 5 PR RERR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
rE MR EE ()

26. Lease Liabilities 26.
Lease liabilities payable: JERTEERIE
Within one year —FR"

Within a period of more than one year but A —F A HE R ZAME KA
not more than two years

Within a period of more than two years but FARFIA HERZRAFEER
no more than five years

Less: amount due for settlement within 12 & : 1218 A N4EE R K
months shown under current liabilities P EREERE)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121 A& &ZE XK (5 AIEREEE)

shown under non-current liabilities

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 1.8%
(2021: 1.8%).

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F 12 A31H ILEE
HEaE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
202245 R20214F
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
1,275 1,251
1,299 1,275
- 1,300
2,574 3,826
(1,275) (1,251)
1,299 2,575

RSB ERIEE

BN B

FHERMEEAESIMT

HHERBREREERTRAER

1.8% (20214 : 1.8%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ20226F12AB1 B ILFE
27. Bank Borrowings 27.
Bank borrowings RITIER
Other bank borrowings from factoring of ~ {RIZAZHEEREEKEZER
bills receivables with full recourse FTEE IR TIE K
Secured B
The carrying amounts of the above EAERZ BREEZAR T 5 HIR
borrowings are repayable*: B
Within one year —F LA
Within a period more than one year but —F LA LR AT HAE

not exceeding two years
Within a period more than two years but ~ FRFIA_EFRF LT HIRE
not exceeding five years

Less: amounts due within one year shown & : —F AR Z|EIFIE -
under current liabilities ERBBE

Amount shown under non-current liabilities  3||{E3ER BN & & FIE

*

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements.

>
>
o

SRITE K
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
351,000 351,000
434,972 171,015
785,972 522,015
785,972 522,015
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETTT
695,972 221,015
90,000 211,000
- 90,000
785,972 522,015
(695,972) (221,015)
90,000 301,000
: S % IR I B AR AT B K

R B -
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28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bank Borrowings (continued)

Secured bank borrowings carry fixed interest rate of 5.5% per
annum for both years. Secured other bank borrowings from factoring
of bills receivables with full recourse refers to discounting of bank
acceptance bills received from the customers of the Group with fixed
interest rate while the significant risks and rewards from the bills
receivables are substantially retained by the Group. The effective
interest rate of the secured other bank borrowings from factoring
of bills receivables with full recourse is approximately 1% to 2%
per annum (2021: 1% to 2% per annum) during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Contingent Consideration Payables

On 4 November 2019, Jiutai Bangda, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into sale and purchase
agreement with # % ¥ 35 4 & X 7 )& B & (Panzhou County
Yangchang Village Xiejiahegou Coal Mine) and & /N/EEREBRE R
A] (Guizhou Dejia Investment Co., Ltd.) (collectively referred to as
the “Vendors”) pursuant to which, Jiutai Bangda has conditionally
agreed to purchase, and Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell
a target underground coal mine located in Panzhou City, Guizhou
Province (the “Target Mine”), together with assets related to the
Target Mine at a total consideration of RMB1,100,000,000 (the
“Acquisition”) with a profit guarantee arrangement. The Acquisition
was completed on 1 January 2020.

In accordance with HKFRS 3 Business Combinations, the Group
determined that no integrated set under the Acquisition is capable
of being conducted and managed as a business and concluded that
the Acquisition is an acquisition of assets.

27.

28.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

SRATIE R ()

B EIPRIT B R M EF Z 1R & EF
FIE55% 8 - REAZHBRIER
R B TS A M IRTT{E RIBER A
& E 7 BB ARNE B R P W E B R
THRAEERE  MEREENEZRR
REHRBARIEDBAEERE - BZE
2022512 A31HILFE - (REAZHE
BRERWEEREMESRITERS
BERFEFEL1% E2% (20214 -
F1%ZE2%) °

B ARE

MR2019F11 A48 » AR RIWHEER
BB A R AT E AR G5
KMERBEREMNEEREBRARA
(RBIEF DI EE RS - Eut
ARAEERHEREEE  MEHE
BEREHENEMEZMNME B
E T EE( BRERE]) - EREE
EHREFHENEE  BREA/AARKE
1,100,000,0007T ([ g EIE]) - 3#F5
mAMREE o WHE AR F20204F1 A1
H5ERK °

AEBRRE BV HME LR EIFRF
HeHEEWEEREA N EREA
BRE/—ERKEXRERE ¥R
RWBEREREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31HIEFE

28. Contingent Consideration Payables (continued)

Assets recognised at the date of acquisition:

Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE
Mining right PRAERE
Other receivables o FEUGRIE

The fair value of consideration as at 1 January 2020 consists of the

below:
Cash consideration paid BEReNRE
Contingent consideration payables FERT S ARE

28. MENZANRE @
FAUKEE B ERRE SRR E 2 -

RMB’000
ARETTT

160,716

824,941
69,343

1,055,000

R2020F1A18 » REHNAFERKE
THEIA

RMB’000
ARBT T

560,000
495,000

1,055,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ2022F12AB1 B ILFE
Contingent Consideration Payables (continued) 28. BEN=ARE@®
In respect of the Acquisition, cash considerations of RWEEIEN ST - 2B EEZE2023F
RMB180,000,000 is agreed to be paid in each of the three 12ANAIE=EFESEFEZHES
years ending 31 December 2023, totaling RMB540,000,000 (the KRB AR180,000,0007T * &HAA
“Remaining Consideration”). In addition, Jiutai Bangda and the R #540,000,0007C ([ FRE D) © it
Vendors have entered into a profit guarantee arrangement, pursuant N - ARFIEBRBE FETN T m FIRE
to which the Vendors guarantee to the Jiutai Bangda that each of e - Bt - BEARARBERSE -
the audited net profit of the year ended 31 December 2020, 2021 B £20204F - 20214 [ 2022F 12 5
and 2022 generated by the Target Mine shall not be less than 318 IE=EFE % FH BRI
RMB150,000,000 (the “Benchmark Profit”). In the event where A AREE150,000,0007T ([ E%EH
any of the audited net profit of the year ended 31 December 2020, F) o WEZE2020%F - 20214 542022
2021 or 2022 is less than the Benchmark Profit, the Vendors shall F12 A31 B I = AF ZER —F a4
pay compensation(s) to Jiutai Bangda, subject to an overall cap of BIZAANOREESET - EHARA
RMB300,000,000. Likewise, in the event where any of the audited ZHELNHESTE  Z=BREAA
profit of the year ended 31 December 2020, 2021 or 2022 generated [ #300,000,0007T ° A - fit B R4
by the Target Mine is greater than the Benchmark Profit, Jiutai B E £20204F - 2021 F (2022 F
Bangda shall pay bonus(es) to the Vendors, subject to an overall cap 12 A3 A IE=EAFEE R —FMEE
of RMB300,000,000. BREZHMRNEERN - AZHE
MESXNESE  SaREAARE
300,000,0007T °
The contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at FERF A RIER20224F 2021412 A
31 December 2022 and 2021 based on the actual present value of BB ZAVFEFEARRIR SR IER
the Remaining Consideration adjusted by any excess or shortfalls BRIREZERE BRI EE ST HE
between the Benchmark Profit and the actual/or projected net profit BEZREAMELAER, SKIEAMER 2
generated by the Target Mine using discounted cash flow method. MERBE TR S BEEFAR M= -
RMB’000
ARET T
As at 1 January 2021 ®K20211H1H 511,072
Repayment BN (187,959)
Fair value change of contingent consideration RERERZENIAREBERATEES
payable recognised in profit or loss 308,518
As at 31 December 2021 #K2021F12831H 631,631
Repayment BN (256,854)
Fair value change of contingent consideration RERERZENIARERATEE
payable recognised in profit or loss 20,409
As at 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H 395,186
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ20226F12AB1 B ILFE
28. Contingent Consideration Payables (continued) 28. MENZANRE @
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current B - 378,095
Current mE 395,186 253,536
395,186 631,631
29. Provision for Restoration Costs 29. RERpAEME
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
At the beginning of the year REH) 44,974 43,028
Unwinding of discount ALIR B 2,034 1,946
At the end of the year RER 47,008 44,974
In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations, if any IR B AR REAR B ROEHR - m#ti
damage is caused to cultivated land, grassland or forest as a B3 SR AR AR B HR KBRS B i 4 B
result of exploration or mining activities, mining enterprises must EMEE - AIRERE VAR RELS
restore the land to a condition appropriate for use by reclamation, Ri&BARE  EFEEGASNET
re-planting trees or grasses or such other measures, as appropriate, S H b8 E 1R e A T k18 = Al A AR
after the mining has been completed. The Group provides for the Be o REBBIERKARNIREEES
present obligation of the costs of the restoration. TRREE o
The provision for restoration costs has been determined by EBRKABHEDBAEEERERE
the management of the Group based on their estimates for the BSARBESFHERNEETE -

restoration upon the closure of the mine sites.

>
y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Share Capital

31.

Details of the Company’s shares are disclosed as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &XE(E0.018 T FifAx

Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2021, 72021F1H18 ~ 20214
31 December 2021 and 2022 2022912 H31H

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BETRAR :
R2021F1 818 - 20214F
2022912 5318

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2021,
31 December 2021 and 2022

HZE2022F12A31BIEFE
30. A
RABIRRMDFIBREAT ¢

Number Equivalent
of shares Amount amount
RHER o) HER
HK$°000 RMB’000
FAT ARBT T
10,000,000,000 100,000 87,208
1,600,000,000 16,000 14,136

31. RIREFETE

Retirement Benefit Schemes

The employees of the Group companies in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The Group also participates in the MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes at the
lower of HK$1,500 per month or 5% of the relevant payroll costs to
the MPF Scheme.

The contributions to the retirement benefit scheme of the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are disclosed
in notes 6 and 10, respectively.

AREEH P B A RHE B Rt 7T BT E
EHERKERRARBEREIHKE -
AEBEARERNRENFEZEESF S
BRARE—B D EETHZR - ABRE
MERES - REEFLRKE NS
KM — B ERIEH TR ERI R -

REB T2 MBI EATES 2
BRBIRR KRB Rl - BFEe Tl
BEHEASEEESHAFBE BX
EAERGNESRE c AEEREA
1,500 7T 548 B 5 & A AN 5% (BARR
K& RE)RRES B o

AL BN E E20224F 22021512 431
A L E 8RR FIET SIS B
FiFE6 &2 1055 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12 A31H IFEFE

32.

Related Party Transactions
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with its related

parties during the year:
Name of related companies

kNS

Bangda
iz

Yuebang

B

Panzhou Hongda
BMATE

Nature of transactions
REMEE

Logistics service expense
Wim AR T B8 %

Rental income

GEEAL N

Coal washing processing expense
PR RN TR sZ

Sale of electricity
=S

Sales of coalbed methane gas
WERER

Purchase of electricity

WE

Sales of coalbed methane gas
HERER
Purchase of electricity

wE

The above transactions were transacted at prices agreed between

the parties.

32. BHARS
BREAMBRESTREEN VA
FF  AEEEREWBTENTRS |

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETTT
3,515 3,656
1,101 1,101
1,552 8,302
11,000 -
3,345 1,988
4,216 4,756
1,475 1,093
8,477 6,558

Fit 2 Z A

&7 BENERETT -



32.

33.

34.

Related Party Transactions (continued) 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group included 8 executive
directors of the Company (2021: 7 executive directors of the
Company). Details of whose emoluments are set out in note 6(a).
Other members of key management personnel included 6 employees
(2021: 8 employees) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
remuneration of these 6 members (2021: 8 members) during the year

is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits EHEERET

Bonus TEAT

Post-employment benefits BERk 2R A

Operating Leasing Arrangement 33.

The Group as lessor

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year but

not more than two years

—FR
R—F R EETZRMEHRREN

Leases are negotiated for lease term of three years.

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and

equipment and mining rights contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated

financial statements

34.

BB YR - BE MR IR
ERTAME AR ER A TSR R AT e

BRI

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

BEE R R 5 (@)
AREEASHE
REEBRREEABBEARAQAN
FBHITES(2021F : ARALRBH
TEE) - BENHFBENME
6(a) > EE2022F 12 A31B I FE -
FAREIEABNEMKBERE LR
B(20214F : N&EE) - FN » %~
ZA B (20214 « \BKE) BN
T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTF T ARETTT

2,029 3,782

688 604

73 103

2,790 4,489

AEBEERBEA

FEWEER&IEBEFRBEAT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBFIT

1,101 1,101

- 1,101

1,101 2,202

AR = F BT LA

BAGRIE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T
3,525

' 17,680

<
b ™S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

mak

For the

R ML ()

year ended 31 December 2022

#HZE2022F12 31 ILFE

35.

36.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance and
equity balance. Equity balance consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Group, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on an
on-going annual basis. As part of this review, the management of
the Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new capital injection as
well as the issue of new debt.

Financial Instruments
Categories of financial instruments

EREE

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial liabilities Eall =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEFEREEE

BfE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges, bank borrowings, lease liabilities
and contingent consideration payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below.

BB EZERMEE

REHKATTEZ 2 RBIE
AR

35.

36.

- AR IR AN S B A
KNS BRI ER &
SHHEAE F &AL
P R B R BB SRR

:l
»F_m

ﬁ%*@o

AEENEARBREERERIE
mAER BRARBAREEE AR
IEREERAER - BRI o

AEEEBEERESFRIEAR
o fERZIERFIN—HD  ~A5EE
EBREEREARARBSIEEARNRE
EORK - REAEEETEEHHER
%’$§lﬁiﬁ%5~ﬁk%§
NRBEITHER - Bt FEERE
ANBERE o

TRTHA
eRMITEER

2022
RMB’000
ARBTT

2021
RMB’000
ARBT T

1,094,474 589,296

1,014,606 699,965

e Al

395,186 631,631

TREREERBEREEK
FEENTESRTAREE FRK
FRREWRE - 2E REAmRERK

XRH|ITER A2 RREF
BY  EZREMNRE - ﬁﬁﬂﬂ’iﬁmﬁ
REFER - RITEH - HERES
KEMHARE - EA%@WH@IEE’]%
BREWERE - BxEE R TAM
68 B0 [ % 2R ) 4 R % 5 R B Y BRSR
HIWMT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to its
lease liabilities (note 26) and bank borrowings (note 27). The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its restricted
bank deposits and bank balances (notes 17 and 22).

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group closely monitors its
exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk as a result of change
on market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in market
interest rates should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis is provided on restricted bank deposits and
bank balances as the management of the Group considers that the
interest rate fluctuation on bank balances are minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Certain bank balances, deposits and other receivables, other
payables, lease liabilities and other borrowings are denominated
in HK$, the currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities, at end of the reporting period. Other than
disclosed below, the Group has limited foreign currency exposure as
both sales and costs were denominated in the functional currency of
respective group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

36.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

£RTI B
SREMREE R ZERBER (E)

G E R

A= R
AEEREAE R B (FIE26) A KR
TR (P EE27 ) i H B X P EF XA
% o NEBTRERZRHIRITERK
RITAR(FIF17R22) MERR SR
ENERER -

78 R B 3 4 R SRR » A
M AEEEEEEDERATSH
2B 3 WA E IR KRR 2R
FIEER - AR BERSE BT
CEEL TR

BERZRBBITERLRITHERE
HPREIN - REANEEERE
RIBIRITREBRHY R IR BIAR /)N

BN LB

RERERR - ETRITHER  RE
KEMEWN IR - HtbRA R - 8
SREREMEFAET (LIS EE
BEREEENEE)FE - R TP

BEEIN  ARHERKATARTE
EERNINEEEE - MAKEAR

AZHINERBRAR o

7N 52 B35 B 3 HMEE SR IR o A
o AREEEEERINERRI A
REFBEREBEINERINERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

36. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s HK$ denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period as

follows:

Bank balances HRITAERR

Deposits and other receivables R RH M ERGRIE
Other payables HAb T 5RIA

Lease liabilities HEAE

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis of strengthening 5% in functional currency of
the Company (i.e. RMB) against HK$ resulted in an decrease in
post-tax profit of RMB63,000 (2021: a increase in post-tax profit
of RMB62,000) during the year ended 31 December 2022. For a
5% weakening of RMB against HK$, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the results.

5% is the sensitivity rate used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange

rates.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost stated in subheading
of “categories of financial statements” of this note represented the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties.

36.

T A
SREKREEEEREE(H#)

5 ()

SN e (48)

RERER - AEBABTTEHER
EREERERAGENREERT

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETT

6,239 4,456

146 494
(2,299) (2,599)
(2,575) (3,826)

BRE DT

BERRAFGEEE (BIARKE) X5
TTHES% K BURE DT - #Z=2022
F12 A31 B IEFE 0B FL& & R >
AR #63,0007T (2021 F : BR#i& G
F3E A0 AR #62,0007T) © HAREH,
BITEES%  AIEREEEREEY
&= o

5% AHERNBBELE - REEE
B 5B R AT L1 3R M9 & TR T A
i o

BB R BT
RNEERNEERR T EZHR20224F
}2021F12 A31 B E 5 EKRFIE R
B ERIE - Be REMEREIE - %
PR HISRIT 17 5k SR SRAT A5 BRFT BN NPt
[ B A5 3Rk RO LA Bl | BT 428 65 AR AR
ATENSHREERTAEERNEERM
CREEMAENSESEERR - I
BEHF T RERITEEMER RS
BB 5 & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade and bills receivables

At 31 December 2022, the Group had a concentration of credit risk
as the top three trade debtors accounted for approximately 61%
(2021: 78%) of its total trade receivables. The management of the
Group regularly visits these customers to understand their business
operations and cash flows position and follows up the subsequent
settlement from the counterparties. In this regard, the management
of the Group considers that this credit concentration risk has been
significantly mitigated.

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade and bills receivables,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group applies simplified
approach and always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills
receivables on individual basis. Taking into account the financial
condition of the customers and historical settlement pattern with
no history of default in the past and the forward-looking information
(such as future coal price and GDP in the PRC), the management of
the Group considers the trade and bills receivables are at lower risk
under internal credit rating assessment and the probability of default
of the counterparties was low. The Group applied ECL rate of 0.1%
on trade and bills receivables. Thus, the loss allowance provision of
the trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
was insignificant. There were no credit-impaired trade and bills
receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the credit risks on trade
and bills receivables are significantly reduced. The gross carrying
amount of trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2022 is
RMB871,550,000 (2021: RMB393,003,000).

36.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

£RTI B
SREMREE R ZERBER (E)

=BG R A B (E)

B 5 MW E I PRI AR

2022612 A31H » AEEEGREF
BEERRE - WWHBER=KEKE S
A RMEEE 5 B GRIBREEL161%
(20214F : 78% ) FTEL - NEBIEIR[E
TGRSR UBRMEERS S
BRAERBRERERTARRELSF A
BBEEEER - BRULHE - AEEE
BERRZEESETRBRE KNIBRE -

REESRYGRIERERERNEER
RRRERE  AEEEEEDZRIR
BB EERER - WEARFEIURE
TR A ER o o - ANEEE
BERREARENSEERNEEH
A E €5 - AR T E &5
EH R BB EEE - AEEEAGL
AR BE—ERESENHIERER
CREREEREHFHEHREES
8B o EETREBEPOM MR R BEB
EENDEMIBA S B ER A R ATIE
MR (e B R SRR IR (B R B A A
ERAERR) AEEERERRES
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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36. Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Deposits and other receivables
For deposits and other receivables, the management of the
Group makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records and past experience. The management
of the Group believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding balance of deposits and other receivables.
For the purposes of internal credit management, the Group uses
past due information to assess whether the credit risk of deposits
and other receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition. There is no overdue balances on deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. In the opinion of the
management of the Group, the risk of default by the counterparties
is not significant and the Group assesses that the ECL on these
balances are insignificant. Thus, the Group assessed 12m ECL on
deposits and other receivables. The loss allowance provision of the
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
was insignificant. There were no credit-impaired deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the credit risk on deposits
and other receivables is significantly reduced. The gross carrying
amount of deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2022 is
RMB3,628,000 (2021: RMB2,699,000).

36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Restricted bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits and bank balances of
the Group is limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation and no history of default in the past and no loss
allowance provision for restricted bank deposits and bank balances
was recognised. The Group has limited exposure to any single
financial institution. The Group recognised 12m ECL on restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and the gross carrying amounts of
restricted bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2022
are RMB17,239,000 (2021: RMB12,740,000) and RMB202,057,000
(2021: RMB180,854,000), respectively.

There were no significant increase in credit risk on these financial
assets and credit-impaired financial assets as at 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Other than the credit risk management policy stated above, the
Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis. To assess whether there is significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on
an asset at the end of the reporting period with the risk of default
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

The Group accounts for credit risk by appropriately providing for
ECL on a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considered historical loss rates for each category of receivables and
adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data.

36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

36. Financial Instruments (continued) 36. @I AEu@m)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SRR EE B ZEREBCR (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk RE)E TR
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and REEBERDESRR  AEBERR
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate ERAEBTEERAAENE SR
by the management of the Group and also considered the unutilised REFB/YIKT - WEERN2022512
credit facility granted from a bank to the Group of RMB382,660,000 AB1BRITAAEER TR AR
(2021: RMB204,000,000) as at 31 December 2022 to finance its 5 A R 382,660,000 7t (2021
operations and mitigates the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. £ AR®204,000,000) @ LAAEHE
EREESWRRRENERBD N
@,
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRAEMAEBIFTESHBENR
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have TEHNEEER - ZEFRBIIREAR
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial SEARNRORERHY  Ze@E
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be BERRBRBERERE - TRBRE
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash FMERESREMRE o
flows.
Effective Total Total
interest 1-3 4-12 1-5  undiscounted carrying
rate months months years cash flow amount
=& LE =z RERRS
L YES =faR =R BER ikt FEAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET R ARETR ARET R ARET T
As at 31 December 2022 12022E12431H
Trade payables LHEMNTE N/ATER 109,304 - - 109,304 109,304
Other payables and accrued charges ~ E M FVARE T ER NATER 119,330 - - 119,330 119,330
Bank borrowings BT 55 50,389 28411 96,862 365,662 351,000
Lease liabilties L 18 239 1,074 1,313 2,626 2574
Contingent consideration payable FAENRE NATER - 395,186 - 395,186 395,186
219,262 614,671 98,175 992,108 977,394
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE

36. €mIE @

TREMREE B S RBER(#)

nBEz R (&)

Effective Total Total
interest 1-3 4-12 -5 undiscounted carrying
rate months months years cash flow amount
-z nz - AT

EhRA= =fiA @A RER REEE BHgE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

As at 31 December 2021 R2021%512A31H
Trade payables BHERE N/ATER 81,688 - - 81,688 81,688
Other payables and accrued charges ~ E M FUAR BT ER NATRER 96,262 - - 96,262 96,262
Bank borrowings HER 55 - 52,671 331,902 384,573 351,000
Lease liabilties HEEE 18 239 1,074 2,626 3,939 3,826
Contingent consideration payable FAEARE NATER - 253536 378,005 631,631 631,631
178,189 307,281 712,623 1,198,093 1,164,407

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The management of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available.

THMITAREZAFENE

AEBETERIARMBRENS
BAFENE - ARRERERTEE
B ERI R ABIBRIEAHERE -

a2 HER - AREER ERNE
B LTS A B EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

36. Financial Instruments (continued) 36. @I AEu@m)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments eRMIAEZAFETE(E)
(continued)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities that are measured 0] REEBRKEHZEATEEZ
at fair value on a recurring basis tEasnATE
Financial liabilities Fair value as at Fair value Valuation
at FVTPL 31 December hierarchy technique Key input
BATEFFEEHE
ABHZEMAMRE M2R3NBZAFE  AVEEBR  (EERE FTEHARE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT
Contingent 395,186 631,631 Level 3 Discounted cash Discount rate of
consideration E=M flow method was 0%

payable
FERSRARAE

used to capture
the present value
of the expected
future economic
benefits that will
flow out of the
Group arising from
the contingent
consideration
payable, based
on an appropriate
discount rate.

RIES @RI R E A
BRIRIR @7 A
BERSARES
e RbAEE
Z TR R AR
w2 IRE -

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements is set out

in note 28. BfizE28 -

(2021: 3.2%)
(Note)

AR E0%
(20214 :
3.2%) (Fff&E)

Actual/or
projected
revenues and
profits (Note)

B RIEA
Woas B 7|
(Ff$3E)

FEZRRNFEFEZHERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

(i

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The management considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 15 November 2018
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to any directors

(including executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), full-time or part-time employees and potential employees
of the Group and any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisers who the directors of the Company considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed or shall contribute to the Group (“Eligible
Participant”).

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(i)

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the directors of the
Company shall be entitled to, at its absolute discretion and
on such terms as it deems fit, grant options to any Eligible
Participant.

The maximum number of options in respect of which might
be granted under this Share Option Scheme must not exceed
10% of the aggregate of the shares in issue on the date
the shares commence trading on the Stock Exchange. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted was 160,000,000 shares, respectively 10% of
issued share capital of the Company on the date the shares
commence trading on the Stock Exchange. The overall limit
on the number of shares which shall be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted, and yet to be exercised,
under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

36.

37.

A MR M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31ALLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AR TS

RRMIRE(EE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHZE2022F12A31 B IEFE

37. Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i

(iv)

The total number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Participant
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any twelve months period shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue.

The period within which the shares shall be taken up under
an option shall be a period to be notified by the directors of
the Company to each grantee at the time of making an offer,
which shall be determined by the directors of the Company
in its absolute discretion at the date of grant of the relevant
option, but such period shall not expire later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the relevant option.

An option shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Participant concerned for a period of the date on which
the letter containing the offer is delivered to the Eligible
Participant. HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the offer of the option.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by
the directors of the Company at its absolute discretion and
notified to the Eligible Participant in the offer at the time of
the offer, and shall be no less than the highest of:

a. the official closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the relevant option;

b. the average of the official closing prices of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option;
and

@ the nominal value of a share.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under

the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022

and 2021 nor outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ2022F12AB1 B ILFE
Movement on Group’s Liabilities arising from 38. MIEERHELANEEEE
Financing Activities 25
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRFMAEFBREEHAELENA
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. EEE  RIERSRIERSEE - @
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash BEHRELNBEAE SRR
flows Yvere, or future cash flows will be, classified in the .GrouF)’s KESRENAEFCABEORES
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing A AR ESE S R A -
activities.
Interest
included
Dividend Lease Bank in other
payable liabilities borrowings payables Total
T ARft R
EARE HEEE BATHEH HEZHE @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTIL ARETT ARBTIL ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2021 12021F1 18 - 1,824 376,364 - 378,688
Financing cash flows (Note) BERSRE () (53,154) (1,855) 225,112 (19,532) 150,571
Discharge of borrowings from factoring of B ZEE| B REERZE
bills receivables upon maturity of bills FERZER - - (81,500) - (81,500)
Finance costs recognised BRZRERA - 31 1,539 19,532 21,102
Lease modification REBT - 3,826 - = 3,826
Dividend declared EERRE 53,154 - - - 53,154
At 31 December 2021 12021412 A31H - 3,826 522,015 - 525,841
At 31 December 2021 12021412 A31H - 3,826 522,015 - 525,841
Financing cash flows (Note) BERSRE (f3T) (49,056) (1,313) 644,698 (19,306) 575,023
Discharge of borrowings from factoring of B EEE|HEREEKEE
bills receivables upon maturity of bills FERZER - - (384,263) - (384,263)
Finance costs recognised BRERBENS - 61 3,522 19,306 22,889
Dividend declared EERRE 49,056 - - = 49,056
At 31 December 2022 12022412 A31H - 2,574 785,972 - 788,546
Note: The financing cash flows represented the payment of dividend, Mizy : RMERSREEZMARE - EHEMR
repayment of lease liabilities, net of repayment of borrowings and E8E MREREBEREFIGE
new borrowings raised. e

<
<
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

#HZE2022F12 31 ILFE

39.

Particulars of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

LR &

Directly held:

BHERE -

Coal & Mines International
Resources Limited

Indirectly held:
EERE
HongKong Resources
BRRDER

Subsidiaries of HongKong
Resources:

BERTERONEL A -

Jiutai Bangda

AFHE

Guizhou Fu Bangda
Consultancy Services
Co., Ltd

BN A AR
BRAR

All the companies comprising the Group have adopted 31 December

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
Eaizhyd
BR3ER
HEERER

BVI, limited
liability company
RERUHS -
BRAA

Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

& ARAR

PRC, limited
liability company

FE - BRAA

PRC, limited
liability company
RE - BRAF

as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the
year or at the end of the year.

Issued and fully paid

capital/registered
capital

BRITRARE
X ERER

United States
Dollars 10,000
10,0003 T

HK$1
1787T

RMB590,000,000
ARE
590,000,000

RMB100,000
AR #100,0007T

39. B ARIFE
RMEER - NRAFIHB RS

LUNNE

Shareholding/equity
interest attributable to
owners of the Company
at 31 December

M12HB31BHARAT
e ARELRAE R
2022 2021
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

FTEEK

Investment holding
REPER

Investment holding

REER

Exploration and mining
of coking coal and
coal refinery in the
PRC

RABBETTER R K
FERA R kRS

Management services
support for the
group entities and
investment holding

AEEEREHERER
Bk R AR

FrEHEKRAEENARHERH12A
1B AEBBEFLEH -

BB A RN F AR FEREITEM

B S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Statement of Financial Position and Reserves 40. BIEARR TR RARD BREE
of the Company

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B — R B A A 388,330 388,330
Property, plant and equipment L E =N 142 257
388,472 388,587
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE S FRIE K H A FE KGRI 339 209
Cash and cash equivalents BE MRS EEY 6,162 4,155
6,501 4,364
Current liabilities B I=Ri
Accrued charges and other payables FERTE A R E MR FRIR 2,089 2,394
Amount due to a subsidiary FEA —FEIP B A RIFRIA 97,357 46,362
99,446 48,756
Net current liabilities HREEETFE (92,945) (44,392)
Net assets EEFE 295,527 344,195
Capital and reserves BB
Share capital A& 14,136 14,136
Reserves ] 281,391 330,059
Total equity e 295,527 344,195
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

EZ20226F12AB1 B ILFE
40. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves 40. BIBARR TR KRN FFEE
of the Company (continued) (#8)
Movement of reserves of the Company RATHBEEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
AR RE ZitEE at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETFT ARBFIT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 /818 443,759 (59,866) 383,893
Loss and total comprehensive FABEBREEASEE
expenses for the year - (680) (680)
Dividend recognised as distribution #3257k 2 B8 (HE12)
(note 12) (53,154) - (53,154)
At 31 December 2021 20215128310 390,605 (60,546) 330,059
Profit and total comprehensive FRBMNREEMS B8
expenses for the year - 388 388
Dividend recognised as distribution #7257k 2 B8 (HE12)
(note 12) (49,056) - (49,056)
At 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H 341,549 (60,158) 281,391
41. Pledge of Assets 41. EEEH
The Group’s bank borrowings had been secured by the pledge of REBEMBRITEFAASEEEDR
the Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the respective assets EfE(R - BEARECREELDT -
are as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Mining Rights ERuERE 53,313 55,624
Bills receivables e 435,913 171,650
489,226 227,274

>
>
a




Results
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit and total
comprehensive
income
for the year

Profit and total
comprehensive
income for the year
attributable to:

— Owners of the
Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity attributable to
owners of
the Company

E 3
Was

B 1 B s )
BIAX

FREA M
2EURALETE

AN 77 PRI F P A
REERALERE :

—ARREEEA

ZA/NEIE/ 2SN
FE{h s
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L FHBEHRE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2,475,150

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EET T AREFT AREETFTT AREETTT ARETTT
1,784,033 1,541,399 1,402,604 812,145 719,412
855,548 411,428 484,385 309,794 256,808
(99,086) (109,658) (138,905) (91,773) (73,639)
756,462 301,770 345,480 218,021 183,169
756,462 301,770 345,480 218,021 183,169
756,462 301,770 345,480 218,021 183,169
As at 31 December
M128318

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT AREFT ARETF T ARET T

4,064,494 3,237,621 2,675,408 1,677,341 1,399,101
(1,589,344) (1,469,877) (1,156,280) (467,097) (406,878)
2,475,150 1,767,744 1,519,128 1,210,244 992,223
1,767,744 1,519,128 1,210,244 992,223

<
<
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SUMMARY OF MINE PROPERTIES
i 2YE S

Hongguo Coal Mine

ARER
Locations g Panzhou City
BN
Equity interest held by the Group AEE TR 100%
Mining area (sq.km.) FEEE(TADE) 3.0225
Number of mineable coal seams AREEESE 17
Permitted annual production capacity (tonnes) 57 A] 24 (1) 600,000
Licence holder FAERRBA Jiutai Bangda
ARHE
Mining right licence validity period R TR A January 2019 -
January 2039
2019F1RZ
2039F1A
Coal reserve mine life RxEENRILSH Approximately
31 years
#1315

Resource data under the JORC Code BEJORCRAIMEN S REHE

Summary (as at 31 December 2022)(" (R2022F128318)0
Measured resources (kt) RAERE(TH) 17,076
Indicated resources (kt) B RS (TH) 7,800
Inferred resources (kt) RS R=(TH) 13,000
Reserve data under the JORC Code BIEJORCRAIMEN AR EE
Summary (as at 31 December 2022)" (H2022%128318)"

Proved reserves (kf) HERE(TH) 12,606

Probable reserves (kt) PR GAE (T ) 5,910

Baogushan Coal Mine

BAWLRR

Panzhou City
BN

100%

2.4736

17

600,000

Jiutai Bangda
ARFE
January 2019 -
January 2039
2019F1A%
2039517
Approximately
44 years
K444

10,198
24,700
7,000

7,368
18,790

Xiejiahegou Coal Mine

HRTRRR

Panzhou City
B

100%

1.0135

19

450,000

Jiutai Bangda
AEHE
January 2021 -
September 2039
2021F1AZE
2039F1A
Approximately
21 years

#2145

15,470
10,360

9,590



The table below sets out the typical quality of the clean coal and middling

coal from Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine:

Ash content on a dry basis (%)

Volatile content on a dry and ash free

basis (%)

Total sulfur content on a dry basis (%)

Caking index

Total moisture (%)

Net calorific value on an as received

basis (kcal/kg)

R IR (%)
FOIR N IR R 3 53 (%)

HIRBETR D B E (%)

FEEEH

KD 1B (%)

E R FTIR B B K F 2VE
(FR/F7=)

The table below sets out the typical quality of the clean coal and middling

coal from Xiejiahegou Coal Mine:

Ash content on a dry basis (%)

Volatile content on a dry and ash free

basis (%)

Total sulfur content on a dry basis (%)

Caking index
Total moisture (%)

Net calorific value on an as received

basis (kcal/kg)

ELIRBEIR 7 (%)
B71% I IR B R 25 (%)

BRI D 4B 2 (%)

FhESER

KD KA (%)

ER AT E R FRVE
(F+~/F=)
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SUMMARY OF MINE PROPERTIES (Continued)

PREEY) St ()

TREIIALRIERE B L RREA IR & B

o —IREE

Clean Coal®

EEe

10.5

32.0
0.6
89.4
9.1

N/A TNE A

Middling Coal®
O

43.4

29.7

1.2

N/A NEH
10.2

3,576

T ERED A SO B BB R R —RE

=

Clean Coal®

BRe
10.3
20.8
0.4
88.5

11.5

N/A TNiE A

Middling Coal®
Higo

N/A i A
29.7

1.1

N/A TiE A

10.4

3,567
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SUMMARY OF MINE PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRuEY) B ()

Notes:

)

@

The resource and reserve data of the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan
Coal Mine are based on the resource and reserve review report provided
by Dr. C.S. Kong of Ravia as of 31 December 2021 while the resource
and reserve data of the Xiejiahegou Coal Mine are based on the resource
and reserve review report provided by Mr. Leung Karfai of BAW as of 31
December 2022. The resource and reserve data as of 31 December 2022 of
the Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine have been adjusted by
the measured resource data and the proved reserve data as at 31 December
2021, after deducting the respective data extracted from the mining activities
between 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022.

The clean coal produced from Hongguo Coal Mine and Baogushan Coal Mine
are mostly 1/3 coking coal whereas the clean coal produced from Xiejiahegou
Coal Mine are mostly coking coal. The above typical quality of clean coal is
based on the average of clean coal delivered to the customers in 2022.

The above typical quality of middling coal is based on the average of middling
coal delivered to the customer in 2022.

There was no exploration activity for the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022, and that the Group has incurred
approximately RMB666.4 million (2021: approximately RMB622.9
million), being the cost of sales, for the mining production activities
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

i

4T RIETE B AL EIEE £20214F12 A31
ANERERRBEEEBE NRBERENIE
RELRHEOERERFERE®RSE - M
SR TEE £2022F12 31 BB R
ERFEEETRBEEENREELER
HHERFEEEERE - AREBEREA
L EE £2022F12 A1 BN ERE K [#
EHECREN2021F12A31ANEE
HESBERFEABEELAE - WNkE
202241 418 £2022F12 A31 BHARIH K
BEBE L AEREEE

AT SR BT T B 48 L B 0 AT A 7 O R R KD
D IR/BEREE - TSN B T A EE A
BRED BEK - BIllBRN—REER
R2022F MEF R NIRERTHERS

iR — B EER2022F ARF R
e FEEESE -

AEEREZE2022F12A31B ILFE
WEM RS E) - MASEREZ2022
F12ANBILEFERTBREETD
EEHEXNANDARKE66.4FE T
(20214F : HARKEBC22.9HETT) °
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